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OAK RIDGE

TENNESSEE

CITY OF OAK RIDGE
MUNICIPAL BUILDING

Post Ofrice Box 1 37831-0001
TeepHoNE: (865) 425-3550 December 19, 2001
Fax: (865) 425-3420

Honorable Mayor,
Members of City Council and
Citizens of the City of Oak Ridge, Tennessee

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Oak Ridge, Tennessee for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2001, has been prepared by the Finance Department and is submitted herewith. Responsibility
for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the City. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material
respects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of
operations of the City as measured by the financial activity of its various funds; and that all disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain a full understanding of the significant aspects of the City's financial
affairs have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections - Introductory, Financial, and
Statistical:

1) The Introductory Section includes an overview of the City's economic condition and major
initiatives, the organizational structure of the City, and the City's accounting and
budgeting systems. This section also presents summarized financial information about
the City; including an analysis of the operations of general government and an overview
of enterprise activities, a list of principal officials, and information on government
financial reporting achievements.

2) The Financial Section includes the audited financial statements and schedules of the City,
as well as the auditor's report on the financial statements and schedules. The Financial
Section is presented in accordance with the financial reporting pyramid set forth by the
National Council on Governmental Accounting and adopted by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. The combined statements in this section present an
overview of the City's entire financial operations. Individual Fund and Account Group
Statements and Schedules are presented, along with Combining Statements. Individual
Statements present prior year and/or budgetary comparisons for each of the individual
funds and account groups in the City. The schedules provide certain other information
and additional details of data summarized in the financial statements.

3) The Statistical Section includes selected historical financial data, insurance schedules,
debt statistics, and miscellaneous economic and social data. The selected data is
generally presented on a multi-year basis.




The City of Oak Ridge is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of
the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the U. S. Office of Management and Budget's ¢ rcular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Information related to this
single audit, including a schedule of state and federal financial assistance, the independent auditor’s
reports on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and a schedule of
findings is included in a separately issued single audit report.

THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

This report includes all of the funds and account groups of the City, as well as all of its component units.
The operations and accounts of the Oak Ridge Schools are presented as part of the primary government.
The City provides a wide range of services including public safety, education, refuse collection, parks-
recreation, a public library, street maintenance, public improvements, planning and zoning, economic
development and general administrative services. The City also provides electric, water treatment and
distribution and wastewater collection and treatment services.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the primary
government’s operations and are included as part of the primary government. The City currently has no
blended component units. Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the
combined financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government
and to differentiate their financial position and results of operations from those of the primary
government. The Oak Ridge Convention and Visitors’ Bureau is reported as a discretely presented
component unit.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND oK

During fiscal 2001, a slight increase in economic growth and development occurred in the City of Oak
Ridge despite continued downsizing in Federal employment. Announcements and completions were
experienced in the industrial, residential, and commercial sectors as the City continued to capitalize upon
its attractiveness as a place to live, work, and raise a family

The prestigious Oak Ridge National Laboratory’s (ORNL) efforts in advanced materials, robotics,
environmental science, information sciences and management, and energy management are world
renown. A proactive program to transfer these technologies to the private sector continues to create new
business opportunities and to draw entrepreneurs to the Oak Ridge area. Licenses have been granted to
existing firms as well as start-up firms to manufacture commercial products using state-of-the-art
technology in robotics, ceramics and nuclear medicine.

During fiscal 2000, the Industrial Development Board constructed a 60,000 square-foot shell speculative
building on a Board-owned parcel in Bethel Valley Industrial Park. Advanced Labelworx purchased the
building, completed the finishing and relocated into the facility from adjacent Knox County in December
2000. The company has 125 employees. The building has the capacity to expand to 100,000 square-
feet, allowing it to grow along with the company.

In early fiscal 2001, Theragenics, Inc., a leader in the production and sale of implantable radiation

devices used in the treatment of cancer, was the first industry to locate in the newly constructed
Horizon Center. Employment is projected to reach 250.
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During fiscal 2001, Home Depot completed construction of a 108,000 square-foot store that opened in
late February 2001. The store employs approximately 150 people with estimated first year sales of $20
million generating approximately $225,000 in sales tax revenues to the City. There are five attractive
parcels abutting the Home Depot site that have been purchased by H&C Oak Ridge, L.P. for future retail
development.

In June 2001, Wal-Mart completed a $7 million expansion and renovation to the exiting store. Wal-Mart
projects sales to increase by $30 million annually at this store, resulting in over $300,000 in annual sales
tax revenues to the City.

Also under construction in fiscal 2001, were two new office buildings and a new main TNBank branch,
which also contains office space for lease.

Residential growth increased slightly in fiscal 2001, which saw 48 new homes being built, up from fiscal
2000's total of 43. The inventory of available lots ready for development increased by 28 new, mostly
single-family residential lots, down from the prior year's total of 36. These platted lots came from
Southwood and Donner Place, with 17 and 11 new lots respectively. Approximately $18 million in
construction permits were issued during fiscal 2001, a decrease from the $27.8 million in permits issued
in fiscal 2000.

In October 2000, the contractor changed at DOE’s K-25 facility resulting in an approximately $425,000
reduction in the City’s annual sales tax revenues. Previously, the same contractor was responsible for
both DOE’s K-25 and Y-12 facilities and sales taxes were paid at the point of consumption in Oak Ridge
for both facilities. Beginning in October 2000, the DOE facilities were awarded to two different
contractors. Since the K-25 facility is not a manufacturing facility, sales tax payments are now made by
the contractor at the point of sale rather than at the point of consumption in Oak Ridge. The new
contactor at the Y-12 facility continues to pay sales taxes at the point of consumption in Oak Ridge.
Overall, local sales tax collections, excluding one-time adjustments, were down $182,773 in fiscal 2001.
It is anticipated that the loss of sales tax revenues due to the federal contractor changes at DOE facilities
will be offset by the sales tax growth related to the opening of Home Depot and expansion of Wal-Mart.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

During fiscal 2001, the City continued its emphasis on enhancing the quality of life through the
continuation and implementation of many initiatives and programs directly benefiting the community both
today and in the future. In recent years, there has been a surge of interest in local economic
development and planning, particularly to diverse the City’s economy with less dependency on the federal
government as the City’s major employer. In the past year, the City has continued to implement and
develop plans to enhance the economic statue.

Transfer of Properties from Department of Energy - The City continues to work with the Department of
Energy (DOE) toward the transfer of an approximately 20-acre site on Bethel Valley Road identified as

Parcel G. In the spring of 2000, the City of Oak Ridge had an appraisal completed on this parcel. A
formal request for a less than fair market value transfer of Parcel G to the City has been forwarded to
DOE.

Partners for Progress - The eight partners of this initiative (City of Oak Ridge, Roane County, Anderson
County, United States Department of Energy, Tennessee Valley Authority, State of Tennessee, Boeing-
Oak Ridge Company and the Community Reuse Organization of East Tennessee) continued to work
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together to find sources of funding which would provide installation of infrastructure (projected at $15.2
million) to five parcels of vacant land in the Roane County portion of the City of Oak Ridge. With the
installation of infrastructure, it is expected that the land will be much more attractive to industries, and
the entire region will therefore benefit from this investment. To date, the City has obtained over $5
million in federal and state grants to supplement the costs of infrastructure development to these sites.

It is expected that preparing these five parcels with utilities, etc. will help secure a regional
industrial/commercial complex that is:

1. significantly more marketable,

2. more cost-effective due to an expansion of the rate base, utilization of excess capacity, and
economies of scale, and

3. the source of new jobs that will help offset the losses due to federal downsizing.

In addition, the proposed project can help support existing and new missions of the federal government
such as the Spallation Neutron Source. By adding utility capacity and providing it at competitive costs,
the ability to attract and maintain compatible businesses are greatly enhanced.

In March 2001, design work began for a new electrical substation that serves as a fundamental
component of providing electric service by the City to these five parcels in the west end of Oak Ridge, this
includes the Horizon Center, Heritage Center and the Boeing Site. Construction of the new substation is
estimated to cost $4.2 million, with approximately 50 percent of the funding being provided by three state
and federal grants.

The Horizon Center - The Horizon Center (formerly ED-1) has completed Phase I construction of roads
and bridges into the 1,000 acre industrial park. The Community Reuse Organization of East Tennessee, a
non-profit development corporation, holds a long-term lease on the property from DOE. Officials are
working on this project to provide the infrastructure (one of the five tracts to which infrastructure is being
planned by the Partners for Progress discussed above) in order to attract and to support continued
industrial growth and diversification of the regional economy.

Spallation Neutron Source - It is expected that the impending Spallation Neutron Source (SNS) accelerator
project will have an enormous effect on the economy of Oak Ridge in the next several years, with
construction expected to be completed by 2006. It is projected to cost $1.36 billion, employ 2,300
workers during construction, and add several hundred permanent employees after completion.
Additionally, the SNS expects up to 3,000 scientists to visit each year for varying periods of time, and
numerous small industries to be spun off from the experiments and findings. Each job created is
expected to have an impact on housing, retail, banking, automobile and transportation, hotels,
restaurants, hospitals, and business services. The medical field will be highly impacted with new drugs
and medicines expected from experiments at the SNS. During fiscal 2001, DOE awarded some of the
initial construction contracts for this project.

City Center Master Plan - In 1998 Oak Ridge identified, via a community visioning process, its goals for
the future including the development of a Master Plan for the City Center. The resulting document,
Operation: Oak Ridge, which was accepted and approved by City Council, identified the need for this
Master Plan which is intended to revitalize an area bordered by the Oak Ridge Turnpike on the north,
South Illinois to Rutgers Avenue, and Rutgers north to the Oak Ridge Turnpike. The City Center Master
Plan was then initiated on April 17, 2000 with a work session for City Council and a presentation to the
27-member City Center Steering Committee. The progress of the Plan was intended to be phased over a
strategically chosen time period to maximize the planning efforts for uncertainty. The initial phase is
redevelopment of the mall.
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Beginning in May 2000, the City featured this project on its web site; all maps and graphics developed for
the project were published on the site along with newsletters and press releases. Press releases were
also submitted to local and regional media on a regular basis between May and September 2000.
Numerous meetings and interviews were conducted by Lose and Associates, Inc., the consultant, during
this period, to gather information and statistics concerning views of individual citizens and particular focus
groups. The consultant’s final proposal regarding the master plan for development of the Center City was
presented to City Council in late November 2000 and approved in early 2001.

Conference Center — In an effort to enhance the City’s attraction for regional connections, an Oak Ridge
Conference Center has been proposed. Scope of the project includes upgrading and refurbishing the
existing Pollard Auditorium, including the installation of new equipment and systems for state-of-the art
networking and video-teleconferencing. Estimated costs for the project are $5 million. Staff has
submitted grant requests for $1 million and other revenue sources are being sought.

American Museum of Science and Energy (AMSE) — A report has been developed to determine the
financial stability of AMSE in response to DOE’s request that UT-Battelle, as part of its management and

operations contract for the Oak Ridge National Laboratory, provide a plan for the museum’s long-term
financial stability. The need for the plan arose from the elimination as of October 2000 of approximately
$1.2 million in federal funds that were annually available to operate the museum. DOE recently approved
a proposal to relinquish ownership of AMSE to the City of Oak Ridge. The City is currently reviewing the
feasibility of assuming responsibility for operations of AMSE. AMSE's financial stability plan must employ
a combination of several revenue sources. ASME should serve as a focal point for the history of Oak
Ridge, a mission showcase for DOE’s major contractors and a repository for historical records and
artifacts of DOE. AMSE was recently officially designated an affiliate of the Smithsonian Institute, which
will not only allow AMSE to borrow objects from the Smithsonian's collections, but it will also allow the
Oak Ridge museum to incorporate the outreach services the institution offers for curriculum development
in local schools, lectures, traveling exhibitions, workshops and similar programmatic activities.

Parcel A — The City is currently soliciting proposals for design and development of a residential
neighborhood on 278 acres of city-owed property near the Tennessee Centennial Golf Course. Proposed
land uses include a mix of single-family detached homes, townhouses and garden apartments. The City
would sell the land to the developer(s) who submits the best design proposal.

Rarity Ridge — Approximately 1,200 acres, previously identified as the Boeing site, have recently been sold
to a private developer to construct a pedestrian-friendly town center with both commercial and open
spaces within walking distance named Rarity Ridge. Plans call for the construction of approximately
1,500 homes with ground breaking to begin in April 2002.

Infrastructure expansion and upgrades — Nearing completion is a $17 million project to improve and
expand the wastewater treatment plant and wastewater collection system and wastewater lift station
rehabilitation and replacement. The wastewater treatment plant capacity increased from 6 mgd to 9
mgd, a 33% increase in capacity to service new customers. Additionally, the City acquired a water
treatment plant valued at $12,500,000 from the DOE on May 1, 2000. Previously, the City had purchased
potable water from DOE for distribution in Oak Ridge. The City now sells potable and raw water to DOE
for use in its facilities. Current water production and sales are less than 50% of the water treatment
plant’s maximum capacity.




DEPARTMENTAL FOCUS

Each year the government selects a department to highlight for its efforts and accomplishments. For
fiscal 2001, the City's Library has been selected for review. The Oak Ridge Public Library provides
informational and recreational materials for the community. In addition to serving as a repository for
printed and non-printed materials and organizing them for convenient use, the Library staff is reaching
out to provide special programs for children, for senior citizens, for people interested in learning more
about the Oak Ridge history or for people just interested in learning.

In fiscal 2001, the Library had 23,937 registered active patrons, and had an annual circulation of 215,748
books and audiovisual materials. The Library has 23 employees with a FTE of 17. The Library is open 65
hours a week during the school year, and 61 hours a week during the summer.

The Library has an up-to date comprehensive reference collection and a trained reference staff-member is
on duty at all times to help patrons find materials or information in the Library. The reference staff
handle inquires in person or over the phone and last year answered 37,008 reference questions. In
addition, the Library initiated an email reference service providing 24-hour access for the public in fiscal
2001.

The Library offers the public a variety of computer and on-line services. The first public Internet
workstations became available in 1997. Currently 12 stations are available in the Main Library and an
additional 2 in the Children’s Room. Reference staff is always available to assist the public in on-line
search strategy and general reference assistance. The Library’s collection became automated in 1998,
and is also available on the Internet. Public classes on beginning Internet are offered in the Library on a
regular basis. Word processing, genealogical searching, and CD ROM reference materials round out some
of the services the public enjoys.

The Library also houses the Oak Ridge room, which is a collection of materials pertaining to the history
and development of the Oak Ridge area. The Oak Ridge Room has 1,000 copies of photographs of early
Oak Ridge, 1942-1945, donated by the Department of Energy. Negatives have been made from these
prints, which are cataloged into notebooks under general subject headings, such as churches, social life,
recreation, etc. and are available for viewing by the public. The collection also contains books by Oak
Ridge authors, past city budgets and comprehensive annual financial reports and City Council and School
Board meeting minutes and many other items of historical interest to Oak Ridgers.

The Children’s Room provides materials and services to children through the sixth grade. The Childrén’s
Room circulated 61,546 books in fiscal 2001. During school months, the Library offers Storytime for two
age groups of children. Monday morning programming is for the Toddler-aged (up to 3 1/2 years old)
children. Tuesday is Preschool Storytime (3 1/2 to 5 year olds). Picture books, puppets, action songs and
favorite stories are available to the children and their parents. Last year 3,506 children attended the
Toddler and Preschool Storytimes. In the summer, children of all ages are welcome to enjoy the exciting
variety of programs scheduled by the Friends of the Library. A summer reading program is open to
children in grades 1 to 8, promoting independent reading. A summer listening program is available for
the younger child. 704 children registered for the two programs last year.

Other programs include the Interlibrary Loan Service in which patrons borrowed 337 books from other
libraries in fiscal 2001. In addition, the Library loaned 454 books to users in other libraries. The Service
to Seniors Program provides large print books to six health care and retirement centers located in Oak
Ridge. Each month new books are taken and exchanged with those previously placed at local centers.

The Library has a dedicated corps of volunteers who can assist in various areas. The Library utilized the
services of 103 volunteers during fiscal 2001. These 103 people donated a total of 5,360 hours or an
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average of 50 hours each. Their contributions enhance the services the Library is able to provide to the
public.

These are just a few of the services that the Library offers to the taxpayers of Oak Ridge. The staff
works hard to provide the highest quality in customer service. In the Oak Ridge Citizen Survey conducted
in Fall 2000, 98% of the respondents rated the Library at excellent or good in customer service, and #1 in
facility usage for the City. The Library looks forward to continuing to provide excellent library service for
all citizens of Oak Ridge.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

In developing and evaluating the City's accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of
internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurances regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition; and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining
accountability of assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of control should
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and the evaluation of costs and benefits require estimates and
judgments by management. All internal control evaluations occur within this framework. We believe that
the City's internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of
proper recording of financial transactions.

Budgetary control is maintained at the activity level by the review of estimated purchase amounts prior to
the release of purchase orders to vendors. Open encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund
balance at June 30, 2001.

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS

Revenues for general governmental functions, which include General, all Special Revenue and Debt
Service Funds totaled $62,397,174 in fiscal 2001, an increase of $5,496,405 or 9.7 percent over fiscal
2000.

In fiscal 2001, revenues from taxes and penalties increased $1,650,794 or 10.9 percent from the prior
fiscal year. General property tax collections of $12,975,297 were up from $11,668,547 in the previous
year, an increase of $1,306,750 or 11.2 percent. Assessed property valuations of $504,672,547
represented a decrease of $2,318,050 or .4 percent over the preceding fiscal year. The decrease is
primarily related to personal property that has been relocated outside of Oak Ridge. The property tax
rate increased from $2.31 to $2.57 in fiscal 2001, a 26-cent or a 11.3 percent increase. Revenues of
$2,030,011 from Other Property Taxes, primarily tax equivalents from City utilities, increased 24.4 percent
or $397,595 from the prior year. $176,687 of the increase is for tax equivalents on the water treatment
plant the City acquired from the United State Department of Energy (DOE) in May 2000. The remaining
increase in tax equivalent payments from the City’s utility Funds is due to the continuing major capital
improvement programs in the Electric and Waterworks Funds. Revenues from Gross Receipt Taxes
decreased $53,551 or 3.0 percent, due to a $73,361 decrease in collections from local sales taxes in the
Roane County portion of Oak Ridge and a $13,175 decrease in Business Taxes. These decreases were
offset in part by a $12,379 increase in beer/liquor wholesales taxes and a $20,606 increase in room
occupancy taxes. The decline in local sales tax collections were related to contractor changes at DOE's K-
25 facility in October 2000 and the slight decline in Business Taxes is attributable to the impact of federal
downsizing on the local economy.
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Licenses and Permits totaling $223,135 decreased $28,189 or 11.2 percent from the prior year due to
collections for building related permits. The value of construction permits decreased from $27.8 million in
fiscal 2000 to $18 million in fiscal 2001.

Intergovernmental revenues totaled $38,905,204 in fiscal 2001 compared with $35,756,766 in fiscal 2000,
an increase of $3,148,438 or 8.8 percent. Intergovernmental revenues in the Grant Fund increased
$2,241,041 primarily due to state/federal grant proceeds. $1,403,795 of this increase is from grant
awards related to the mitigation of natural hazards, including sinkholes, in the Mona Lane area of Oak
Ridge and $750,000 in grant funds to construct infrastructure at the Horizon Center. The remaining
increase of $87,246 in the Grant Fund is related to variances in expenditure levels between fiscal years
for routine grant awards. Intergovernmental revenues in the School Fund increased $743,958 primarily
from the school’s share of county property and sales tax collections. In the General Fund, state shared
Income Tax collections increased $45,594 and proceeds from DOE’s in-lieu of tax payment (PILT)
increased $241,188. The PILT increase is related to the 26-cent tax rate increase in fiscal 2001 and an
increase in the per acre appraised value for the 33,420 acres occupied by DOE within Oak Ridge from
$4,610 to $5,327 per acre.

Charges for Services increased $13,526 or .4 percent primarily due to group fees related to utilization of
the indoor pool. Fines and forfeitures increased $50,640 or 15.4 percent related to increased collections
through City Court primarily for traffic violations and drug violation fines and forfeitures.

Interest income decreased $29,457 or 2.9 percent related to lower interest rates in the latter part of fiscal
2001. Other revenues, which includes proceeds from land sales, cable television, miscellaneous school
revenues and right-of-way access charges, increased $690,653 primarily due to the proceeds from the
sale of two buildings no longer required by the City and land for development.

General Governmental Revenues
General Fund, All Special Revenue Funds and Debt Service Fund

Increase (Decrease)

Percentage From FY 2000
Amount Of Total Amount Percentage
Revenues:
Taxes and Penalties $ 16,753,443 26.8 $ 1,650,794 10.9
Licenses and Permits 223,135 3 (28,189) (11.2)
Intergovernmental 38,905,204 62.4 3,148,438 8.8
Charges for Services 3,486,933 5.6 13,526 0.4
Fines and Forfeitures 380,438 .6 50,640 154
Interest 987,737 1.6 (29,457) (2.9)
Other 1,660,284 2.7 690,653 71.2

Total Revenues $ 62,397,174 100.0 $ _5.496,405 9.7
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General governmental expenditures and transfers to component units totaled $61,314,811, an increase of
$5,362,113 or 9.6 percent compared to fiscal 2000, Expenditures for general government increased
$32,742, 6.5 percent, related to staffing changes in the legal department. Administrative costs of
$633,336 were basically flat with fiscal 2000 levels, with a slight decrease of $19,290 related to staff
vacancies.

Expenditures for police and fire protection increased $53,378 or .8 percent, primarily for salary and fringe
benefit costs and maintenance contracts on new equipment, including the vision software system used by
the Police Department. Expenditures for public works projects increased $27,347 or 1.0 percent,
primarily related to charges for street lighting upgrades and expansion.

Community services expenditures increased $116,563 or 1.9 percent from the prior fiscal year, primarily
for variances between fiscal years in expenditures from state and federal grant proceeds to benefit low-
income persons and expenditures for residential solid waste collection based on contractual inflation
increases. Expenditures for education increased $2,112,064 or 6.2 percent over fiscal 2001, primarily for
salary and benefit expenditures for teachers and support service employees.

Expenditures for capital outlays were $2,241,618 in fiscal 2001. These expenditures were accounted for
in the Grant Fund and were for hazard mitigation, including sinkholes, around the Mona Lane area of Oak
Ridge and funding toward infrastructure construction at the Horizon Center. Both of these capital
projects were primarily funded through state and federal grant awards. There were no capital outlays in
these Funds during fiscal 2000. The City’s major capital expenditures are recorded in the Capital Projects
Fund.

In fiscal 2001, expenditures for debt service increased $750,972 or 17.4 percent from the prior year. The
increase is for debt service payments on the $10,000,000 in general obligation bonds issued in fiscal 2000
and planned debt service step increases on previously existing long-term debt issuances

Operating Transfer-Out to the component unit Convention and Visitors Bureau increased $46,719 or 31.5

percent. Funding for the Bureau is set each year by City Council during budget deliberations and was
established at the actual level of Room Occupancy Tax collections during fiscal 2000.

General Governmental Expenditures and Transfers to Component Units
General Fund, All Special Revenue Funds and Debt Service Fund

Increase (Decrease)

Percentage From FY 2000
Amount of Total Amount Percentage

Expenditures:

General Government $ 532,967 0.9 $ 32,742 6.5

Administration 633,336 1.0 (19,290) (3.0)

Public Safety 7,160,283 11.7 53,378 8

Public Works 2,775,844 4.5 27,347 1.0

Community Services 6,331,493 10.3 116,563 1.9

Education 36,369,497 59.3 2,112,064 6.2

Capital Outlay 2,241,618 3.7 2,241,618 100.0

Debt Service 5,073,054 8.3 750,972 174

Operating Transfers Out

to component units 196,719 .3 46,719 31.5

Total Expenditures $ 61,314,811 100.0 $ 5362113 _96




Fund balances of general governmental Funds were maintained at adequate levels at the end of fiscal
2001 as shown in the table below along with the change in fund balance from the previous year. The
$1,179,117 or 12.2 percent reduction in the fund balance of the General Fund was planned and is
programmed into the City's multi-year model, which is the City’s long-term forecasting model for
revenues, expenditures and transfers of the General Fund correlated to projected future property tax
rates. The City has set a future target fund balance of $5 million for the General Fund combined with the
legally reserved fund balance of the School Fund. The General Fund had a fund balance of $8,470,036 at
the end of fiscal 2001, still well above the $5 million final target.

Under Tennessee State law, the fund balance of the School Fund can only be expended in the event of a
revenue shortfall or unforeseen expenditure until the fund balance exceeds three percent of operating
expenditures. The accumulated fund balance of the School Fund in excess of three percent of budgeted
annual operating expenditures may be budgeted and expended for nonrecurring purposes, but shall not
be used to satisfy appropriation requirements for recurring annual operating expenditures. The fund
balance of the School Fund should remain relatively stable from year-to-year. The $958,511 increase in
fund balance is the result of higher than anticipated revenue collections from property and sales tax
collections and interest earnings and expenditure levels of 2.4 percent below budget.

The fund balance of the Economic Diversification Fund increased by $1,660,575 during fiscal 2001 related
to one-time proceeds from land and building sales. The parcels sold included the land that housed the
former City Central Service Center Complex (CSCC) and the building that the Roane State Community
College (RSCC) previously occupied. New facilities at different locations have been constructed to house
the CSCC and RSCC. Other parcels sold included the Executive Seminar Building and a tract of land to be
utilized for commercial development. The Executive Seminar Building had been leased to the federal
government through early 1995. The property was deemed surplus for the City’s usage and therefore
sold. The proceeds from these property sales will be utilized for future major economic development
projects.

The fund balance of the State Street Aid Fund increased $71,683 from fiscal 2000 levels. Variances in
expenditures and related fund balance are due to fluctuations in maintenance costs for items such as
snow removal and street maintenance.

The fund balances of the Streets and Public Transportation, Grant and Debt Service Funds should remain
relatively constant from year-to-year. The $44,098 increase in the fund balance of the Debt Service Fund
was related to interest earnings.

The fund balance of the Drug Enforcement Program Fund decreased by $16,095 during fiscal 2001. The
fund balance of this Fund will fluctuate annually based on revenue levels from drug fines and forfeitures.

In compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) statement number 33, Accounting
for Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, the City reviewed its revenues for consistent
accrual of nonexchange transactions. To fully comply with GASB 33 in fiscal 2001, the City began
accruing beer and liquor wholesale, room occupancy, gasoline and motor fuel and mixed drink taxes at
the point of sale. The fiscal 2000 fund balance in the table below is as restated. For more information
refer to Note 23 in the Notes to Financial Statements of this document.

Xi




General Governmental — Fund Balances

Increase (Decrease)

FY 2000 From FY 2000
FY 2001 As Restated Amount _Percentage

General $ 8,470,036 $ 9,649,153 ($ 1,179,117) (12.2)
Economic Diversification 1,872,575 212,000 1,660,575 783.3
State Street Aid 307,248 235,565 71,683 30.4
Streets and Public

Transportation 286,166 288,071 (1,905) 0.7)
Grant 106 106 - 0.0
Solid Waste - - - 0.0
Drug Enforcement Program 60,382 44,287 16,095 36.3
School 4,659,912 3,701,401 958,511 259
Debt Service 85,765 41,667 44,098 105.8
Total Fund Balances $ 15742,190 $ 14,172,250 $ 1,569,940 _____ 11.1

CAPITAL PROJE FUNDS

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for all major capital improvement projects of the City other than those
accounted for in the Enterprise Funds. Expenditures for capital improvement projects in fiscal 2001
totaled $2,804,259. Major projects in fiscal 2001 included the renovation of various City and School
buildings, including those enhancements to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), major
roof replacements on city and school buildings and replacement of the chiller at Linden Elementary
School. Other projects included improvements to various City and School recreational facilities, including
completion of Phase II and start of Phase III of the Melton Lake greenways project and construction of an
elevated finish line tower for rowing regattas.

The primary financing source for the City's capital improvements program was the proceeds of a January
2000 $10,000,000 bond issuance. $183,524 in state grant proceeds were applied toward construction of
greenways in fiscal 2001. The Capital Projects Fund had a fund balance of $6,612,128 at year-end
comprised primarily from unspent bond proceeds.

As the City’s physical facilities continue to age, it has become more apparent that the City cannot
continue to borrow the funds necessary for the maintenance and replacement of these facilities at the
current pace. Over the past 10 years, the City has committed over $50 million in tax-supported debt to
pay for capital improvements, maintenance and replacement of facilities. Capital maintenance and facility
replacement will continue to be a major drain on the City’s resources in the future. Prior to fiscal 2001,
there were no reserves being set aside for this purpose. Without this reserve, the full cost of maintaining
and replacing major assets must be paid through the use of borrowed funds. With annual General Fund
debt service payments approaching $5 million, equal to about $1.00 on the property tax rate, City staff
has expressed the concern that it will be difficult for the City to continue borrowing at this pace. In fiscal
2001, $410,000 was transferred from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund to establish a
revenue stream to finance future capital maintenance. The intent is for this to be an annual transfer that
gradually increases in amount to approximately $1.5 million per year.




ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Total net income for the City's Enterprise Funds increased by $2,270,244 from the previous year. The
Electric Fund posted a net income of $1,206,395 for fiscal 2001 compared to a net loss of $596,480 for
fiscal 2000. A 5 percent electric rate increase was effective May 1, 2000. Capital expansion and
rehabilitation efforts are continuing in the Electric Fund with funding provided from an up to $15,000,000
long-term debt issuance through the TN-LOANs program in fiscal 2001. Over $10 million of the debt
proceeds were utilized to refund outstanding prior debt issuances. TN-LOANSs is a draw loan program
whereby funds are drawn from the trustee as expenditures occur. $4,759,944 was available at fiscal year
end to fund future capital projects, which include construction of a new substation and upgrades and
rehabilitation of two existing substations. In fiscal 2001, operating expenses, excluding purchased power,
increased $440,502 or 7.4 percent and interest expense for the year increased $113,452 in comparison
with the preceding year.

The Waterworks Fund, which accounts for water treatment and distribution and wastewater collection
and treatment functions, had a net income of $560,542 compared to a net income of $12,401 in fiscal
2000. Wastewater rates were increased an average of 17 percent for residential customers and 23
percent for commercial customers effective May 1, 2000. These rate increases were necessary to fund
the City's ongoing major wastewater system capital improvement projects. During fiscal 2001, the City
expended over $7 million for upgrades to the wastewater treatment plant and wastewater line and lift
station rehabilitation. The upgrades and improvements to the wastewater treatment plant are nearing
completion, however the rehabilitation of the wastewater distribution system is expected to continue for
several years. The City has received approval of $16,970,000 in loans from the Tennessee State
Revolving Fund (SRF) to finance wastewater capital projects. Draws on the SRF loans are processed once
actual expenditures have occurred. At June 30, 2001, the City had drawn $12,419,047 to date from the
approved SRF loans for waterworks projects. City Council has authorized the application for an additional
$7 million in funding from the SRF to finance wastewater rehabilitation projects for the next 5 years.

On May 1, 2000, the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) transferred ownership of a water treatment plant
located within Oak Ridge to the City. The water plant had a fair market value of $12,500,000 at the time
of acquisition. The asset value of the water plant is being depreciated over the remaining 20-year useful
life of the plant on a straight-line basis. Depreciation expense on the water plant is being closed out to
contributed capital rather than retained earnings. Previously, the City purchased water from DOE to
provide the potable water supply distributed by the City to commercial and residential water customers
located within Oak Ridge. Upon transfer of the water plant, the City began selling potable and raw water
to DOE facilities. The rate charged by the City for water utilized by DOE is outlined under a ten-year
contract and includes inflationary rate escalators. Water sales to DOE account for approximately 35
percent of water sale revenues. The City anticipates expending approximately $1.4 million annually for
the next 4 fiscal years to upgrade the water treatment plant. On November 19, 2001, City Council
authorized the issuance of $3 million in debt through the Tennessee Municipal Bond Fund to finance a
portion of these planned capital improvements.

The Emergency Communications District Fund accounts for the proceeds from the 911 emergency
telephone surcharge billed and collected for the City by South Central Bell. Beginning in late fiscal 2000,
new revenues were received by the City from surcharges on cell phones. The Fund had a net loss of
$96,867 for fiscal year 2001 compared to a net loss of $30,396 in the preceding fiscal year. It is
anticipated that a rate increase will be recommended to City Council during fiscal 2002 to offset system
losses.

During fiscal 1995, the Golf Course Fund was established to account for the construction and operation of
a City owned golf course. The course opened for play on June 23, 1997. On August 1, 1998, the City
issued $7,275,000 in Golf Course Revenue and Tax Bonds for the advance refunding of $6,100,000 in
outstanding Capital Outlay Notes and for completion of construction and equipping of the course. The
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Golf Course Fund had a loss of $757,494 in fiscal 2001 compared to a net loss of $743,193 for fiscal 2000.
The fund had a negative $2,541,105 retained earnings at fiscal year end. Positive operations of the fund
are dependent on revenues from the sale of land surrounding the golf course. Due to the impact of
federal downsizing, land sales have not reached projected levels. The City is currently reviewing options
to enhance the revenue stream of the Golf Course Fund in order to restore a positive retained earnings to
the Fund within a reasonable time frame.

Comparative data for all enterprise funds for the past two fiscal years is presented in the following
tabulation:

Increase (Decrease)

June 30, 2001 June 30, 2000 _ﬂ_gmt_iom FY_gg_r?cZQ@gg_
Gross Revenues $ 46,671,261 $ 40,761,896 $ 5,909,365 14.5
Gross Expenditures 45,434,948 41,821,323 3,613,625 8.6
Net Operating
Transfers In (Out) (323,737) (298,241) 25,496 _8.5
Net Income $ 912,576 $ (1,357,668) § 2,270,244 167.2

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The City maintains four internal service funds - a City Insurance Fund, an Inventory Fund, and a City and
a School Equipment Replacement Rental Fund.

The City's Insurance Fund, which operated at a net income of $173,245 for fiscal 2001, is used to account
for the cost of maintaining property and liability insurance for the protection of City assets not utilized by
the School system. Also included in this Fund is the cost of maintaining City employee health insurance,
which is self-funded for the dental and vision reimbursement program. City employee group medical
insurance is fully provided through an independent insurance carrier with the City and employees
contributing toward payment of the premiums., Commercial insurance is utilized for workers
compensation, but there is a $50,000 per incident deductible on the plan. Revenues to the Fund are
provided from charges to other City Funds and medical insurance contributions by employees and
retirees. Expenditures related to property and liability insurance and employee medical benefits for
school assets and employees are accounted for in the School Fund.

The Inventory Fund is used to account for the costs of maintaining a central inventory of materials and
supplies for use by all departments, excluding schools, of the City on a cost reimbursement basis.
Inventory on hand at the end of fiscal 2001 totaled $1,528,928 compared to $1,312,965 in fiscal 2000.

The City Equipment Replacement Rental Fund accounts for equipment such as automobiles, lawn
mowers, tractors, and trucks for all City departments, other than Enterprise Fund and School activities,
and accounts for the accumulation of funds to replace these assets. Rents are charged to the various
departments and are accumulated to fund replacement of the equipment. At the end of fiscal 2001, the
net book value of all equipment totaled $3,618,421, compared to $3,661,909 for fiscal 2000. The Fund
had a net loss of $271,635 for fiscal 2001 due to the unanticipated increase in fuel costs and higher
depreciation charges related to the purchase of new police and fire vehicles in the preceding fiscal year.
Fees charged to user departments will be increased in fiscal 2002 to offset these increased costs.

Xiv




The School Equipment Replacement Rental Fund accounts for equipment such as buses and other
vehicles used by the school departments and accounts for the accumulation of funds to replace these
assets. Rents are charged to the School Fund and are accumulated to fund replacement of the
equipment. At the end of fiscal 2001, the net book value of all equipment totaled $1,182,354 compared
to $1,030,618 for fiscal 2000. Revenues totaled $473,310 compared to total costs of providing services of
$155,686 for fiscal 2001.

NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

The Scholarship Fund was established to account for principal trust amounts received and related interest
income. The interest portion of the trust is used for college scholarship awards to high school seniors.
The principal amount is invested but must remain intact. In fiscal 2001, $18,442 was disbursed for
scholarship awards. The fund balance of the Scholarship Fund was $345,113 at the end of fiscal 2001.

CASH MANAGEMENT

Cash temporarily idle in all funds at the end of fiscal 2001 was inveSted in the following investment
instruments with maturity dates ranging from one day to two years. On June 30, 2001, the City's cash
resources were divided as follows:

Investment Instrument Percent

Demand Deposits 33.9

Local Government Investment Pool 66.1
Total 1000

Investments are made in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee, which allow the purchase
of U.S. government obligations and limit the maturity of the investment to a two-year period.

The amount of interest received during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2001 totaled $1,783,230 in all
funds, a $120,776 increase over the previous fiscal year. The increase is primarily the result of increased
cash levels in the Capital Projects Fund due to the proceeds from the $10 million debt issuance in mid-
fiscal 2000. A comparison of investment income earned during the past four years is presented on the
following table:
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Comparison of Interest Income Earned

FY 2001 FY 2000 FY 1999 FY 1998

Governmental Fund:

General Fund $ 634849 $ 689,270 $ 618,967 $ 685,222

Special Revenue Funds 336,502 284,711 198,546 186,965

Debt Service Fund 16,386 43,213 31,706 63,410

Capital Projects Fund 461,382 306,076 102,775 131,610
Total Governmental Funds 1,449,119 1,323,270 951,994 1,067,207
Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds 161,714 216,419 220,707 218,538

Internal Service Funds 138,655 127,363 113,911 80,724
Total Proprietary Funds 300,369 343,782 334,618 299,262
Fiduciary Funds:

Nonexpendable Trust Fund 33,742 (4,598) 15,062 24,609
Total Interest Earnings $ 1,783,230 $ 1662454 $ 1301674 $ 1,391,078

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Risk Management activity is a function of the Personnel Department and is responsible for managing
the City's risks in order to minimize the loss of human, physical, and financial resources. Management
employees in the School system are responsible for managing and minimizing the risks for loss to school
property and resources.

The City obtains property, liability, and workers' compensation coverage through the Tennessee Municipal
League Risk Management Pool. A continuous analysis of loss exposures and loss funding mechanisms is
conducted, particularly those programs which are primarily self-funded which includes employee dental
and vision insurance.

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

The general fixed assets of the City are those used in the performance of general governmental functions
and exclude the fixed assets of Enterprise and Internal Service Funds. As of June 30, 2001, the general
fixed assets of the City amounted to $77,818,043. This amount represents the original cost of the assets
and is considerably less than their replacement value. Depreciation of general fixed assets is not
recognized

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

During the fiscal year, the City made payments against debt service requirements totaling $5,073,054. Of
this amount, $2,196,868 was contributed to retire principal and $2,876,186 was applied to interest and
fiscal charges. At the end of fiscal 2001, $85,765 was on hand for the eventual retirement of existing
debt.
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General long-term debt also includes the change in the long-term portion of earned-but-unused vacation
benefits expected to be paid from future resources. At the end of fiscal 2001, earned-but-unused
benefits totaled $1,062,541.

The ratios of general obligation debt to assessed and market valuation per capita are useful indicators of
the City's debt position to municipal management, citizens, and investors.

Ratio of Ratio of
Net Net Debt to Debt to Debt
__Amount  Assessed Value _ Market Value __Per Capital
Net bonded debt $ 29,429,235 5.83% 1.75% $1,075
Capital outlay notes 160,592 .03 .01 6
Loans 24,951,186 4.95 1.48 911
Capital leases 250,968 .05 .01 9
Total General Obligation Debt $ 54,791,981 10.86% 3.25% $2,001

In 2001, the City's general obligation bond ratings were "Aa3" by Moody's Investors Service, and "A+" by
Standard & Poor's Corporation.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The City Charter requires an audit at the end of each fiscal year covering the operations of the past fiscal
year to be performed by a certified public accountant selected by the City Council. This requirement has
been complied with and the independent auditors have issued an "unqualified opinion" on the City’s
financial statements. Such an opinion indicates there was no limitation on the scope of the auditors
examination and the financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principals
generally accepted in the United States of America.

AWARDS
CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Oak Ridge, Tennessee, for
its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000. This is the fortieth
consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate
of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. The report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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DISTINGUISHED BUDGET AWARD

For the seventeenth straight year, the City received the GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award.
The award program, which was started by GFOA in fiscal 1984, is designed to recognize government
organizations that prepare and submit a budget that is informative, useful as a decision-making tool to
management and easily readable.
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CHERRY
BEKAERT&
HOLLAND

CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Honorable Mayor, City Council and City Manager
City of Oak Ridge, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements and the combining and
individual fund and account group financial statements of the City of Oak Ridge, Tennessee, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2001, as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose financial
statements are the responsibility of the City of Oak Ridge’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Qak Ridge Schools which statements reflect total assets of $56,806,972
as of June 30, 2001, and total revenues of $27,862,329 for the year then ended. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion on the
financial statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Oak Ridge Schools, is based on

the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the general-purpose financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the City of
Oak Ridge, Tennessee, as of June 30, 2001, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its
proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the
combining, individual fund, and account group financial statements referred to above (other than the
Oak Ridge Schools, whose financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report expressed
an unqualified opinion) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of each of the
individual funds and account groups of the City of Oak Ridge, Tennessee, at June 30, 2001, and the
results of operations of such funds and the cash flows of individual proprietary fund types and
nonexpendable trust fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.




Honorable Mayor, City Council and City Manager
City of Oak Ridge, Tennessee

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements
and on the combining, individual fund, and account group financial statements taken as a whole. The
accompanying financial information presented as Schedules A-4, A-5, H-3 and H-4 are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements of the City of Oak
Ridge, Tennessee. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the general-purpose, combining, individual fund, and account group financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general-purpose, combining,
individual fund, and account group financial statements taken as a whole.

The Introductory and Statistical Section listed in the table of contents are not required parts of the basic
financial statements, and we did not audit and do not express an opinion on such information.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
27,2001, on our consideration of the City of Oak Ridge’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Loy Bebrauk f Nollond L.L.P

Knoxville, Tennessee
September 27, 2001
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Exhibit 4
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type
Internatl Nonexpendable
Enterprise Service Trust
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services $ 44,389,389 $ 4,802,570 $ -
Golf course fees and sales 1,193,824 - -
Contributions - 1,420,048 -
Investment income - - 33,742
Other 660,765 - -
Total Operating Revenues 46,243,978 6,222,618 33,742
Operating Expenses:
Maintenance and administrative 13,433,033 1,284,419 -
Purchased power and water 25,428,335 - -
Depreciation 4,245,532 839,208 -
Materials - 2,027,164 -
Medical/liability claims - 250,161 -
Insurance premiums - 1,696,509 -
Scholarship awards - - 18,442
Total Operating Expenses 43,106,900 6,097,461 18,442
Operating Income (Loss) 3,137,078 125,157 15,300
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gain on sale of fixed assets 14,657 57,373 -
Capital Contributions 250,912 - -
Interest revenue 161,714 138,655 -
Interest expense (2,328,048) (101,951) -
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (1,900,765) 94,077 -
Net Income (Loss) Before
Operating Transfers 1,236,313 219,234 15,300
Operating transfers out (323,737) - -
Net Income (Loss) 912,576 219,234 15,300
Add: Depreciation on fixed assets
acquired by EPA and DOE grants 1,065,004 - -
Increase (Decrease) in
Retained Earnings/Fund Balance 1,977,580 219,234 15,300
Retained Earnings/Fund Balances - July 1 21,427,247 2,693,699 329,813
Retained Earnings/Fund Balances - June 30 $ 23,404,827 $ 2,912,933 $ 345,113

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




Exhibit 5
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type
Internal Nonexpendable
Enterprise Service Trust
Operating Income (L.oss) $ 3,137,078 $ 125,157 s 15,300
Adjustments to Reconcile
Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash:
Depreciation 4,245,532 839,208 -
Provision for uncollectable accounts 102,000 - -
Unrealized increase in market value of investments - - (12,619)
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts receivable 55,699 - (1,546)
Due from other funds (83,121) (1,212) 3,921
Due from other governments 3,699 - -
Inventory (624) (215,963) -
Amortization of deferred charges 80,936 794 -
Accounts payable (516,333) 9,419 2,812
Claims payable - (5,097) -
Deposits 255,835 - -
Accrued liabilities 291 320 -
Due to other funds (1,281,513) 211,193 -
Accrued vacation (20,993) 2,196 -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 5,978,486 966,015 7,868
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers to other funds (323,737) - -
Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities:
Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 7,266,444 184,580 -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (11,182,535) (971,617) -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 23,919 57,373 -
Contributed Capital - (248,580) -
Principal paid on long-term debt (1,101,542) (171,630) -
Interest paid on long-term debt (2,604,857) (104,719) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
and Related Financing Activities (7,598,571) (1,254,593) -
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of investments - - (283,902)
Proceeds from maturity of investments - - 293,894
Interest and dividends on investments 161,714 138,655 -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 161,714 138,655 9,992
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,782,108) (149,923) 17,860
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 4,240,616 2,388,521 2,028
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 2,458,508 $ 2,238,598 $ 19,888
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash
Equivalents to the Balance Sheet:
Cash equivalents per the balance sheet $ 194,856 $ 2,238,598 $ 19,888
Restricted assets:
Deposits 1,216,735 - -
Construction account 718,592 - -
Current debt service account 328,325 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 2,458,508 $ 2,238,598 $ 19,888
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. (Continued)




Exhibit 5
(Cont.)
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:

During fiscal 2001, the City issued $10,004,120 in debt through the TN-LOANs program for the refunding of
$10,515,000 in outstanding Electric system revenue bonds. The debt proceeds went immediately to the trustee for
payment of the outstanding bonds. The City remitted $609,547 to the trustee that was being held by the City as a
required reserve for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. Debt issuance costs of $235,936,
recorded as a Deferred Charge, were deducted from the debt proceeds and are being amortized over the debt
repayment period. The $124,580 difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the
bonds was deferred and is being amortized over the remaining 12-year life of the old debt.

Amortized in the Electric Fund in fiscal 2001 was $7,398 in Debt Issuance Costs, $7,106 in Bond Discounts and
$1,775 of the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying value of bonds refunded in fiscal
2001. $11,081 was also amortized for a prior service area acquisition.

In the Waterworks Fund, $45,364 in costs related to the acquisition of the water plant from the United States
Department of Energy (DOE) and $4,470 in debt issuance costs were amortized in fiscal 2001. The Waterworks
Fund had $250,912 in facilites, recorded as revenue, donated by private developers to the City in fiscal 2001.
Amortized in the Golf Course Fund in fiscal 2001 were $2,283 in Bond Issuance costs, $3,233 in Bond Discounts
and $14,439 of the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying value of notes refunded in

fiscal 1999.

In the City Equipment Replacement Rental Fund, $794 in Bond Issuance costs were amortized in fiscal 2001.

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

1. UMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the City of Oak Ridge, Tennessee, conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to governmental units. The following
is a summary of the more significant policies:

a. Reporting Entity

The City of Oak Ridge, Tennessee was incorporated June 16, 1959, under Chapters 30
through 36 of Title 6, Tennessee Code Annotated, which chapters became the Home Rule
Charter of the City, as the result of an election held November 7, 1962. The City operates
under a Modified City Manager-Council form of government and provides services as
authorized by its charter.

The basic criteria for determining whether another governmental organization should be
included in a primary governmental unit's reporting entity for general purpose financial
statements is financial accountability. Financial accountability includes (1) the appointment
of a voting majority of the organization's governing body, (2) the ability of the primary
government to impose its will on the organization, or (3) if there is a financial benefit/burden
relationship. In addition, an organization that is fiscally dependent on the primary
government should be included in its reporting entity.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
these financial statements present the City of Oak Ridge (the primary government) and its
component units, entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. The
operations of the Oak Ridge Schools are included as a part of the primary government.
Discretely presented component units are reported in separate columns in the combined
financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the City. The accounting
principles and policies utilized by the discretely presented component units are the same as
those of the City unless stated otherwise in the following Notes to the Financial Statements.
All discretely presented component units have a June 30 year-end.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Qak Ridge Convention and Visitors Bureau. The Convention and Visitors Bureau promotes

tourism activities and operates a tourist information center within Oak Ridge. The Bureau's
seven Board members are appointed by City Council. Bureau operations are virtually entirely
funded from City appropriations. The Bureau is presented as a governmental fund type.
Complete financial statements for the Oak Ridge Convention and Visitors Bureau may be
obtained at the entity's administrative offices at the following address:

Oak Ridge Convention and Visitors Bureau
302 South Tulane
Oak Ridge, Tennessee 37830

(continued)




CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
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Related Organizations
Oak Ridge City Council is responsible for all board appointments of the following:

Oak Ridge Housing Authority

Oak Ridge Utility District

Oak Ridge Industrial Development Board

Oak Ridge Health and Education Facilities Board

However, the City has no further accountability for any of these organizations. The City
cannot impose its will on these boards since it does not have the ability to modify or approve
their budgets or overrule or modify decisions of the boards. The boards are fiscally
independent and there is no financial benefit or burden relationship with the City.
Therefore, they are not included in the City's financial statements.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds and account
groups. A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent
and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The account groups are financial
reporting devices designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are
not recorded in the funds. Account groups are concerned only with the measurement of
financial position and do not measure results of operations.

The following fund categories, fund types and account groups are used by the City.
VERNMENTA ND

General Fund

The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to account for all activities of
the City not included in other specified funds. The General Fund accounts for the normal
recurring activities of the City (i.e., police, fire, recreation, public works, general government,
etc.).

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

(continued)




CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
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Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the payment of principal and interest on
long-term general obligation debt. It does not include debt issued for services provided by a
proprietary fund. In fiscal 2001, the General Fund and the proceeds from the 1992
Anderson County bond issuance primarily serviced this debt obligation.

Capital Project Fund

Capital Project Funds are used to account for financial resources segregated for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary
operations. The primary funding source for the Capital Project Fund is proceeds from
general obligation debt issuances and operating transfers from the General Fund.

PRIETARY FUN
Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b)
where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability, or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department to other departments of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an
agent on behalf of others.

Trust Funds

When assets are held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, either a nonexpendable
trust fund or an expendable trust fund is used. The terms "nonexpendable" and
"expendable" refer to whether or not the government is under an obligation to maintain the
trust principal. The Scholarship Fund, a nonexpendable type trust fund, is used to account
for principal trust amounts received and related interest income. The interest portion of the
trust is used for college scholarship awards. The principal amount is invested but must be
preserved intact.

(continued)
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ACCOUNT GROUPS
General Fixed Assets Account Group

This account group is used to account for fixed assets not accounted for in proprietary funds.

General Long-Term Debt Account Group

This account group is used to account for general long-term debt and certain other liabilities
that are not specific liabilities of proprietary funds.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. All governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and
current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Their reported fund balance
(net current assets) is considered a measure of "available spendable resources." Operating
statements of these funds present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and
decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they
are said to present a summary of sources and uses of "available spendable resources" during
a period.

All proprietary funds and nonexpendable trust funds are accounted for on the flow of
economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all
liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with the operation of these funds are
included on the balance sheet. Their reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated
into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Operating statements of these
funds present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in
the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the
timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

All governmental fund types are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Their revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (when they become
measurable and available as net current assets). "Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Sales, gasoline
and motor fuel, beer and liquor wholesale, room occupancy and mixed drink taxes are
considered "measurable” at the point of sale and are recognized as revenue at that time. All
other intergovernmental revenues are measurable when received and are recorded as
revenue at that time. Property taxes are levied June 1 and the revenue from that levy is
recognized in the following fiscal year beginning July 1, the year in which the tax revenues
are intended to finance (see Note 2). Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and
forfeitures, and other revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they
are generally not measurable until actually received.

(continued)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when
the related fund liability is incurred. However, an exception to this general rule would
include principal and interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due.

All proprietary and nonexpendable trust funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are
recognized at the time liabilities are incurred. The reserve method is used to estimate the

~ allowance for doubtful accounts for electric, water and sewer service receivables. The City
applies all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict or contradict Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. The
City has elected not to adopt the FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after
November 30, 1989, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting”.

d. Budgets and Budge Accountin

The City follows the procedures outlined below in establishing the budgetary data reflected
in the financial statements.

1) Prior to April 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. Also, a six-year
capital budget is presented in conjunction with the operating budget.

2) A public hearing is conducted at the Municipal Building to obtain taxpayer comments.

3) Prior to July 1, the budgets for all governmental funds are legally enacted through
passage of an ordinance by City Council.

4)  The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments
within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund
must be approved by the City Council. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations
at the fund level.

5)  Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the
year for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, and Capital
Projects Fund. Budgetary control is also achieved for the Debt Service Fund through
general obligation bond indenture provisions.

6) The budgets for all governmental funds are legally adopted on a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP),
except that in the General, Special Revenue, and Capital Projects Funds,
encumbrances are treated as budgeted expenditures in the year the commitment to
purchase is incurred. The budget and actual comparisons presented in Exhibit 3 in
the accompanying financial report includes all governmental funds whose budgets

(continued)
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were legally enacted by City Council through passage of the appropriation ordinance.
The adjustments necessary to convert budgetary basis to GAAP in Exhibit 3 represent
the net change in encumbrances outstanding at the beginning and end of the fiscal
year. Budgeted amounts reflected in the accompanying budget and actual
comparison are as originally adopted or as amended by the City Council. There were
no supplemental appropriations required during fiscal 2001.

7) Al appropriations which are not expended or encumbered lapse at year end.

sh an h Equivalen

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits in the State of Tennessee's Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP) as well as cash on hand and on deposit. Withdrawals in excess of
$500,000 generally require 24-hour notice to the LGIP. The LGIP is a SEC 2a-7-like fund and
the amount stated is based on the LGIP share price. The fund is reported at its amortized
book value and the City is exempted from sharing in any realized gains or losses of the fund.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be a cash equivalent.

Investments

Investments are comprised of corporate stock held in the Scholarship Fund, a
nonexpendable trust fund, and are stated at the fair value based upon quoted market price.

nbilled A nts Receivabl

In the Electric Fund, an enterprise fund, an estimated amount has been recorded for
services rendered but not yet billed as of the close of the fiscal year. The receivable was
computed by taking the cycle billings the City sent to customers in July and prorating the
amount of days applicable to the current fiscal year.

Inventori nd Prepai m

Inventories are valued, maintained, and issued using the average cost method. The costs of
inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the City are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the event
of termination, an employee is paid for accumulated vacation leave; however, accumulated
sick pay is not paid.

(continued)
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The total earned but unused vacation benefits for the City is $1,360,644 at the end of fiscal
2001. Of the earned but unused amount, no portion required recording as a current liability;
however, expected future demands of $1,062,541 on financial resources have been recorded
in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group.

Vacation benefits are accrued in the period they are earned in proprietary funds and
reported as a fund liability.

j. Fixed Assets and Long-Term Liabilities

Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations (general fixed assets) are accounted
for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group, rather than in governmental funds. Public
domain general fixed assets (infrastructure) consisting of certain improvements other than
buildings including; roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage
systems, lighting systems and other assets that are immovable and of value only to the City,
are not capitalized along with other general fixed assets. Fixed assets are valued at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated
fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date donated. Assets in
the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated.

Fixed assets of the proprietary funds are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at fair market
value at date of gift, if donated, except in the Electric Fund, an Enterprise Fund, where in
accordance with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission contributed assets are recorded
at zero cost. Depreciation of all exhaustible property, plant and equipment used by
proprietary funds are charged as an expense against their operations. Accumulated
depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets.

Depreciation recognized on assets acquired or constructed through grants externally
restricted for capital acquisitions are closed to the appropriate contributed capital account.
Net income (loss) adjusted by the amount of depreciation on fixed assets acquired in this
manner is closed to Retained Earnings.

Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 33 1/3 - 50 years
Improvements 12 1/2 - 40 years
Equipment 1 - 20 years

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend the assets life are not included in the general fixed assets account group
or capitalized in the proprietary funds. Improvements that materially add to the value of an
asset are capitalized and in proprietary funds depreciated over the remaining useful life of
the related fixed asset.

(continued)
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For proprietary fund assets, interest is capitalized on construction costs incurred with tax-
exempt debt using the interest rate on borrowed funds. The amount of interest cost
incurred on tax-exempt debt is reduced by the amount of interest earnings for the year.
Interest is capitalized on construction costs incurred with taxable debt using the average
interest rate on the borrowed funds. The capitalization period is from the date of the
borrowing until the construction period is complete.

Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from governmental funds are accounted for in
the General Long-Term Debt Account Group, not in the governmental funds. Because of
their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental fund types
exclude amounts represented by noncurrent liabilities. Since they do not affect net current
assets, such long-term amounts are not recognized as governmental fund type expenditures
or fund liabilities.

The long-term debt of governmental funds is recorded at face value in the general long-term
debt account group. Other governmental fund obligations not expected to be financed with
current available financial resources are also recorded in the general long-term debt account
group. Long-term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary funds are recorded as
liabilities in the appropriate funds.

Interfund Transactions

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year which are not due within one year are referred to as
"advances to/from other funds"” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other
outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds".

Advances between funds are offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable
governmental funds to indicate they are not available for appropriation and are not
expendable available financial resources. Nonrecurring or nonroutine transfers of equity
between funds are treated as residual equity transfers and are reported as additions to or
reductions from fund balance or retained earnings, as applicable. All other transfers are
treated as operating transfers and are included in the results of operations of both
governmental and proprietary funds.

Fund Equity

Reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropriable or are legally
segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change. The proprietary fund’s contributed capital
represents equity acquired through capital grants and capital contributions from other funds,
developers or customers in prior fiscal years.

(continued)
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Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General,
Special Revenue and Capital Project Funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are
reported as reservations of fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities.

Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenue represents amounts that have been collected or billed in advance of
revenue recognition. In the General Fund, revenue from the June 1 tax levy is recognized in
the following fiscal year beginning on July 1. Refer to Note 2. Grant revenues are
recognized when an expenditure is made and any grant proceeds received in excess of
amounts expended are deferred until a qualifying expenditure is made. At June 30, 2001,
deferred revenue from grant proceeds included $30,194 recorded in the School Fund and
$53,409 recorded in the Grant Fund, both special revenue funds. Other deferred revenues
consisted of amounts collected before June 30, 2001 for fiscal 2002 comprised of $17,270 in
miscellaneous collections accounted for in the General Fund and $7,578 for school tuition
recorded in the School Fund.

$1,281,500 in local option sales taxes has been received from a local federal government
contractor based upon an audit assessment by the Tennessee Department of Revenue. The
taxpayer has contested the audit assessment and has filed legal action to obtain a refund of
the remitted sales taxes. If the court rules in the taxpayer’s favor, the City would be
required to refund its share of the sales tax collections back to the State. Due to the
uncertainty of this matter, the City awaiting final resolution by the courts has recorded the
contested sales tax collections as deferred revenue. At fiscal year end, $940,500 and
$341,000 in local sales tax collections were recorded as deferred revenue in the General
Fund and the School Fund, respectively.

nd Discounts/Issuance Cos

In governmental fund types, bond discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the current
period. Bond discounts and issuance costs for proprietary fund types are deferred and
amortized over the term of the bonds using the straight-line method, which approximates
the effective interest method. Bond discounts are presented as a reduction of the face
amount of bonds payable, whereas issuance costs are recorded as deferred charges.

Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year, which was summarized from the 2000
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, have been presented in selected sections of the
accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the

(continued)
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City's financial position and operations and is not intended to present all information
necessary for a fair presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Comparative (i.e. presentation of prior year totals by fund type) data have not
been presented in each of the statements since their inclusion would make the statements
unduly complex and difficult to read. Certain reclassifications have been made to make 2000
data comparable to that of 2001.

PROPERTY TAX

The City's property tax is levied each June 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1
for all real and personal property located in the City. The revenue from that levy is recognized in
the following fiscal year beginning July 1, the year in which it is intended to finance, and is
reflected as deferred revenue on the current year's General Fund balance sheet. The amount of
property taxes recorded as deferred revenue in the General Fund at June 30, 2001 is $13,237,030.

Assessed values are reviewed and approved by the State of Tennessee at the following rates of
assumed market value:

Public Utility Property 55% (Telecommunications & Railroads 40%)
Industrial and Commercial Property

Real 40%

Personal 30%
Residential Property 25%

The last reappraisal was completed for the list as of January 1, 1998 (recognized in the fiscal year
beginning July 1, 1998). The assessed value for the list as of January 1, 2000, was $504,672,547.
The appraised value was $1,684,771,869 making the total assessed value approximately 30
percent of the total appraised value.

Taxes were levied at a rate of $2.57 per $100 of assessed value. Taxes are due in one payment on
June 1 (levy date) and delinquent on August 1 (lien date) each tax year. Current tax collections of
$12,585,185 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 were approximately 97 percent of the tax levy.

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

DOE has three major facilities in Oak Ridge that represent the largest activity at any one location
within the nationwide DOE complex. Oak Ridge National Laboratory (ORNL), one of the nation's
largest multipurpose research centers, develops safe, economic, and environmentally acceptable
technologies for efficient production and use of energy. ORNL enhances area wide economic
growth and development through its technology transfer program to private sector industries, as
well as, sophisticated needs and uses for federal and private environmental/hazardous waste
management, metals and ceramics technologies, and space-age tool and die industries. The
former Oak Ridge Gaseous Diffusion Plant is a focal point for developing hazardous waste
management impoundment and storage. Oak Ridge Y-12 plant is a highly sophisticated

(continued)
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manufacturing and developmental engineering organization engaged primarily in programs vital to
national defense. A significant number of the City's residents are employed by BWXT, Inc., UT-
Battelle and Bechtel Jacobs, the contractors which operate the three major facilities.

From incorporation through 1986, the City of Oak Ridge received financial assistance and in-lieu of
tax payments from the United States Department of Energy (DOE) or its predecessor agencies.
The annual payments were provided by contractual agreement, subject to congressional
appropriation. In fiscal year 1986, the City received a settlement of $23,184,600 from DOE which
ended the financial assistance and represented a ten-year lump sum settlement for in-lieu of tax.
In the last quarter of fiscal 1996, the annual in-lieu of tax payments from DOE resumed. The City
received $1,143,832 from DOE in tax payments in fiscal 2001.

On May 1, 2000, DOE transferred ownership of a water treatment plant located within Oak Ridge
to the City Of Oak Ridge. Upon transfer of the water plant, the City began selling potable and raw
water to DOE facilities. The rate charged by the City for water utilized by DOE is outlined under a
ten-year contract and includes inflationary rate escalators. Water sales to DOE account for
approximately 35% of the City’s total water revenues.

RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Description

Employees of the City of Oak Ridge are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP),
an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessee
Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and
disability benefits. Employees working in the school system are members of a separate plan
administrated by the TCRS. Benefits are determined by a formula using the member’s high five-
year average salary and years of service. Members become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with
5 years of service or at any age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available
to vested members at the age of 55. Disability benefits are available to active members with 5
years of service who became disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment. There is no
service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury occurring while the
member was in the performance of duty. Active members on June 1, 1994 became vested after 5
years of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapter 34-37
of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State statutes are amended by the Tennesse General
Assembly. Cost of living adjustments (COLA) are provided each July based on the percentage
change in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) during the previous calendar year. No COLA is granted
if the CPI increase is less than .50%. The maximum annual COLA is capped at 3.0%. Political
subdivisions such as the City of Oak Ridge participate in the TCRS as individual entities and are
liable for all costs associated with the operation and administration of their plan. Benefit
improvements are not applicable to a political subdivision unless approved by the chief governing
body.

(continued)
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The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the PSPP, That report may be obtained by writing to Tennessee
Treasury Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10" Fioor Andrew Jackson Building,
Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at www.treasury.state.tn.us.

- Funding Status and Progress

The City’s plan is noncontributory and has assumed employee contributions up to 5.0% of annual
covered payroll. A small number of employees whose contribution rate was greater than 5.0%
prior to the change to the adoption to noncontributory still contribute the excess over 5.0%.

The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2001 was 6.80% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan
members is set by state statute. The contribution requirement for the City of Oak Ridge is
established and may be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ending June 30, 2001, the City’s annual pension cost of $893,521 to TCRS was equal
to the City’s required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part
of the June 30, 1999 actuarial valuation using the frozen initial liability actuarial cost method.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) rate of return on investment of
present and future assets of 7.5% a year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of
5.5% annual rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the effects
of inflation on salaries), (c) projected 4.5% annual increase in the Social Security wage base, and
(d) projected post retirement increases of 3.0% annually. The actuarial value of assets was
determined using techniques that smooth the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of
total investments over a five-year period. The City’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at June
30, 1999 was 16 years.

An actuarial valuation will be performed as of July 1, 2001 which will establish subsequent
contribution rates. Actuarial assumptions used in this valuation will be determined as of the June
30, 2000 experience study.

Trend Information
Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) AP ntribut; ligati
6/30/01 $ 893,521 100.00% $0
6/30/00 $ 726,802 100.00% $ 0
6/30/99 $ 699,953 100.00% $0
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Required Supplemen Information
The Schedule of Funding Progress is presented below (dollar amounts in thousands)
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Covered UAAL as a

Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Ratio Payroll Percentage

Date Assets Liability (UAAL) of Covered
(AAL) Payroll

(a) (b) (b)-(a) (a/b) (c) __((b-a)c)
7/01/99 $ 46,449 $ 46,795 $ 346 99.26% $ 12,086 2.86%
6/30/97 $ 40,209 $ 40,209 $ 0 100.00%  $ 10,825 0.00%
6/30/95 $ 32,352 $ 32,650 $ 298 99.09%  $ 10,165 2.93%

Oak Ridge School System Employees - Retirement Plan

Non-Teaching Personnel
Plan Description

Non-teaching employees working in the Oak Ridge Schoo! system are covered in a separate
retirement plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS), an agent
multiple-employer Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP) that acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for political subdivisions in the State. The plan description is the same as the
one outlined above for City employees not working in the school system with the exception that a
reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members who are at least 55 years of age or have
25 years of service and members joining the system prior to July 1, 1979 were vested after four
years of service. Benefit improvements are not applicable to employees in the School system
unless approved by the Board of Education.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the TCRS for the year ended June 30, 2001, may be
obtained at the following address: Tennessee Treasury Department, Tennessee Consolidated
Retirement System, 10™ Floor, Andrew Jackson State Office Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or
can be accessed at www.treasury.state.tn.us.

Funding Policy

The Oak Ridge Schools plan is a contributory plan whereby the employee contributes 5% of
earnable compensation and the employer is responsible for the remaining contribution. The School
Fund is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2001, was 3.96% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan
members are set by State statute. Contribution requirements for the Schools are established and
may be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees.

(continued)
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Annual Pension Cost

For the year ending June 30, 2001, Oak Ridge Schools’ annual pension cost of $185,579 to TCRS
was equal to Oak Ridge Schools’ required and actual contributions. The required contribution was
determined as part of the June 30, 1999, actuarial valuation using the frozen initial liability actuarial
cost method. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) rate of return on
investment of present and future assets of 7.5% a year compounded annually, (b) projected salary
increases of 5.5% annual rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to
the effects of inflation on salaries), (c) projected 4.5% annual increase in the Social Security wage
base, and (d) projected post retirement increases of 3.0% annually. The actuarial value of assets
was determined using techniques that smooth the effect of short-term volatility in the market value
of equities over a five-year period. Amortized book value was used for fixed income securities.
Oak Ridge Schools’ unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount
on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 1999, was 16 years.

An actuarial valuation will be performed as of July 1, 2001 which will establish subsequent
contribution rates. Actuarial assumptions used in this valuation will be determined as of the June
30, 2000 experience study.

Trend Information
Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
6/30/01 $ 185,579 100.00% $0
6/30/00 $ 152,813 100.00% $0
6/30/99 $ 158,295 100.00% $0
ir lementary Information

The Schedule of Funding Progress is presented below (dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Covered UAAL as a

Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Ratio Payroll Percentage

Date Assets Liability (UAAL) of Covered
(AAL) Payroll

(a) (b) (b)-(a) (a/b) ()  __((b-a)c)
6/30/99 $ 12,816 $ 13,365 $ 549 95.89% $ 4,473 12.27%
6/30/97 $ 10,974 $ 10,974 $ O 100.00% $ 4,156 0.00%
6/30/95 $ 8820 $ 9,034 $ 215 97.62% $ 3,413 6.29%
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Teaching Personnel

Plan Description

The Oak Ridge Schools contribute to the State Employees, Teachers and Higher Education
Employees Pension Plan (SETHEPP), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS). The plan description is
the same as the one outlined above for non-teaching school employees. Benefit provisions are
established by State statute found in Title 8, Chapter 34-37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated
(TCA). State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General Assembly.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the SETHEPP. That report may be obtained at the following
address: Tennessee Treasury Department, Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System, 10 Floor,
Andrew Jackson State Office Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at
www.treasury.state.tn.us.

Funding Policy

Most teachers are required by State statute to contribute 5.0% of salary to the plan. The Oak
Ridge Schools are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The rate for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2001, was 3.72% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements
of the Schools are established and may be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees. The Schools’
contributions to TCRS for the years ending June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $717,326,
$991,904, and $973,858, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Retired employees from the City, excluding employees working in the school system, may continue
their individual or family hospitalization insurance coverage through the City, but must reimburse
the City at 75% of the premium costs. During fiscal 2001, the City contributed $21,753 toward
retirees insurance premium costs with 19 retirees receiving the benefit at fiscal year end. The City
funds its contribution of the retirees insurance premiums on a pay-as-you-go basis.

The Schools will provide post-retirement heaith benefits for retired professional employees for a
period of up to 5 consecutive years foliowing retirement if required criteria has been satisfied.
With proper notification, for professional employees retiring at age 60, or after 30 years of
creditable service in the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System with at least 10 years as a
teacher in the Oak Ridge Schools, the individual insurance premium will be paid by the schools for
5 years or until the retiree reaches age 65. Qualified retired employees requiring family coverage
must pay the additional premium costs. Retired employees not meeting the required criteria may
continue in the Schools hospitalization insurance program until age 65; however, the retiree must
pay the full premium cost.

(continued)
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Beginning January 1, 2000, the Schools joined the State of Tennessee Group Health Insurance
Plan. Retirees have health insurance premiums deducted directly from their TCRS monthly pension
benefits. TCRS will pay the following percentage of the individual premium based on years of
service. With 30 years or more of service TCRS pays 45% of the premium, 20 to 29 years of
service TCRS pays 35% of the premium and with less than 20 years of service TCRS pays 25% of
the premium. The Schools will reimburse qualified retirees their individual premium costs. During
fiscal 2001, the Schools reimbursed approximately $48,510 to 31 retirees.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

For collection economy, the Electric Fund purchases the utility customer receivables from the
Waterworks Fund and accounts receivable from the Solid Waste Fund for charges on residential
refuse service. The Electric Fund is reimbursed by these funds for their uncollectible accounts.
Billing and collecting expenses or expenditures are allocated among the three funds. Customers
are billed for services monthly on a cyclical basis. Unbilled revenue for utility services rendered but
not yet billed as of the close of the fiscal year in the amount of $1,089,797 was recorded in the
Electric Fund at June 30, 2001.

Receivables at June 30, 2001 consist of the following:

Customer Gross Allowance For Net

Fund Taxes Accounts Interest Receivables _Uncoliectibles Receivables
General $12,806,658 $ 677,370 $225,245 $13,709,273 $  (483,000) $13,226,273
Special Revenue - 22,901 - 22,901 -— 22,901
Capital Projects — 35,000 —— 35,000 - 35,000
Enterprise --- 5,847,392 - 5,847,392 (437,260) 5,410,132
Nonexpendable ,
Trust - - 10,159 10,159 ot 10,159
Total $12.806.658 §6.582,663 $235404 $19,624725 § (920.260) §18,704.465

EPOSITS AND INVESTMENT:

The unrestricted cash of the City's various funds are pooled for investment purposes as described
in Note 8. State statutes authorize the City and Oak Ridge Schools to invest in obligations of the
Federal government, State government, State investment pool, Certificates of Deposit and other
time deposits, and repurchase agreements.
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Deposits

At year-end, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $7,946,196. Deposits include a
certificate of deposit accounted for in the Scholarship Fund, a nonexpendable trust fund, recorded
at its fair value of $283,903 at year-end. At June 30, 2001, all City deposits were held in financial
institutions that participate in the Tennessee Bank Collateral Pool administered by the Treasurer’s
Office of the State of Tennessee. Financial institutions participating in the bank collateral pool
determine the aggregate balance of their public funds and report that to the Treasurer’s Office.
The amount of collateral required to secure these deposits must be equal to the average daily
balance of public deposits held. Participating financial institutions pledge the collateral securities
required to protect their public fund accounts to the State Treasurer on behalf of the bank
collateral pool. The securities pledged to protect these accounts are pledged in the aggregate
rather than against each individual account. If any member financial institution fails, the entire
collateral poo! becomes available to satisfy the claims of governmental entities. Since the bank
collateral pool covered all City deposits at year-end, they are classified in category 1 as insured.

Investments

The Oak Ridge Schools held, as trustee, 752 shares of donated common stock of Bank of America
Corporation at fiscal year end. The carry value of the stock was presented at its fair value of
$45,142 at June 30, 2001 and is accounted for in the Scholarship Fund. During fiscal 2001, the
Bank of America common stock increased by $12,619. The unrealized gain in market value has
been recorded as part of the investment income in the Scholarship Fund. The level of risk assumed
by the City for this investment is Category 1 since the investment is registered and held by an
agent in the School’s name.

The City’s remaining investments at fiscal year end were held in the State Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP). The responsibility for conducting the LGIP’s investment program resides
with the State Treasurer and investments are made in instruments authorized by Tennessee Code
Annotated, Section 9-4-602. The LGIP is a SEC 2a-7-like fund and the carrying value of the City's
investment held by the LGIP at fiscal year end of $15,510,880 is based on the LGIP share price.
The City is exempted from sharing in any unrealized gains or losses of the LGIP.

POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a pooled cash and investment account that is available for use by all funds,
except those restricted by state statutes or other legal requirements. Each fund’s positive equity in
the pooled cash and investment account is presented as “Cash and Cash Equivalents” or
“Investments” on the balance sheet as applicable. Negative equity balances have been reclassified
and are reflected as due to/from other funds. Interest income and expense are allocated to the
various funds based upon their average monthly equity balances.
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LONG-TERM DEBT
The following is a summary of debt transactions of the City for the year ended June 30, 2001:

Balance Retirements/ Balance
7/01/00 Additions Reductions 6/30/01
General Long-Term Debt
Account Group:
General Obligation Bonds $ 48,890,000 $22,480,000 $ 41,855,000 $ 29,515,000
Capital Outlay Notes 235,199 — 74,607 160,592
TN Municipal Bond Fund Loan 1,189,558 —_— 22,262 1,167,296
TN-LOANSs 3,213,000 18,570,000 - 21,783,000
Vacation Benefits 1,024,232 695,118 656,809 1,062,541
Total General Long-Term
Debt Account Group 54,551,989 41,745,118 42,608,678 53,688,429
Proprietary Funds:
Electric Fund:
Revenue Bonds 11,060,000 - 5,040,000 6,020,000
Revenue Bonds Sold to TVA 4,000,000 2,000,000 6,000,000 —
TN-LOANSs 2,905,000 10,240,056 100,000 13,045,056
Waterworks Fund:
TN Local Development Authority Notes 142,230 — 11,860 130,370
TN Municipal Bond Fund Loan 5,863,942 - 109,738 5,754,204
TN-LOANSs 2,432,000 - - 2,432,000
State Revolving Fund Program Loan 7,152,603 5,266,444 - 12,419,047
Golf Course Fund:
General Obligation Bonds 7,130,000 - 80,000 7,050,000
City Equipment Replacement Rental Fund:
TN Municipal Bond Fund Loan 1,934,027 184,581 117,718 2,000,890
School Equipment Replacement
Rental Fund:
Capital Lease Obligations 304,881 — 53.913 250,968
Total Proprietary Funds 42,924,683 17,691,081 11,513,229 49,102,535

Total Changes in Long-Term Debt § 97476672 § 50436100 § 54121907 §102.790964
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The annual requirement to amortize all bonds and notes outstanding as of June 30, 2001, including
interest payments (which total $57,397,862), are as follows:

General Long-Term Debt Proprietary
Year Ending Notes Revenue Notes, Loans
June 30, Bonds And Loans Bonds Other Bonds Total
2002 $ 3,641,474 $ 1,176,835 $ 591,806 $ 2,596,707 $ 8,006,912
2003 3,153,665 1,143,409 587,802 3,017,770 7,902,646
2004 3,081,715 1,057,691 588,196 3,024,993 7,752,595
2005 3,121,170 1,058,362 587,821 3,026,378 7,793,731
2006 3,124,515 1,059,063 586,678 3,037,192 7,807,448
2007 3,123,585 1,059,841 589,765 3,038,331 7,811,522
2008 3,123,823 1,060,689 591,828 3,082,981 7,859,321
2009 3,122,275 1,061,565 592,865 3,098,424 7,875,129
2010 3,123,840 1,062,513 592,585 3,094,769 7,873,707
2011 3,114,215 1,063,525 596,060 3,090,697 7,864,497
2012 3,113,500 1,064,609 593,005 3,097,345 7,868,459
2013 2,711,500 1,065,757 598,549 3,104,162 7,479,968
2014 2,072,750 1,702,079 597,480 3,034,428 7,406,737
2015 309,750 3,429,964 599,940 3,485,743 7,825,397
2016 - 3,733,809 600,780 3,498,956 7,833,545
2017 - 3,753,542 - 2,666,259 6,419,801
2018 - 3,752,642 --- 2,692,301 6,444,943
2019 --- 3,356,005 - 2,653,942 6,009,947
2020 - 3,346,181 .- 2,666,747 6,012,928
2021 - 3,346,315 - 2,688,160 6,034,475
2022 - 1,270,749 - 2,518,841 3,789,590
2023 - 102,615 .- 1,821,147 1,923,762
2024 - - - 727,255 727,255
2025 - - .- 737,454 737,454
2026 --- --- -ee 742,716 742,716
2027 - - - 753,398 753,398
2028 - - - 762,390 762,390
2029 - - - 773,092 773,092
2030 - ____ 781,952 _____ 781,952

Total $ 30937777 § 40,727,760 § 8895250 § 69,314,530 §$ 156,875317
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General Long-Term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

The following is a summary of the City's general obligation bonded debt transactions for the year
ended June 30, 2001:

General ObligationBonds

Balance Balance

7/01/00 Additions Retirements 6/30/01

Series 1992, GO Refunding Bonds $9,055,000 $ - $ 9,055,000 $ -
Refunded in Fiscal 2001

Series 1993, GO Refunding Bonds 3,600,000 - 115,000 3,485,000
Issue: $3,600,000, Maturing 2011
Interest Rate: 4.10% - 5.05%
Part refund Series 1991 GO Bond Issue

Series 1994, GO Refunding Bonds 150,000 - 150,000 -

Series 1995, School Bonds 10,635,000 - 9,925,000 710,000
Part Advance Refund FY 2001
Interest Rate 4.9%-5%, Mature 2003
Renovation of High and 2 Middle Schools

Series 1996, Public Improvement Bonds 15,450,000 - 13,545,000 1,905,000
Part Advance Refund FY 2001
Interest Rate: 5.00%, Mature 2004
Construction of a Central Service Center
Complex, street construction, recreation
and building improvements

Series 2000, General Obligation Bonds 10,000,000 --- 9,065,0000 935,000
Part Advance Refund FY 2001
Interest Rate: 4.40% - 4.95%, Mature 2007
City and School miscellaneous buiiding,
recreational and street improvements

Series 2001, GO Refunding Bonds - 22,480,000 - 22,480,000
Issue: $22,480,000, Maturing 2015
Interest Yield: 3.56% - 4.83%
Part refund Series 1996 & 2000 GO Bond Issue

Total General Obligation Bonded Debt £.48,890,000 $22,480,000 $41,855,000 § 29,515,000
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General Obligation Bonds

General Obligation Bond Refundings

In late fiscal 2001, the City refunded portions of four outstanding general obligation bond series to
restructure future annual debt service payments while achieving an economic cost savings.
Overall, the refunding is estimated to result in an increase of $5,081,736 in the City’'s aggregate
debt service payments and an economic gain, the difference between the present value of the old
and new debt service payments, of $1,333,384. The debt service amortization was restructured to
reduce the estimated annual debt service payment by $250,000 in fiscal 2002, $800,000 in fiscal
2003, $900,000 in fiscals 2004 to 2012, and by $1,300,000 in fiscals 2013 to 2015. The reduction
in the annual debt service payment in those fiscal years from that of the prior debt was
accomplished by an overall six-year extension in the life of the debt. The annual debt service
payments in fiscals 2016 to 2022 increased accordingly in a level pattern. The original bond
proceeds were primarily used to construct, expand or renovate City and School facilities, including
the construction of a new Elementary School and a new Central Service Center Complex. The life
of the projects continues to exceed the life of the extended debt. The details of the two refunding
transactions are as outlined below.

In April 2001, the City issued $22,480,000 in fixed rate General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series
2001 for the advance refunding of portions of the outstanding fixed rate General Obligation Public
Improvement Bonds Series 1996 and Series 2000. The proceeds of this issue, net an underwriter’s
discount of $168,600, were deposited immediately into an irrevocable trust for the legal defeasance
of the debt. The proceeds include a premium of $642,574. The Bond Trustee immediately
disbursed $66,460 in issuance costs and $47,251 for bond insurance. The advance refunding
resuited in a reduction of the City’s aggregate debt service payments by $3,724,346 over the next
15 years and an economic gain of $808,174. Accordingly, the refunded bonds have been removed
from the City’s financial statements. The principal outstanding at June 30, 2001 on the bonds
refunded was $22,035,000, with $12,970,000 of the Series 1996 being called for redemption on
March 1, 2003 at 101% of par value and $9,065,000 of the Series 2000 being called for redemption
on April 1, 2006 at 100% of par value.

In May 2001, the City issued $18,570,000 in variable rate debt through the TN-LOANs program for
the current refunding of all the outstanding General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 1992 and
the advance refunding of $9,600,000 of outstanding General Obligation School Bonds Series 1995.
The proceeds of this issue were deposited immediately into an irrevocable trust for the legal
defeasance of the debt. The Bond Trustee immediately disbursed $91,929 in issuance costs and
$73,949 for bond insurance. Assuming a 4.25% variable interest rate, the refunding is estimated
to result in an increase of the City’s aggregate debt service payments by $8,806,082 over the next
21 years and an economic gain estimated at $525,210. The average TN-LOANs interest rate,
including fees, has averaged slightly below 4.25% since 1989. Accordingly, the refunded bonds
have been removed from the City’s financial statements. The $8,120,000 in outstanding Series
1992 bonds was redeemed on June 18, 2001. The principal outstanding at June 30, 2001 on the
advance refunded Series 1995 bonds was $9,060,000 with call date of July 1, 2002.
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Debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2001, are as follows:

Fiscal Total
_Year Principal Interest __Requirements
2002 $ 2,280,000 $ 1,361,474 $ 3,641,474
2003 1,870,000 1,283,665 3,153,665
2004 1,875,000 1,206,715 3,081,715
2005 2,000,000 1,121,170 3,121,170
2006 2,090,000 1,034,515 . 3,124,515
2007 2,180,000 943,585 3,123,585
2008 2,280,000 843,823 3,123,823
2009 2,375,000 747,275 3,122,275
2010 2,485,000 638,840 3,123,840
2011 2,610,000 504,215 3,114,215
2012 2,740,000 373,500 3,113,500
2013 2,475,000 236,500 2,711,500
2014 1,960,000 112,750 2,072,750
2015 295,000 14,750 309,750
Total $ 29,515,000 $ 10,422,777 $ 39,937,777

Capital Outlay Notes

During fiscal year 1996, the City borrowed $499,752, classified as capital outlay notes, through the
Tennessee Department of Economic & Community Development for energy efficiency
improvements to Oak Ridge School buildings. The capital outlay notes were issued for seven years
at an annual interest rate of 5%. Permission for the issuance of capital outlay notes was obtained
from the State Director of Local Finance as required by state law. The notes had a principal
balance of $160,592 at June 30, 2001 with debt service requirements to maturity as follows:

Fiscal Total

Year Principal Interest Requirements
2002 $ 78,337 $ 8,030 $ 86,367
2003 82,255 4,112 86,367
Total $ 160,592 $ 12,142 $ 172,734
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Variable Interest Rate Loans:

In fiscal 1995, the City executed a loan agreement with the Tennessee Municipal Bond Fund for
$1,247,994 to fund a grant to the Roane State Foundation for the purpose of purchasing land for a
permanent Roane State Community College campus in Oak Ridge and storm drainage
improvements. Terms of the loan provide for annual principal and monthly interest payments with
the loan maturing in 2023. The loan had a principal balance of $1,167,296 at June 30, 2001.

In fiscal 1998, the City executed a loan agreement through the TN-LOANs program for $3,213,000
for street resurfacing, demolition and remediation of the old central service center site and City and
Schoo! building renovation projects. Principal payments begin in 2014 with maturity in 2016. In
May 2001, the City issued $18,570,000 in variable rate debt through the TN-LOANs program to
refund all the outstanding General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 1992 and refund $9,600,000
of the outstanding General Obligation School Bonds Series 1995. Principal payments begin in 2015
with maturity in 2022. Interest in the TN-LOANs program is paid quarterly.

The loans are to be repaid from General Fund revenues and accordingly, have been recorded in the
General Long-Term Debt Account Group. The interest rate varies on a weekly basis and is
estimated at a 4.5% interest rate. Projected debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Total

Year Principal Interest Requirements
2002 $ 23,813 $ 1,066,655 $ 1,090,468
2003 25,466 1,031,576 1,057,042
2004 27,270 1,030,421 1,057,691
2005 29,176 1,029,186 1,058,362
2006 31,200 1,027,863 1,059,063
2007 33,392 1,026,449 1,059,841
2008 35,753 1,024,936 1,060,689
2009 38,249 1,023,316 1,061,565
2010 40,931 1,021,582 1,062,513
2011 43,798 1,019,727 1,063,525
2012 46,867 1,017,742 1,064,609
2013 50,139 1,015,618 1,065,757
2014 691,124 1,010,955 1,702,079
2015 2,452,442 977,522 3,429,964
2016 2,866,911 866,898 3,733,809
2017 3,010,722 742,820 3,753,542
2018 3,145,326 607,316 3,752,642
2019 2,890,251 465,754 3,356,005
2020 3,010,512 335,669 3,346,181
2021 3,146,145 200,170 3,346,315
2022 1,212,183 58,566 1,270,749
2023 98,626 3,989 102,615
Total $ 22,950,296 $ 17,604,730 $ 40,555,026
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Vacation Benefits

The City records in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group (GLTDAG) that portion of earned
but unused vacation benefits expected to be paid from future resources. Expected future demands
of $1,062,541 for vacation benefits have been recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account
Group.

The proprietary funds financial statements, which require the recording of vacation benefits as
eamed, include $298,103 of long-term vacation benefits payable.

B. Enterprise Fund Notes and Bonds Payable
Electric Fund

Electric System Revenue Bond Refunding

In April 2001, the City issued $15,000,000 in variable rate debt through the TN-LOANs program
for the current refunding of all the outstanding fixed rate Electric System Revenue Refunding
and Improvement Bonds Series 1993 and all the variable rate Electric System Revenue Bonds
sold at private sale to the Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) during fiscal 2000 and 2001, and
for capital improvements. The entire proceeds of the issue were immediately deposited with
the Bond Trustee. The City remitted $609,547 being held as reserve funds for future debt
service payments on the Series 1993 bonds to the Bond Trustee. Of the proceeds, $112,500
was disbursed for issuance costs and $123,436 for bond insurance and surety fees. These costs
were recorded as a Deferred Charge and are being amortized straight-lined over the 29-year life
of the new debt. Of the remaining proceeds, $6,017,606 was immediately utilized to redeem
the bonds sold to TVA, $4,596,061 was utilized to refund the Series 1993 bonds which were
redeemed on May 19, 2001, and $4,759,944 was held by the trustee in the construction account
to fund future capital projects. TN-LOANs is a draw loan program and the City will draw funds
from the trustee as expenditures occur.

Overall, the refunding is estimated to result in a decrease of $3,343,540 in the City’s aggregate
debt service payments and an economic gain, the difference between the present value of the
old and new debt service payments, of $2,143,377. This calculation assumes a 4.25% interest
rate on the TN-LOANs and 6.5% interest rate on the bonds soild to TVA. The average TN-
LOANSs interest rate, including fees, has averaged slightly below 4.25% since 1989. The interest
rate on the bonds sold to TVA varied quarterly based on the weighted average short-term
borrowing rate for TVA plus .5%. The 6.5% caiculation rate for the bonds sold to TVA was
based on the City’s experience during the time frame the bonds were outstanding.

Assuming a 4.25% variable interest rate on the TN-LOANSs, the refunding of the fixed rate
Series 1993 bonds is estimated to result in a decrease of $234,328 in the City’s aggregate debt
service payments and an economic gain of $228,314. The $124,580 difference between the
reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the Series 1993 bonds have been deferred
and will be straight-line amortized as a component of interest-expense over the remaining 12-
year life of the Series 1993 bonds. At year-end, the deferral balance of $122,826 has been
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shown on the balance sheet for the Electric Fund as a deduction to the liability for the
outstanding long-term debt.

Assuming a 4.25% variable interest rate on the TN-LOANs and a 6.5% interest rate on the
bonds sold to TVA, the refunding of the bonds sold to TVA is estimated to result in a decrease
of $3,109,212 in the City’s aggregate debt service payments and an economic gain of
$1,915,063. There was no difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the bonds sold to TVA.

Electric System Revenue Bonds

On October 1, 1996, the City issued $7,000,000 in Electric System Revenue Bonds to refund
$3,700,000 in revenue bonds previously sold at private sale to the Tennessee Valley Authority,
with the remainder utilized for upgrades and expansion of the electric system. Interest rates
ranged from 5.125% to 5.40% and final maturity is March 1, 2016. The unamortized discount
on the bonds at June 30, 2001 is $58,414.

These bond issuances are payable solely from and secured by the income and revenues from
the operation of the electric power distribution system, subject only to the payment of
reasonable and necessary costs of operating, maintaining, repairing and insuring said system.
Debt service requirements to maturity on the Electric System Revenue Bond issuances are
projected as follows:

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Requirements
2002 $ 275,000 $ 316,896 $ 591,896
2003 285,000 302,802 587,802
2004 300,000 288,196 588,196
2005 315,000 272,821 587,821
2006 330,000 256,678 586,678
2007 350,000 239,765 589,765
2008 370,000 221,828 591,828
2009 390,000 202,865 592,865
2010 410,000 182,585 592,585
2011 435,000 161,060 596,060
2012 455,000 138,005 593,005
2013 485,000 113,549 598,549
2014 510,000 87,480 597,480
2015 540,000 59,940 599,940
2016 570,000 30,780 600,780
Total $ 6,020,000 $ 2875250 $ 8,895,250
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Electri m Variable Interest Rate Loan

During fiscal 1998, the City executed a general obligation loan agreement through the TN-
LOANSs program for $3,000,000 for electric system rehabilitation and expansion. The loan is to
be repaid from Electric system revenues and accordingly, has been recorded as a long-term
liability of the Electric Fund. During fiscal 2001, executed a $15,000,000 loan agreement
through TN-LOANs payable solely from and secured by a pledge of Net Revenues derived from
the operations of the Electric System. This loan refunded the outstanding Series 1993 revenue
bonds, refunded the outstanding bonds sold to TVA and provided funding for electric system
rehabilitation and expansion.

Terms of both loan agreements provide for annual principal and quarterly interest instaliments,
with the interest rate varying on a weekly basis. Interest is estimated using a 4.5% interest
rate with projected debt service requirements to maturity as of June 30, 2001 as follows:

Fiscal - Total
Year Principal Interest Requirements
2002 $ 296,148 $ 585,932 $ 882,080
2003 328,455 572,486 900,941
2004 343,695 557,650 901,345
2005 358,935 542,126 901,061
2006 379,175 525,900 905,075
2007 391,001 508,793 899,794
2008 411,241 491,123 902,364
2009 429,895 472,548 902,443
2010 446,722 453,141 899,863
2011 470,375 432,951 903,326
2012 489,028 411,715 900,743
2013 509,268 389,634 898,902
2014 200,000 367,860 567,860
2015 210,000 358,824 568,824
2016 220,000 349,336 569,336
2017 427,974 338,667 766,641
2018 453,214 319,315 772,529
2019 395,949 299,132 695,081
2020 419,842 281,226 701,068
2021 443,736 262,245 705,981
2022 471,043 242,176 713,219
2023 501,763 220,865 722,628
2024 529,070 198,185 727,255
2025 563,203 174,251 ° 737,454
2026 593,923 148,793 742,716
2027 631,470 121,928 753,398
2028 669,017 93,373 762,390
2029 709,977 63,115 773,092
2030 750,937 31,015 781,952
Total $ 13,045,056 $ 9.814,305 $ 22,859,361
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Waterworks Fund
Tennessee Local Development Authority Note

Debt service requirements to maturity for the Tennessee Local Development Authority
Waterworks Fund note payable are as follows:

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Reguirements
2002 $ 12,450 $ 3,511 $ 15,961
2003 13,075 2,888 15,963
2004 13,641 2,247 15,888
2005 14,407 1,553 15,960
2006 15,377 795 16,172
2007 15,936 75 16,011
2008 16,550 --- 16,550
2009 17,155 - 17,155
2010 11,779 — 11,779
Total $ 130,370 $ 11,069 $ 141,439

Variable Interest Rate Loan

During fiscal 1995, the City executed a general obligation loan agreement with the Tennessee
Municipal Bond Fund for $6,152,006 to fund water and wastewater system rehabilitation and
expansion. Terms of the loan agreement provide for annual principal and monthly interest
installments, with the interest rate varying on a weekly basis. The loan matures in 2023.

During fiscal 1998, the City executed a general obligation loan agreement through the TN-
LOANs program for $2,432,000 to fund water and wastewater system rehabilitation and
expansion. Terms of the loan agreements provide for quarterly interest installments with the
interest rate varying on a weekly basis. Principal payments begin in 2014 with maturity in 2016.

The loans are to be repaid from Waterworks Fund revenues and accordingly, have been
recorded as a long-term liability of the Waterworks Fund. The outstanding principal balance on
these loans at June 30, 2001 was $8,186,204. Interest is estimated using a 4.5% interest rate
with projected debt service requirements to maturity as follows:
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Fiscal Total

Year Principal Interest Requirements
2002 $ 117,387 $ 367,844 $ 485,231
2003 125,534 362,524 488,058
2004 134,430 356,835 491,265
2005 143,824 350,742 494,566
2006 153,800 344,225 498,025
2007 164,608 337,254 501,862
2008 176,247 329,794 506,041
2009 188,551 321,807 510,358
2010 201,769 313,262 515,031
2011 215,902 304,118 520,020
2012 231,033 294,333 525,366
2013 247,161 283,863 531,024
2014 746,976 270,852 1,017,828
2015 1,232,958 235,401 1,468,359
2016 1,302,289 179,641 1,481,930
2017 323,978 124,690 448,668
2018 346,674 110,008 456,682
2019 370,949 94,297 465,246
2020 396,888 77,486 474,374
2021 424,655 59,499 484,154
2022 454,417 40,254 494,671
2023 486,174 19,660 505,834
Total $ 8186,204 $ _5178,389 $ 13,364,593

Tennessee State Revolving Fund Loan

During fiscal 1998, the City executed a $11,197,000 loan through the Tennessee State
Revolving Fund (SRF) administered by the Tennessee Department of Environment and
Conservation (TDEC) to finance improvements and expansion of the Wastewater Treatment
Plant, wastewater collection system rehabilitation and wastewater lift station replacements.
Terms of the 20-year loan call for monthly principal and interest payments, using a 4.09% fixed
interest rate. Loan proceeds are drawn as work is completed with principal payments beginning
after the final loan draw. Debt service payments will be funded by Waterworks Fund revenues
from residential and commercial wastewater fees. The City, as do all governmental entities in
the SRF loan program, pledged first it's state-shared tax revenues (state sales, gasoline, beer,
TVA replacement, mixed drinks, alcoholic beverages and income tax) and then the City’s taxing
authority as collateral for the loan. It is not anticipated that revenues from these sources will
be required to fund the debt service on the loan. $9,937,873 has been drawn on the loan as of
June 30, 2001. Principal payments will not begin until all loan proceeds are drawn. It is
anticipated that all loan proceeds will be drawn by June 30, 2002.
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During fiscal 1999, the City received approval of a second loan for $5,000,000 from the SRF
program to complete the Wastewater Treatment Plant and wastewater collection system
rehabilitation. Terms of the loan are the same as outlined above with the exception that the
fixed interest rate for this ioan is 4.04%. As of June 30, 2001, $2,481,174 of loan proceeds had
been drawn. It is anticipated that all loan proceeds will be drawn by June 30, 2002.

A projected amortization schedule for the two loans as of June 30, 2001 is as follows:

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Requirements
2002 $ 80,742 $ 506,424 $ 587,166
2003 413,662 495,718 909,380
2004 430,859 478,521 909,380
2005 448,771 460,609 909,380
2006 467,427 441,953 909,380
2007 486,859 422,521 909,380
2008 507,100 402,280 909,380
2009 528,181 381,199 909,380
2010 550,139 359,241 909,380
2011 573,010 336,370 909,380
2012 596,831 312,549 909,380
2013 621,643 287,737 909,380
2014 647,486 261,894 909,380
2015 674,403 234,977 909,380
2016 702,441 206,939 909,380
2017 731,642 177,738 909,380
2018 762,059 147,321 909,380
2019 793,740 115,640 909,380
2020 826,738 82,642 909,380
2021 861,108 48,272 909,380
2022 714,206 13,090 727,296
Total $ 12,419,047 $ 6,173,635 $ 18,592,682

Golf Course Fund

On August 1, 1998, the City issued $7,275,000 in Golf Course Revenue and Tax Bonds for the
advance refunding of $6,100,000 in outstanding Capital Outlay Notes issued to construct and
equip the Golf Course and for capital improvements. The entire proceeds of the issue, net of
an underwriter’s discount of $80,025, were immediately deposited with the Bond Trustee. Of
the proceeds, $56,516 was disbursed for issuance costs and $914,087 was disbursed to the
City for capital improvements. The remaining proceeds of $6,224,372 was used to purchase
U.S. government securities which were deposited into an irrevocable trust for retirement of all
the refunded notes. As a result of the advance refunding, the refunded notes were considered
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defeased and the liability for those notes were removed from the Golf Course Fund, an
Enterprise Fund. The remaining outstanding refunded notes were redeemed on June 1, 2001.

The $126,388 difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the
capital outlay notes has been deferred and is being straight-line amortized as a component of
interest expense over the original remaining 9-year life of the notes. At year-end, the deferral
balance of $85,428 has been shown on the balance sheet for the Golf Course Fund as a
deduction to the liability for the outstanding bonds.

The general obligation bonds are primarily payable from the net revenues of the operation of
the golf course and sale of land surrounding the course for residential development.
Accordingly, the bonds have been recorded as a liability of the Golf Course Fund. Interest
rates range from 4.4% - 4.9% and final maturity is June 1, 2023. The unamortized discount
on the bonds at June 30, 2001 is $70,890. Debt service requirements to maturity for the
bonds as of June 30, 2001, are as follows:

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Requirements
2002 $ 85,000 $ 327,895 $ 412,895
2003 165,000 324,155 489,155
2004 175,000 316,895 491,895
2005 180,000 309,195 489,195
2006 190,000 301,275 491,275
2007 200,000 292,915 492,915
2008 245,000 284,115 529,115
2009 265,000 273,335 538,335
2010 275,000 261,675 536,675
2011 285,000 249,575 534,575
2012 300,000 237,035 537,035
2013 315,000 223,535 538,535
2014 330,000 209,360 539,360
2015 345,000 194,180 539,180
2016 360,000 178,310 538,310
2017 380,000 161,570 541,570
2018 410,000 143,710 553,710
2019 460,000 124,235 584,235
2020 480,000 101,925 581,925
2021 510,000 78,645 : 588,645
2022 530,000 53,655 583,655
2023 565,000 27,685 592,685
TOTAL $ 7,050,000 $4,674,875 $ 11,724,875
(continued)
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Internal Service Fund Notes Payable

On September 30, 1999, the City executed a general obligation loan agreement through the
Tennessee Municipal Bond Fund loan program for $2,326,575 for the acquisition of four fire trucks
and year 2000 compliant computer hardware and software. The loan is to be repaid from revenues
in the City Equipment Replacement Rental Fund, an internal service fund, an accordingly a long-
term liability for the $2,000,890 outstanding loan balance at June 30, 2001 has been recorded in
that Fund. Terms of the loan agreement provide for annual principal and monthly interest
installments, with the interest rate varying on a weekly basis. Interest is estimated using a 4.5%
interest rate with projected debt service requirements to maturity as of June 30, 2001 as foliows:

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Requirements
2002 $ 123,899 $ 89,475 $ 213,374
2003 130,403 83,870 214,273
2004 137,250 77,970 215,220
2005 144,455 71,761 216,216
2006 152,039 65,226 217,265
2007 160,021 58,348 218,369
2008 168,422 51,109 219,531
2009 177,264 43,489 220,753
2010 186,571 35,470 222,041
2011 196,366 27,030 223,396
2012 206,675 18,146 224,821
2013 217,525 8,796 226,321
Total $ 2,000,890 $ 630,600 $ 2,631,580

CAPITAL LEASES

During fiscal year 1998, the Oak Ridge Schools financed the purchase of nine school buses for a
principal amount of $503,502 through the School Equipment Replacement Rental Fund. Terms of
the capital lease required an initial payment of $100,000 and seven annual payments of $72,693
at 6.16% interest. The accumulated depreciation on the nine school buses was $128,671 at June
30, 2001. The future principal and interest payments as of June 30, 2001, are as follows:

Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 290,772
Less: Amount Representing

Interest 39,804
Present Value of Minimum Lease

Payment $§ 250968
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12.

FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in the general fixed asset account group for the City for the year ended
June 30, 2001 is as follows:

Balance Balance
__7/01/00 _Additions _ Retirements —6/30/01
Land $ 1,723,002 $ 833 $ 106,854 $ 1,616,981
Buildings 61,732,700 1,388,980 1,165,816 61,855,864
Improvements Other
Than Buildings 5,665,993 701,286 - 6,267,279
Machinery and
Equipment 7.419,007 740,799 181.887 7.877.919
Total $76,440,702 § 2,831,898 $ 1.454.557 $77.818,043

The following is a summary of proprietary fund type fixed assets for the City at June 30, 2001:

internal
Enterprise Service Total
Land $ 1877066 $ - $ 1,877,066
Buildings 22,161,538 - 22,161,538
Improvements Other Than Buildings 17,097,715 - 17,097,715
Machinery and Equipment 100,809,740 9,529,042 110,338,782
Construction-In-Progress 3,064,175 —— 3,064,175
Total 145,010,234 9,529,042 154,539,276
Less Accumulated Depreciation 41,920,054 4,728,267 46,648 321
Total $ 103000180 § 4,800775 $ 107,890,955

Depreciation expense amounted to $5,084,740 in the proprietary fund types with $4,245,532 in
the Enterprise Funds and $839,208 in the Internal Service Funds for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2001.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

The Electric Fund’s restricted assets include customer utility deposits, construction funds for system
expansion and rehabilitation and funds set aside to satisfy legal covenants regarding debt service
on Electric Fund long-term debt issuances. The Waterworks Fund’s restricted assets include
contractor retainage deposits, the City’s share of funding for water and wastewater construction
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surrounding a state roadway project within Oak Ridge and funds set aside to satisfy legal
covenants regarding debt service on Waterworks Fund long-term debt issuances.

The “construction account” is used to report those proceeds of debt issuances that are restricted
for use in construction projects as outlined in the corresponding issuing debt resolution. The
"current debt service" account is used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service
payments over the next twelve months. The Enterprise Funds restricted assets at June 30, 2001
are as indicated below:

Electric Fund ~ Waterworks Fund __Total

Deposits $ 644,525 $ 572,210 $ 1,216,735
Construction account 659,444 59,148 718,592
Current debt service account 327,239 1,086 328,325
Total $ 1,631,208 §___ 632449 § 2,263,607

13. INTERFUND RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2001, is as follows:

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Grant $ 1,434,244
General Capital Projects 256,463
General Waterworks 2,098,627
General Golf Course 831,960
General Inventory 335,679
Economic Diversification General 2,000
Solid Waste General 279,940
Electric General 86,442
City Equipment Replacement Rental General 1,212
Scholarship School 1,738
Total $ 5,328,305

Advances to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Inventory $ 112,500
Electric Inventory 690,000
Waterworks Inventory 330,000
Total $ 1,132,500
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14.

15.

OPERATING TRANSFERS
Interfund operating transfers for the current fiscal year were as follows:

Operating Transfers:

Transfers In Transfers Out Amount
Economic Diversification Fund General Fund $ 1,305,098
Economic Diversification Fund Waterworks Fund 147,085
Economic Diversification Fund Electric Fund 176,652
State Street Aid Fund General Fund 500,000
Grant Fund Capital Projects Fund 92,823
Solid Waste Fund General Fund 918,163
School Fund General Fund 9,553,768
Debt Service Fund General Fund 4,747,305
Debt Service Fund State Street Aid Fund 57,094
Debt Service Fund School Fund 80,206
Debt Service Fund Capital Projects Fund 216,161
Capital Projects Fund General Fund 410,000
Capital Projects Fund School Fund 7,883
Total $ 18,212,238
Transfers Between Primary Government and Component Units:

Transfers In Transfers Out Amount
Component Unit: Primary Government:
Convention & Visitors Bureau Economic Diversification Fund $ 196,719

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The City maintains four Enterprise Funds that provide electric, water, sewer and emergency
communication services and operation of a golf course. Operations accounted for in the Enterprise
Funds are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises and it is
generally intended that the costs of providing services to the general public on a continuing basis
be recovered primarily through user charges. Certain segments of the City's enterprise operations
have incurred net operating losses as projected. In fiscal 2001, cash reserves were adequate to
finance these losses as well as to finance capital maintenance programs in accordance with City
policy. Selected segment information for the year ended June 30, 2001, is as follows:
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Operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Depreciation
Other
Operating Income (Loss)
Net nonoperating
revenue (expense)
Operating transfers out

Net income (Loss)

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net working capital

Total assets
Total liabilities

Fund equity

Capital contributions
Additions
Deletions

Net additions (deletions) to

Long-term liabilities

Emergency
Electric Waterworks Communication Golf Course

Fund Fund District Fund Fund Totals
$ 33,150,688 $ 11,682,035 $ 193,431 $ 1,217,824 $§ 46,243,978
1,439,243 2,423,455 54,815 328,019 4,245,532
29,404,337 7,826,225 246,107 1,284,699 38,861,368
2,307,108 1,332,355 (107,491) (394,894) 3,137,078
(924,061) (624,728) 10,624 (362,600) (1,900,765)
(176,652) (147,085) - - (323,737)
1,206,395 $ 560,542 $ (96,867) $ (757,494) $ 912,576

5,147,585 $ 335,449 $ 208,396
4,775,435

2,695,993 4,186

$ 54873 $§ 5,746,303
947,144 8,422,758

372,150 $_ (2,360,544) $ 204,210

$ (892,271) $  (2,676,455)

$ 40,976,693 $ 64,614,183 $ 277942
24,075,177

23,967,393 4,186

$ 7011161 $ 112,879,979
7,755,826 55,802,582

16,901,516 $ 40,646,790 $ 273,756

$ (744,665) $ 57,077,397

Property, plant, and equipment:

property, plant, and equipment $

- $ 250,912 $ - $ - $ 250,912
3,023,691 $ 8,408,905 3 - 8 852 $ 11,433,448
(308,274) (19,695) (22,705) - (350,674)
2,715,417 $ 82389210 $ (22,705)  $ 852 $ 11,082,774
18,322,726 $ 20,694,600 $ - $ 6808682 $ 45826008
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17.

CHANGES IN CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

The changes in the City's contributed capital accounts for its proprietary funds were as follows:

Enterprise Funds Internal Service Funds
City School
Golf City Equipment Equipment
Waterworks Course Insurance Replacement Replacement
Fund Fund Fund Rental Fund Rental Fund Totals

Balance 7/1/00 $32,941,134 $1,796440 § 272,739 $ 838908 §$ 844,110  $36,693,331

Return of Capital
To General Fund - - (272,739) — — (272,739)

Amortization of
Contributions (1.065,004) — — o — (1,065,004)

Balance 6/30/01  $31.876130 $1796440 § - § 838908 § 844110 $35.355.588

In fiscal 1989, the General Fund contributed capital to startup the Insurance Fund. In fiscal 2001,
it was determined that the Insurance Fund has sufficient reserves to return the startup capital to
the General Fund.

RESERVES AND DESIGNATIONS

The City records a number of reserves and designations of fund balance which are maintained for
specific purposes. The nature and purpose of these reserves and designations is explained as
follows:

Reserved for Special Programs. City Special Revenue Funds had statutory reserves of fund balance
totaling $498,361 at fiscal year end for special programs. The fund balance of the Drug
Enforcement Program Fund, $60,382 at fiscal year end, is legally restricted for use in investigations
of drug-related violations. The School Fund had reserves totaling $136,491 for the Career Ladder
Program. The Capital Projects Fund reserves totaled $301,488 for the City’s share of the state
roadway project to expand Tuskeege Drive in Oak Ridge.
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Reserved For Encumbrances. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent the estimated
amount the City intends to honor as a commitment regardless of the lapse in the appropriation. At
June 30, 2001, the following amounts were reserved:

Amount
General Fund $ 369,287
Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Diversification $ 110,988
State Street Aid 160,900
School Fund 249,664
Total Special Revenue Funds $ 521,552
Capital Projects Fund $ 571814
Total $ 1,462,653

Reserved for Prepaid Items. The General Fund had $86,367 of fund balance reserved at fiscal year
end for prepaid debt service.

Reserved for Endowment. The Scholarship Fund, a Nonexpendable Trust Fund, was established to
account for trust funds that are legally restricted to endowment purposes. The interest on the
trust principal is used to award college scholarships to high school seniors. The Reserve for
Endowment for the Scholarship Fund at June 30, 2001 was $345,113.

Reserved for Debt Retirement. This reserve was established by City Council action to accumulate
funds from General Fund revenues for retirement of existing general obligation debt. The amount
reserved at June 30, 2001 totaled $85,765.

Reserved For Advance to Other Funds. Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund loan receivables
are reported as advances and are offset equally by a fund balance reserve account which indicates
that they do not constitute expendable available financial resources and therefore are not available
for appropriation. Advances to Internal Service Funds at June 30, 2001 from the General Fund
totaled $112,500.

Fund Balance - Designated for Subseguent Years’ Expenditures. Designations of fund
balances of governmental funds are used to indicate tentative plans for financial resource utilization
in a future period. The School Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, designated $794,172 of fund
balance of which $40,000 was for textbooks, $35,191 was for extended childcare programs,
$709,484 for capital maintenance and $9,497 for miscellaneous other projects. The Capital
Projects Fund designated $5,738,826 of fund balance of which $261,362 was for future debt
service requirements on existing School bond issuances and $5,477,464 for major capital projects.
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18.

MMITMENTS

At June 30, 2001, the City had remaining contractual commitments for engineering, construction
contracts and equipment purchases totaling $7,118,261 for the following projects:

Spent Commitment

Projects To-Date Remaining _Committed Fund
Greenways Construction $ 223,031 $ 267,517 Capital Projects
Irrigation Pump Engineering 13,560 28,440 Capital Projects
Storm Water Regulations Study 0 67,700 Capital Projects
Library/Civic Center Roofs 50,000 85,033 Capital Projects
Senior Center Design 20,600 82,400 Capital Projects
Animal Shelter Addition 55,711 17,938 Capital Projects
Roadway Improvements 29,573 185,687 State Street Aid

Grant
Location Incentives 0 163,400 Economic Diversification
Substation 900 Construction 46,571 1,043,720 Electric
Engineering Services 0 132,487 Electric
69kV Line Relocations & Installation 427,234 79,766  Electric
Transformers & Regulators 0 562,474 Electric
Electric Maintenance 20,204 120,607 Electric
Treatment Plant Improvements 1,782 230,923 Waterworks
Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion 6,042,342 594,175 Waterworks
Wastewater System Rehabilitation 4,212,253 3,138,394 Waterworks

Equipment Replacement
Mobile Data System 0 317,600 Rental
TOTAL $11,142,861 $7118,261

Funding for Capital Projects Fund commitments will primarily be provided by the remaining
proceeds from the January 2000 $10,000,000 bond issuance. Roadway projects will be funded by
a $50,000 grant from the Tennessee Department of Transportation and the State Street Aid Fund,
whose revenues are derived from state-share taxes and operating transfers from the General Fund.
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19,

20.

The Economic Diversification Fund, whose operations are funded by transfers from the General,

Electric and Waterworks Funds, will provide funding for location/expansion incentives commitments

to two major retailers. Approximately 50% of the substation 900 construction costs will be funded

by three state and federal grants. The remaining substation 900 construction costs and other

electrical project costs will be funded from the remaining proceeds of the April 2001 $15,000,000

Electric Fund long-term debt issuance through the TN-LOANs program. Waterworks projects will

be funded by the remaining proceeds of the $16,970,000 TDEC loans and waterworks revenues.

The mobile date equipment will be purchased from existing cash in the Equipment Replacement -
Rental Fund.

DEFICIT RETAINED EARNINGS

At fiscal year end, the Golf Course Fund, an Enterprise Fund, had a deficit retained earnings of
$2,541,105. This is a $757,494 increase from the $1,783,611 retained earnings deficit at the end
of fiscal 2000. Revenues for the Golf Course Fund are provided from the operation of a municipal
owned golf course and the sale of land surround the course. The City initially owned 700 acres of
land that was to be developed into a 200 acre municipally owned golf course, with the remaining
acreage to be sold in phases to private developers for ultimate construction of residential housing.
July 1997 was the first full month of operation of the golf course. A positive retained earnings in
the Golf Course Fund is dependent on the sale of land surrounding the golf course. Due to the
downsizing of federal operations in Oak Ridge and the resulting employment uncertainties, land
sales were slower than anticipated in the initial phases of the project. The City is currently
reviewing options to enhance the revenue stream of the Golf Course Fund in order to restore
positive retained earnings to the Fund within a reasonable time frame. A $200,000 operating
transfer from the General Fund was budgeted in fiscal 2002 to maintain cash flows in the Golf
Course Fund.

RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER!

During fiscal 1989, the General Fund transferred $272,739 to the Insurance Fund as startup capital
for that Fund. This transfer was recorded as Contributed Capital in the Insurance Fund. During
fiscal 2001, it was determined that since employee medical benefits were no longer primarily self-
insured, there was sufficient reserves in the Insurance Fund to return the original $272,739 in
startup capital back to the General Fund. This transaction was recorded in the Insurance Fund as a
reduction in contributed capital and in the General Fund as a residual equity transfer in.
Accordingly, residual equity transfers in will not equal residual equity transfers out in the combined
statements overview.

(continued)
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The City Insurance Fund, an internal service fund, is used to account for risks of loss related to
torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; natural disasters; errors and omissions;
injuries to employees; and employee medical insurance plans. The City Insurance Fund does not
account for risks related to the City School system assets or employees. Funding for the City
Insurance Fund is provided by the General, Electric and Waterworks Funds through an allocation
for insurance coverage based on each Fund’s pro rata share of services provided. The School
Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, is used to account for School system risks of loss related to torts;
theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; natural disasters; errors and omissions; injuries to
employees; and employee medical insurance plans.

City employee group medical insurance is fully provided through an independent insurance carrier
with the City and employees contributing to payment of the premiums. Dental and vision benefits
provided to employees by the City are self-funded from the revenues of the City Insurance Fund.
School employee medical insurance is fully provided through an independent insurance carrier with
the School Fund and the employees contributing to payment of the premiums.

Insurance coverage for city and schools assets related to general liability, auto liability, auto
physical damage, errors and omissions and workers compensation for city and school system
employees is through a public entity risk pool operated as a risk sharing program by the Tennessee
Municipal League (TML). This pool is sustained by member premiums and the City and Schools pay
an annual premium for its coverage. Losses for risk related to the school system were paid in full
by the TML in fiscal 2001. The City has per occurance deductibles as outlined below. The city paid
$140,050 in deductibles to the TML in fiscal 2001 for workers compensation and property liability
claims of $101,726 and $38,324, respectively.

Other school risks of loss are covered by commercial insurance. The remaining risks accounted for
in the City Insurance Fund are covered by commercial insurance purchased from independent third
parties with the City being self-insured for the per occurance deductible under each insurance
policy. The per occurance deductible for each insurance policy covered by the City Insurance Fund
for fiscal 2001 is as outlined below:

Annual
Per Occurance

Insurance Plan Deductible
General Liability $ 5,000
Auto Liability 5,000
Auto Physical Damage 5,000
Errors and Omissions 5,000
Boiler and Machinery 10,000 or 2% of KVA
Electronic Data Processing 2,500
Property : 5,000
Property-Natural Disaster 50,000

(Flood/Earthquake)

Worker's Compensation 50,000

(continued)
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There have been no liabilities in excess of commercial insurance coverage for the past three fiscal
years. Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. Changes in the claims liability amount for the City Insurance
Funds for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2000 and June 30, 2001 were as follows:

Current Year

Beginning of Claims and Balance at
Fiscal Year Changes in Claims Fiscal
Liability Estimates Payments Year End
2000 $ 113,556 $ 275771 ($ 263,719) $ 125,608
2001 $ 125,608 $ 245,064 ($ 250,161) $ 120,511

LITIGATION

The City generally follows the practice of recording liabilities from claims and legal actions only
when it is probable that both (1) an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred, and
(2) the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Settlement of all potential claims from various
lawsuits in which the City is involved would not, in management's estimation, materially affect the
financial statements of the City.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

In compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) statement number 33,
Accounting for Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, the City reviewed its revenues
for consistent accrual of nonexchange transactions. To fully comply with GASB 33 in fiscal 2001,
the City began accruing beer and liquor wholesale, room occupancy, gasoline and motor fuel and
mixed drink taxes at the point of sale. Restatement of financial statements for prior years were
not presented as this would make the statements unduly complex and difficult to read. The
cumulative effect of this application was recorded as a restatement of the beginning fund balances
at July 1, 2000 for the General Fund for revenues from beer and liquor wholesale, room occupancy
and mixed drink taxes and for the State Street Aid Fund and the Streets and Public Transportation
Fund, both special revenue funds, for revenues from gasoline and motor fuel taxes as follows:

Streets and Public
General Fund State Street Aid Fund  Transportation Fund

Fund Balance - July 1, 2000

As Previously Reported $ 9,552,648 $ 171,059 $ 282,600
Prior Period Adjustments 96,505 64,506 5471
Fund Balance - July 1, 2000

As Restated $ 9649153 § 235565 § 288,071

(continued)




CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

24.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 20, 2001, City Council authorized the issuance of $1,000,000 in general obligation debt
through the Tennessee Municipal Bond Fund to finance the expansion, renovation and equipping of
the Scarboro Center. This is a draw loan in which funds are drawn from the authorized debt
amount as expenditures occur. The interest rate varies on a weekly basis with monthly interest
payments. Principal payments will occur annually from fiscals 2003 to 2017. The United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has approved a $75,000 annual grant
award from 2003 to 2017 to fund a portion of the debt service payments. The City would fund any
difference between the actual debt service amount and the HUD contribution. It is anticipated that
the City’s share of the debt service payment on this ioan would be $20,000 or less annually.

On October 22, 2001, City Council authorized staff to apply for a $7,000,000 loan with the
Tennessee State Revolving Fund (SRF) administered by the Tennessee Department of Environment
and Conservation (TDEC) that will provide financing for the fiscals 2002 to 2006 phase of the
wastewater system rehabilitation project, which includes sanitary sewer replacement, slip-lining,
cured-in-place, and pipe bursting, and manhole and pump station rehabilitation and replacement.
This is a reimbursement loan whereby monies are drawn from the loan as the project progresses
with monthly interest payments beginning when the first funds are drawn. The interest rate paid
by local governments on loans from the SRF is based on an ability to pay index (ATPI) assessed by
TDEC depending on the community’s per capita income, taxable sales and taxable property values.
The ATPI for the City of Oak Ridge is 80%. The fixed interest rate the City would pay on the loan
is 80% of the 20-year municipal bond rate listed in the Bond Buyers Index and is set at the
meeting TDEC approves the loan. TDEC is expected to review the loan for approval at its January
2002 board meeting, with the interest rate anticipated to be between 4.04% and 4.8%. This is a
20-year loan with principal payments to begin approximately 90-120 days after the project is
completed. Debt service payments for the loan will be funded from the revenues of the
Waterworks Fund from wastewater fees to residential and commercial customers. The City, as do
all governmental entities in the SRF loan program, must pledge first its state-shared tax revenues
(sales, gasoline, beer, TVA replacement, mixed drink, alcoholic beverage and income tax) and then
its taxing authority as collateral for the loan. It is not anticipated that revenues from these sources
will be required to fund the debt service on this loan. The City has a biennially wastewater rate
review with the next review scheduled to be effective May 1, 2002. The last rate review projected
this rate increase to be an average of 16%, which encompassed a rate sufficient to fund debt
service on this loan.

On November 19, 2001, City Council authorized the issuance of $3,000,000 in general obligation
debt through the Tennessee Municipal Bond Fund to finance water and wastewater capital
improvements and expansion. While the full faith and credit of the City back this loan, the principal
and interest payments on the loan will be made from the water and wastewater rates, as
applicable. This is a draw loan in which funds are drawn from the authorized debt amount as
expenditures occur. The interest rate varies on a weekly basis with monthly interest payments.
Principal payments will occur annually from fiscals 2003 to 2021.
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to
account for all activities of the City not included in other specified
funds. The General fund accounts for the normal recurring activities
of the City (i.e. police, fire, recreation, public works, general
government, etc.). These activities are funded principally by property
taxes on individuals and businesses and sales tax proceeds.




CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,131,213 $ 5,286,066
Receivables, net 13,226,273 12,218,415
Due from other funds 4,956,973 4,634,816
Due from other governments 2,082,501 1,962,544
Prepaid items 86,367 86,367
Advance to Internal Service Fund 112,500 112,500
Total Assets $ 23,595,827 $ 24,300,708
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANC
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 188,704 $ 268,066
Accrued liabilities 218,440 230,438
Deposits 141,724 107,958
Due to other funds 369,594 375,856
Due to other governments 12,529 107,669
Deferred revenue 14,194,800 13,658,073
Total Liabilities 15,125,791 14,748,060
Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances 369,287 187,732
Reserved for prepaid items 86,367 86,367
Reserved for advance to Internal
Service Fund 112,500 112,500
Unreserved, undesignated 7,901,882 9,166,049
Total Fund Balances 8,470,036 9,552,648
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances $ 23,595,827 $ 24,300,708

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
Revenues:
Taxes $ 16,753,443 $ 15,102,649
Licenses and Permits 223,135 251,324
Intergovernmental 9,528,710 9,354,396
Charges for Services 1,377,231 1,366,592
Fines and Forfeitures 339,987 301,216
Interest 634,849 689,270
Other 347,547 753,030
Total Revenues 29,204,902 27,818,477
Expenditures:
General Government:
Legislative 76,921 80,705
Executive 231,188 222,535
Judicial 224,858 196,985
Total General Government 532,967 500,225

Administration 633,336 652,626
Public Safety:
Police 3,963,244 3,950,754
Fire 3,141,794 3,110,503
Total Public Safety 7,105,038 7,061,257

Public Works 1,626,292 1,564,201
Community Services:
Community Development 411,997 436,399
Recreation 1,965,486 1,922,144
Library 947,308 1,010,644
Community Services - 187,441
Total Community Services 3,324,791 3,556,628
Total Expenditures 13,222,424 13,334,937

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Uses:

15,982,478

1

4,483,540

Operating transfers out (17,434 334) (14,626,371)
Deficiency of Revenues Under
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (1,451,856) (142,831)
Fund Balances - July 1
As Previously Reported 9,552,648 9,695,479
Prior Period Adjustment 96,505 -
Fund Balances - July 1
As Restated 9,649,153 9,695,479
Residual Equity Transfer In 272,739 -
Fund Balances - June 30 $ 8,470,036 $ 9,552,648

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Adjustment Actual
to on Variance
Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Actual Basis Basis Budget {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 16,753,443 § - $ 16,753,443 $ 16,994,407 $ (240,964)
Licenses and Permits 223,135 - 223,135 181,500 41,635
Intergovernmental 9,528,710 - 9,528,710 9,763,329 (234,619)
Charges for Services 1,377,231 - 1,377,231 1,397,756 {20,525)
Fines and Forfeitures 339,987 - 339,987 400,000 (60,013)
Interest 634,849 - 634,849 575,000 59,849
Other 347,547 - 347,547 238,500 109,047
Total Revenues 29,204,902 - 29,204,902 29,550,492 (345,590)
Expenditures:
General Government:
Legislative 76,921 - 76,921 106,162 29,241
Executive 231,188 25,765 256,953 318,176 61,223
Judicial 224,858 (3,810) 221,048 259,517 38,469
Total General Government 532,967 21,955 554,922 683,855 128,933
Administration 633,336 30.810 664,146 686,782 22,636
Public Safety:
Police 3,963,244 82,748 4,045,992 4,083,788 37,796
Fire 3,141,794 (228) 3,141,566 3,078,125 (63,441)
Total Public Safety 7,105,038 82,520 7,187,558 7,161,913 (25,645)
Public Works 1,626,292 14,393 1,640,685 1,747,095 106,410
Community Services:
Community Development 411,997 50,000 461,997 473,281 11,284
Recreation 1,965,486 (16,792) 1,948,694 2,054,667 105,973
Library 947,308 _(1,331) 945,977 980,273 34,296
Total Community Services 3,324,791 31,877 3,356,668 3,508,221 151,553
Total Expenditures 13,222,424 181,555 13,403,979 13,787,866 383,887
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 15,982,478 (181,555) 15,800,923 15,762,626 38,297
Other Financing Uses:
Operating transfers out _(17,434,34) - (17.434,334) (17,042,499) (391,835)
Deficiency of Revenues Under
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (1,451,856) (181,555) (1,633,411) (1,279,873) (353.538)
Fund Balances - July 1
As Previously Reported 9,652,648 - 9,552,648 9,552,648 -
Prior Period Adjustment 96,505 - 96,505 - 96,505
Fund Balances - July 1
As Restated 9,649,153 - 9,649,153 9,552,648 96,505
Residual Equity Transfer In 272,739 - 272,739 - 272,739
Fund Balances - June 30 $ 8,470,036 $  (181,555) $ 8,288,481 $ 8,272,775 $ 15,706

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001
Actual
on Variance
Budgetary Favorable
Basis Budget (Unfavorable)
TAXES
General Property Taxes
Real Property $ 11,385,871 s 11,530,000 $ (144,129)
Personal Property 1,131,571 1,198,000 (66,429)
Public Utilities 373,557 399,000 (25,443)
Interest & Penalties 84,298 75,000 9,298
Total General Property Taxes 12,975,297 13,202,000 (226,703)
Other Property Taxes
Other than assessed 48,140 48,862 (722)
Tax Equiv. - Electric Fund 935,253 930,000 5,253
Tax Equiv. - Waterworks Fund 1,046,618 1,000,045 46,573
Total Other Property Taxes 2,030,011 1,978,907 51,104
Gross Receipts Taxes
Beer Wholesale 467,772 438,000 29,772
Liquor Wholesale 171,360 164,000 7,360
Room Occupancy 316,808 315,000 1,808
Sales Tax - Local 195,032 275,000 (79,968)
Min. & Gross Receipts 571,447 600,000 (28,553)
Pen. & Int. on Bus. Tax 17,649 13,000 4,649
Rec. Fee on Bus. Tax 8,067 8,500 (433)
Total Gross Receipts Taxes 1,748,135 1,813,500 (65,365)
TOTAL TAXES 16,753,443 16,994,407 (240,964)
LICENSES & PERMITS
Retail Beer 8,783 10,000 (1,217)
Liquor Licenses & Permits 9,150 10,000 (850)
Bidg., Zoning & Exam. 133,875 110,000 23,875
Electrical & Exam. 21,740 18,000 3,740
Plumbing Exam. 22,265 12,500 9,765
Grading Permits 2,545 2,500 45
Animal Registration 19,226 13,500 5,726
Other Licenses & Permits 5,551 5,000 551
TOTAL LICENSES & PERMITS 223,135 181,500 41,635
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
State Shared
Sales Tax 1,707,981 1,745,000 (37,019)
Income Tax 651,304 550,000 101,304
Excise Tax 21,440 50,000 (28,560)
Beer Barrelage 13,975 14,000 (25)
Mixed Drink Tax 77,669 75,000 2,669
County Shared
Sales Tax - Roane 901,583 1,350,000 (448,417)
Sales Tax - Anderson 4,824,625 4,725,000 99,625
te Grants in Aid - 35,000 (35,000)
Eederal
TVA Replacement 186,301 185,000 1,301
DOE In-Lieu of Taxes 1,143,832 1,004,329 139,503
Dept. of Justice Grants - 30,000 (30,000)
TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL $ 9,528,710 $ 9,763,329 S (234,619)

(Continued)
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001
Actual
on Variance
Budgetary Favorable
Basis Budget {Unfavorable)
HAR FOR SERVICE
neral Government
Repro. of Maps & Documents s 1,527 $ 1,500 $ 27
General & Admin. Cost 25,022 17,500 7,522
Bubili f
Accident and Fire Reports 10,085 14,000 (3,915)
Police Records 5,626 - 5,626
Animal Sheiter Fees 33,779 40,000 (6,221)
Library
Lost Library Books 2,022 3,000 (978)
Total General Services 78,061 76,000 2,061
Use of Property
Youth Activities 2,757 2,600 157
Adult Activities 1,839 4,000 (2,161)
Outdoor Pool 66,901 70,000 (3,099)
Indoor Pooi 50,059 45,000 5,059
Rental of Lands 89,876 86,950 2,926
Rental of Service Center & Municipal Bldg. 892,732 892,732 -
Rental of Other Buildings 9,360 17,088 (7,728)
Marina Rental 6,000 6,000 -
Restaurant Rental 30,681 30,681 -
City Owned Radios 118,045 118,705 (660)
Community Centers Rental 30,920 48,000 (17,080)
Total Use of Property 1,299,170 1,321,756 (22,586)
TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES 1,377,231 1,397,756 (20,525)
FINES AND FORFEITURE
City Court Fines 61,231 75,000 (13,769)
City Court Costs 35,163 47,000 (11,837)
Bail Forfeitures 181,110 215,000 (33,890)
Misc. Court Revenues 3,39 5,000 (1,604)
Library Fines 59,087 58,000 1,087
TOTAL FINES AND FORFEITURES 339,987 400,000 (60,013)
INTEREST 634,849 575,000 59,849
OTHER REVENUES
CATV Franchise 237,480 175,000 62,480
Right Of Way 60,000 61,000 (1,000)
Land Sales - - -
Salvage Sales 3,530 1,000 2,530
Miscellaneous 46,537 1,500 45,037
TOTAL OTHER REVENUES 347,547 238,500 109,047
TOTAL REVENUES $ 29,204,902 $ 29,550,492 $ (345,590)
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Adjustment Actual
to on Variance
Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Actual Basis Basis Budget (Unfavorable)
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Leqislative
City Council $ 76,921 § -8 76,921 $ 106,162 $ 29,241
Executive
City Clerk 90,632 - 90,632 95,029 4,397
City Manager 140,556 25765 166,321 223,147 56,826
Total Executive 231,188 25,765 256,953 318,176 61,223
Judicial
Legal 130,853 - 130,853 165,019 34,166
City Court 94,005 (3,810) 90,195 94,498 4,303
Total Judicial 224,858 (3,810) 221,048 259,517 38,469
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 532,967 21,955 554,922 683,855 128,933
ADMINISTRATION:
Data Services 167,129 - 167,129 172,727 5,508
Personnel 191,559 - 191,559 194,163 2,604
Stationery Stores 71,553 - 71,553 74,691 3,138
Finance 158,064 30,810 188,874 198,511 9,637
Utilities Business Office 45,031 - 45,031 46,690 1,659
TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 633,336 30,810 664,146 686,782 22,636
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Police :
Supervision 150,648 - 150,648 147,174 (3.474)
Investigations 442,154 - 442,154 447,285 5,131
Staff Services 316,284 - 316,284 309,863 (6,421)
Patrol 2,433,429 73,101 2,506,530 2,560,524 63,994
Emergency Communications 268,480 - 268,480 269,385 905
Animal Control 213,251 10,000 223,251 206,596 (16,655)
School Resource Officer Program 138,998 (353) 138,645 142,961 4,316
Total Police $ 3,963,244 $ 82,748 $ 4045992 $ 4,083,788 § 37,796
(Continued)
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Adjustment Actual
to on Variance
Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Actual Basis Basis Budget (Unfavorable)
PUBLIC SAFETY (Continued):
Eire
Supervision $ 154,331 § - $ 154,331 § 146,509 $ (7,822)
Prevention 97,074 - 97,074 89,298 (7,776)
Firefighting 2,650,162 - 2,650,162 2,589,245 (60,917)
Fire Stations ; 75,337 (228) 75,109 80,770 5,661
Fire Specialists 164,890 - 164,890 172,303 7,413
Total Fire 3,141,794 (228) 3,141,566 3,078,125 (63,441)
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 7,105,038 82,520 7,187,558 7,161,913 (25,645)
PUBLIC WORKS:
Supervision 84,326 - 84,326 85,171 845
Engineering 134,826 (1,000) 133,826 139,819 5,993
State Highway Maintenance 68,863 - 68,863 56,933 (11,930)
General Maintenance 259,568 7,935 267,503 313,035 45,532
Central Service Building 87,051 4,615 91,666 92,182 516
301/303 Broadway Building 16,365 - 16,365 26,350 9,985
Municipal Building 121,818 (591) 121,227 128,380 7,163
Roane State Comm. College Bldg. 8,912 (1,966) 6,946 33,785 26,839
102 Robertsville Road Bldg. 10,345 - 10,345 21,340 10,995
Traffic Control and Lights 834,218 5,400 839,618 850,100 10,482
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 1,626,292 14,393 1,640,685 1,747,095 106,410
COMMUNITY SERVICES:
Community Development
Supervision 64,600 50,000 114,600 99,853 (14,747)
Planning 96,743 - 96,743 98,496 1,753
Code Enforcement 250,654 - 250,654 274 932 24,278
Total Community Development 411,997 50,000 461,997 473,281 11,284
Recreation
Supervision 237,388 - 237,388 232,875 (4,513)
Indoor Aquatics 170,376 - 170,376 190,608 20,232
Outdoor Aquatics 148,369 (7,039) 141,330 181,484 40,154
Centers, Camps & Programs 573,112 12,559 585,671 597,427 11,756
Athletics 62,242 (23,812) 38,430 53,946 15,516
Parks 553,762 1,500 555,262 568,662 13,400
Senior Center 220,237 - 220,237 229,665 9428
Total Recreation 1,965,486 (16,792) 1,948,694 2,054,667 105,973
Library 947,308 (1,331) 945,977 980,273 34,296
TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES 3,324,791 31,877 3,356,668 3,508,221 151,553
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 13222424 $ 181,555 $ 13,403,979 $ 13,787,866 § 383,887
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenues which are legally restricted to finance specific
functions or activities of government and which, therefore, cannot be
diverted to other uses.

Economic Diversification Fund: This fund was established in fiscal
2000 to account for the economic diversification efforts of the City.
Economic Diversification Fund expenditures are primarily funded from
operating transfers from the General, Electric and Waterworks Funds.

State Street Aid Fund: This fund accounts for maintenance of all
non-State streets in the City. Revenues are provided from a portion of
the State of Tennessee gasoline and motor fuels tax.

Street and Public Transportation Fund: This fund accounts for the
Transportation Assistance for the Elderly Program and the Public
Transportation Program. Revenues are provided from a special one-
cent-per-gallon inspection fee levied on all petroleum products
bought, sold or stored in Tennessee and an operating assistance
grant from the Tennessee Department of Transportation.

Grant Fund: This fund is used to account for programs and
expenditures funded by state and federal grants. Annually awarded
grants are primarily from the Tennessee and United States
Departments of Housing and Urban Development and the Tennessee
Department of Human Services. Other grants accounted for in this
fund are generally one-time project specific awards.

Solid Waste Fund: This fund was established in accordance with
Tennessee State Law, Public Chapter Number 759, which requires
the use of a Special Revenue Fund to account for the financial
activities related to the collection and transportation of solid waste.

Drug Enforcement Program Fund: This fund is used to account for
investigations of violations of controlled substance laws and is funded
primarily from the receipt of fines and forfeitures related to drug
enforcement cases.

School Fund: This fund is Ljsed to account for the revenues and
expenditures of the City of Oak Ridge public school system.
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B-4
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
ECONOMIC DIVERSIFICATION FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 v 2000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,888,203 $ 188,222
Due from other funds 2,000 92,603
Total Assets $ 1,890,203 $ 280,825
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 16,327 $ 68,825
Accrued liabilities 1,301 -
Total Liabilities 17,628 68,825
Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances 110,988 199,229
Unreserved, undesignated 1,761,587 12,771
Total Fund Balances 1,872,575 212,000
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,890,203 $ 280,825

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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B-5
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
ECONOMIC DIVERSIFICATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Adjustment Actual
to on Variance
Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Actual Basis Basis Budget {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ - 8 -8 - $ 1,000,000 $ (1,000,000)
Interest 34,800 - 34,800 3,092 31,708
Other Revenue:
Land Sale Proceeds 1,131,164 - 1,131,164 - 1,131,164
Rental of Property 29,576 - 29,576 - 29,576
Total Revenues 1,195,540 - 1,195,540 1,003,092 192,448
Expenditures:
Community services 967,081 (88,241) 878,840 1,136,894 258,054
Capital outlay - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total Expenditures 967,081 (88,241) 878,840 2,136,894 1,258,054
Excess (Deficiency)
of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures 228,459 88,241 316,700 (1,133,802) 1,450,502
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 1,628,835 - 1,628,835 1,256,613 373,222
Operating transfers out -
to component units (196,719) - (196,719) (196,719) -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 1,432,116 - 1,432,116 1,058,894 373,222
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses 1,660,575 88,241 1,748,816 (74,908) 1,823,724
Fund Balances - July 1 212,000 - 212,000 212,000 -
Fund Balances - June 30 $ 1872575 § 88241 $ 1,960,816 $ 137,092 $ 1,823,724

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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B-6
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
STATE STREET AID FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 439,206 $ 312,586
Due from other funds - 114,965
Due from other governments 125,913 61,202
Total Assets $ 565,119 $ 488,753
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 257,871 $ 317,694
Total Liabilities 257,871 317,694
Fund Baiances:
Reserved for encumbrances 160,900 41,211
Unreserved, undesignated 146,348 129,848
Total Fund Balances 307,248 171,059
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 565,119 $ 488,753

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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B-7
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
STATE STREET AID FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Adjustment Actual
to on Variance
Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Actual Basis Basis Budget (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 760,234 $ - 8 760,234 § 775,000 $ (14,766)
interest 13,644 - 13,644 10,000 3,644
Total Revenues 773,878 - 773,878 785,000 (11,122)
Expenditures:
Public works:
Maintenance of streets 659,923 12,689 672,612 797,020 124,408
Traffic signs 28,060 (4,000) 24,060 25,000 940
Sidewalks 28,138 - 28,138 30,000 1,862
Street resurfacing 428,980 111,000 539,980 540,000 20
Total Expenditures 1,145,101 119,689 1,264,790 1,392,020 127,230
Excess (Deficiency)
of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (371,223) {119,689) (490,912) (607,020) 116,108
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from loans - - - 180,000 {180,000)
Operating transfers in 500,000 - 500,000 500,000 -
Operating transfers out (57,094) - (57,094) (90,000) 32,906
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 442,906 - 442,906 590,000 {147,094)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses 71,683 (119,689) (48,006) (17,020) (30.986)
Fund Balances - July 1
As Previously Reported 171,059 - 171,059 171,059 -
Prior Period Adjustment 64,506 - 64,506 - 64,506
Fund Balances - July 1
As Restated 235,565 - 235,565 171,059 64,506
Fund Balances - June 30 $ 307,248 $ (119,689) $ 187,559 $ 154,039 $ 33,520

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
STREETS AND PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 261,628 $ 277,427
Due from other funds - 7,306
Due from other governments 25,897 25,335
Total Assets $ 287,525 $ 310,068
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,359 $ 27,468
Fund Balances:
Unreserved, undesignated 286,166 282,600
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 287,525 $ 310,068

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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B-9
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
STREETS AND PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Adjustment Actual
to on Variance
Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Actual Basis Basis Budget (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 116,218 $ - 3 116,218 $ 144,800 $ (28,582)
Interest 13,268 - 13,268 13,000 268
Total Revenues 129,486 - 129,486 157,800 (28,314)
Expenditures:
Public works:
Traffic signs 4,451 - 4,451 6,000 1,549
Community services:

Transportation assistance 126,940 - 126,940 182,000 55,060
Total Expenditures 131,391 - 131,391 188,000 56,609
Excess (Deficiency)
of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures {1,905) - (1,905) (30,200) 28,295

Fund Balances - July 1

As Previously Reported 282,600 - 282,600 282,600 -
Prior Period Adjustment 5471 - 5,471 - 5,471
Fund Balances - July 1

As Restated 288,071 - 288,071 282,600 5,471
Fund Balances - June 30 $ 286,166 $ - 3 286,166 $ 252,400 $ 33,766

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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B-10
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
GRANT FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
ASSETS
Due from other governments $ 1,509,648 $ 77,513
Total Assets $ 1,509,648 $ 77,513
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 21,889 $ 43,031
Due {o other funds 1,434,244 34,376
Deferred revenue 53,409 -
Total Liabilities 1,509,542 77,407
Fund Balances:
Unreserved, undesignated 106 106
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,509,648 $ 77,513

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
GRANT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Adjustment Actual
to on Variance
Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Actual Basis Basis Budget {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 2,475,038 $ - $ 2,475,038 5,551,976 $ (3,076,938)
Total Revenues 2,475,038 - 2,475,038 5,651,976 (3,076,938)
Expenditures:
Public safety 18,348 - 18,348 - (18,348)
Community services 307,895 - 307,895 356,809 48,914
Capital outlay 2,241,618 - 2,241,618 5,365,167 3,123,549
Total Expenditures 2,567,861 - 2,567,861 5,721,976 3,154,115
Excess (Deficiency)
of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures (92,823) - (92,823) (170,000) 77,177
Other Financing Sources:
Operating transfers in 92,823 - 92,823 170,000 (77,177)
Excess of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures - - - - -
Fund Balances - July 1 106 - 106 106 -
Fund Balances - June 30 106 $ - 8 106 $ 106 $ -

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
SOLID WASTE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2001 and 2000

B-12

2000

157,660

157,660

157,660

2001
ASSETS
Due from other funds $ 279,940
Total Assets $ 279,940
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 279,940
Fund Balance:
Unreserved, undesignated -
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 279,940

157,660

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
SOLID WASTE FUND

B-13

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

Revenues:
Charges for Services

Expenditures:
Community services

Excess (Deficiency)
of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Operating transfers in

Excess (Deficiency)

of Revenues and

Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balances - July 1

Fund Balances - June 30

BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Adjustment Actual
to on Variance
Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Actual Basis Basis Budget {Unfavorable)
686,623 $ - 686,623 $ 681,600 $ 5,023
1,604,786 - 1,604,786 1,666,150 61,364
(918,163) - (918,163) (984,550) 66,387
918,163 - 918,163 984,550 (66,387)
- $ - - $ - § -

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
DRUG ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 52,581
Accounts Receivable, net 7,863
Total Assets $ 60,444
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 62
Fund Balances:
Reserved for special programs 60,382
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 60,444

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2000

41,981
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B-15
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
DRUG ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Adjustment Actual
to on Variance
Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Actual Basis Basis Budget {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fines and forfeitures $ 40,451 $ - 8 40451 $ 50,000 $ (9,549)
Interest 2,583 - 2,583 2,500 83
Sale of assets 9,958 - 9,958 8,500 1,458
Total Revenues 52,992 - 52,992 61,000 (8,008)
Expenditures:
Public safety 36,897 - 36,897 100,000 63,103
Excess (Deficiency)
of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures 16,095 - 16,095 {39,000) 55,095
Fund Balances - Juiy 1 44,287 - 44,287 44,287 -
Fund Balances - June 30 $ 60,382 $ - $ 60,382 $ 5287 $ 55,095

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

75




B-16
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
SCHOOL FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,119,879 $ 5,610,235
Accounts receivable, net 15,038 857,728
Due from other governments 1,552,637 862,959
Total Assets $ 7,687,554 $ 7,030,922
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 172,228 $ 81,742
Accrued liabilities 2,474,904 2,862,153
Due to other funds 1,738 5,659
Deferred revenue 378,772 379,967
Total Liabilities 3,027,642 3,329,521
Fund Balances:
Reserved for special programs 136,491 144,775
Reserved for encumbrances 249,664 77,006
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent
years' expenditures 794,172 785,777
Undesignated 3,479,585 2,693,843
Total Fund Balances 4,659,912 3,701,401
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 7,687,554 $ 7,030,922

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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B-17
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
SCHOOL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Adjustment Actual
to on Variance
Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Actual Basis Basis Budget {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 26,025,004 $ - 26,025,004 $ 25412942 $ 612,062
Charges for services 1,423,079 - 1,423,079 1,434,725 (11,646)
Interest 272,207 - 272,207 110,000 162,207
Other 142,039 - 142,039 160,425 (18,386)
Total Revenues 27,862,329 - 27,862,329 27,118,092 744,237
Expenditures:
Education:
General school purpose 34,504,664 145,957 34,650,621 35,356,467 705,846
Other programs 1,864,833 26,701 1,891,534 2,067,143 175,609
Total Expenditures 36,369,497 172,658 36,542,155 37,423,610 881,455
Excess (Deficiency)
of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (8,507,168) (172,658) (8,679,826) (10,305,518} 1,625,692
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 9,553,768 - 9,553,768 9,553,768 -
Operating transfers out (88,089) - (88,089) (94,250) 6,161
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 9,465,679 - 9,465,679 9,459,518 6,161
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses 958,511 (172,658) 785,853 (846,000) 1,631,853
Fund Balances - July 1 3,701,401 - 3,701,401 3,701,401 -
Fund Balances - June 30 4,659,912 $§ (172658) $ 4487254 $ 2,855,401 1,631,853

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund is used for the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of, principal and interest on general long-term debt.




CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
DEBT SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 86,500 $ 25,561
Interest receivable - 34,825
Total Assets $ 86,500 $ 60,386
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accrued interest payable $ - $ 17,984
Matured interest payable 735 735
Total Liabilities 735 18,719
Fund Balance:
Reserved for debt retirement 85,765 41,667
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 86,500 3 60,386

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cc-2
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
DEBT SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2004 and 2000 '

2001 2000
Revenues:
Interest $ 16,386 $ 43,213
Expenditures:
Principal retirement 2,196,869 1,975,387
Interest and fiscal charges 2,876,185 2,346,695
Total Expenditures 5,073,054 4,322,082
Deficiency of Revenues
Under Expenditures (5,056,668) (4,278,869)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of refunding bonds 41,244 385 -
Payment to refunding bond escrow agent (41,244,385) -
Operating transfers in 5,100,766 4,310,775
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 5,100,766 4,310,775
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures 44,098 31,906
Fund Balances - July 1 41,667 9,761
Fund Balances - June 30 $ 85,765 $ 41,667

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

80




C-3
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
DEBT SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable) Actual Budget {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Interest $ 16,386 $ 185 § 16,201 $ 43213 § 185§ 43,028
Expenditures:
Principal retirement 2,196,869 2,196,869 - 1,975,387 1,975,386 (1)
Interest and fiscal charges 2,876,185 3,454,787 578,602 2,346,695 3,359,828 1,013,133
Total Expenditures 5,073,054 5,651,656 578,602 4,322,082 5,335,214 1,013,132
Excess (Deficiency)
of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (5,056,668) _ (5,651,471) 594,803 (4,278,869) (5,335,029) 1,056,160
Other Financing Sources:
Proceeds of refunding bonds 41,244,385 - 41,244,385 - - -
Payment to refunding bond escrow agent (41,244,385) - (41,244,385) - - -
Operating transfers in 5,100,766 5,651,656 (550,890) 4,310,775 5,335,214 {1,024 439)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 5,100,766 5,651,656 {550,890) 4,310,775 5,335,214 (1,024,439)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
And Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures 44,098 185 43,913 31,906 185 31,721
Fund Balances - July 1 41,667 41,667 - 9,761 9,761 -
Fund Balances - June 30 $ 85,765 $§ 41,852 $ 43,913 $ 41,667 $ 9,946 $ 31,721

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition and
construction of major capital assets of the City other than those
financed by proprietary funds. During fiscal 2001, funding for these
capital projects was primarily provided from the proceeds of the fiscal
2000 $10,000,000 General Obligation Bond lIssuance. Current
projects included the renovation of various City and School buildings,
including those enhancements to comply with the Americans with
Disabilities Act, major roof replacements and replacement of the
chiller at Linden Elementary School. Other projects included
improvements to various City and School recreational facilities,
including construction of an elevated finish tower for rowing events at
the Marina.

In fiscal 2001, the General Fund transferred $410,000 to the Capital
Projects Fund to finance future building and recreational capital
maintenance projects. This is the first year of an annual transfer
program to reduce the City’s dependency on long-term debt proceeds
to finance capital maintenance projects.




CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALLANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,736,532 $ 9,132,235
Accounts receivable, net _ 35,000 -
Due from other governments 183,524 100,535
Total Assets $ 6,955,056 $ 9,232,770
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 86,465 $ 360,035
Due to other funds 256,463 263,853
Total Liabilities 342,928 623,888
Fund Balances:
Reserved for special programs 301,488 371,976
Reserved for encumbrances 571,814 662,140
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent
years' expenditures 5,738,826 7,574,766
Total Fund Balances 6,612,128 8,608,882
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 6,955,056 $ 9,232,770

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Adjustment Actual
to on Variance
Budgetary Budgetary Favorable
Actual Basis Basis Budget (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenues $ 237224 § - $ 237,224 $ 804,240 $ (567,016)
Interest 461,382 - 461,382 175,000 286,382
Total Revenues 698,606 - 698,606 979,240 (280,634)
Expenditures:
Capital outlay 2,804,259 (90,326) 2,713,933 7,611,377 4,897,444
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (2,105,653) 90,326 (2,015,327) (6,632,137) 4,616,810
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from sale of bonds - - - 1,000,000 (1,000,000)
Operating transfers in 417,883 - 417,883 417,883 -
Operating transfers out (308,984) - (308,984) {465,000) 156,016
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 108,899 - 108,899 952,883 (843,984)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Uses (1,996,754) 90,326 (1,906,428) (5,679,254) 3,772,826
Fund Balances - July 1 8,608,882 - 8,608,882 8,608,882 -
Fund Balances - June 30 $ 6612128 §$ 90,326 $ 6702454 $ 2929628 $ 3,772,826

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for the acquisition, operation
and maintenance of governmental facilities and services which are
entirely or predominantly self-supporting by user charges.

Electric Fund: This fund is used to account for the provision of
electric service to the residents of the City. All activities necessary to
provide such service are accounted for in this fund, including, but not
limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing, and
billing and collection.

Waterworks Fund: This fund is used to account for the provision of
water and sewer service to the residents of the City. All activities
necessary to provide such service are accounted for in this fund,
including, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance,
financing, and billing and collection.

Emergency Communications District Fund: This fund is used to
account for the provision of emergency communication service to the
residents of the City and some surrounding areas. Activities
necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund,
including, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance
and financing.

Golf Course Fund: This fund is used to account for the construction
and operation of a municipal golf course. The course opened for play
in late June 1997. The fund’s operations are financed from the sale
of land surrounding the golf course and proceeds from the operatlons
of the golf course.




{panunuog)

Juswaje}s siy) Jo ped jeibajul ue ase SHUBIBIE]S |BIOUBUY O} SBI0U 8Y ]

v68°29P'20L $ 6.66/82L1 $ wr'iee’l $  191°11I0L $ 2oL'9Le $ L $ 2eTEYS'8S §  €8LYIOV9 § 9S0'/EL'LY §  £69'0.60F $
0/2'2€9'L y¥a'6LL") 95€°2S 2L0'05 - - 0€0°062 S6L0pL ¥88'68. 115'686
0.2°219 v¥8'6G. 95€'2S 2.0'0S - - 0£0'09% G61 0Lt +89'66 115'662
000°020'} 000°020°L - - - - 000°0tE 000°0eE 000069 000'069
909'226'G6 081'060°€01 €8€'€€2L 912'906'9 09E't21 ovs'69 G¥9'026'9S G60°908'29 8IZ¥va'IE €2€'802'€E
¥58'900'6E $50°026'L¥ 18€'2.6 00¥'00E"L 18¥'0Z1 0685251 800°1L¥'22 . 89L'v18Ve v88'0vb vl 962 265Gl
09¥°'226'EEL YEZ'0LO'GYY $9.'G0C'8 219'902'8 r8'yye gel'eee €69'16£'6L £€88°08L°L8 202'580'9p 619'008'8Y
06'9LP'C SLY90'E - - - - G581 8v6 v 6¥.'86€'C 1TT6E0'E
859'222'66 0¥.'608'001 08" 1vE 08E'1¥E 998'G1T 19L°€61 G60'9eS' LS €0L°LpE'SS LSE'6ZL'EY 96¥'L26'vy
005°629°21 G14'260'L1 9EE'EAL'S 88L'¥9L'S - - $91°298'0 12Z5'EeE’LL - -
2E1'290'2T 8EG°101°Z2 §68'8.8 658'8/8 516'8C 516'8Z 192°'8€8°02 199'2€6'0Z vo'ole 90'9LE
99¢°009'} 990°2.8') €61'222’L £61'222'1L - - 810°Z€1 8L0'.¢} [0 74 SS8°LIS
GvL'106'E 269'e92' - - 899'019 vry'Ze9 110582t 802'1E9'}
viL'02L'L - - - vLL'0ZL')
9£5'69¢ gze'eee - £€8 980°} €0/'69¢ 6€c'Lee
€eT LY’ 265814 - - - oLv'eLe er1'6s €92'€G4'} Pr1'659
006'096 SeL'o1e’L - SoE‘ere 01Z'2LS GES'819 Ses'vvo
20e'eZ - - - - 20e'€Z -
€12°166°G €0E9bL'S 502'501 €18'vS 208’162 96£'80C 688'G1Z 6¥P'GEE LSS G8S'LPL'S
6¥C'vS €.8'vS 69Z'PS €.8'vS - - - - - -
669°¢ - - - 669'€ - - - - -
12e'e [4 44 - - 1ze'e - - - - fAg & ]
1€8'296°G ZEL'0M'S 95¥'LS - 099'8C ovS'El 06E°641 6¥¥'SEe GZE'80E'S €V1°190°G
€L1°29¢ $ os8'v6l $ - $ - $ zziale  $ 958'v6l $ 66¥'0t $ - $ 255'601 $ - $
0002 100z 0002 1002 000C 1002 0002 1002 0002 1002
‘0e sunp ‘og eunp 8suN0Y 0o RusIq SHJOMIBIEM 93
Sjej0) uofiesunuiio) Asuebsewy

000Z pue L00Z ‘0t dunp
133HS FONVIVE ONINIGNOD
SANNS ISRIJYILNS 1V
JISSINNIL ‘IO MVO 40 ALID

Sjessy ejoL

SIOSSE SO0 {B10}

safieyo pausjeq
pun- SAAISS (BB O) SOUBADY
:sjasse a0

819988 poxy N
uogepesdep pejejnwincoe sse7

$jesse paxy (el

ssasBasd u) uogonsuo)
wawdinbe pue Asurpen
sBuipjing uewy oo sjuswsAaKdw)|
sBuipung
puey

'S)9sSEe pexig

Sjesse pajoLysal (2101

UNOJ0e 8OINISS JqBp
aunjny puoq sNuUBAsY
JUNOJOE SOIAISS JGOP JuaLN)
JUNOOOER UORONRSUCY)
sysodeq
BIGeAIB0AI SIUNCO0Y
‘sjasse papuIsay

S}asse JUaLND |80}

1502 Je ‘Ascjuanuy

sjuawwanob Jauio woy eng

Spuny JaYI0 woyy angg

18U ‘9qEAII03 SHUNCDDY

sjusjeanba ysed pue yseD
'Sjassy Juauny

SI3SSV



98
“Wawers Syl Jo wed jeibaj ue ale SUBWSIETS e1oueuy 0) SAIOU By L

||_|_|I_|.1Iu ._..Il NS — e —p— — — ———
¥68'LVY 0L $ 6.66/8ZLL $  vpPIBEL $ ISLHI0OL $ Z9LBLE 0§ Z¥BLIZ 0§  ZEZE¥SeS $ esiviove ¢ 9G0LEL LY § £60°9.60F § Aynb3 puny pue sepwqer] 1010
128 v9L 99 16€LL0°LS 629Ch Goavvld) T€Z90LE [ZINFE 8¥Z 880 OF 06.°979'0F 1215895 91510691 Aynb3 pung 04,
TIZYIT 128 VOV € (TN Teo11vsD) €29°04E 9SLELT YILSYL'L 009'0LL'8 121’6605l 91510601 (noyap) sBupuses poueyoyy
VISIELVE 0LS'2L0°CE OVF'96L 1 Orr'o6Lt - - VEFIv8 2e OEVOLY 1 - - e PAINGIUOD |0}
Tsezves' D) (6£2°6¥9'8) - - - - Tsez'ves'l) (6czov's) - - uoReIoaIdap $597
268'¥86'LZ 268'v96'22 - - - - 268'v86'L2Z 268'¥86'L2 - spesd jeyded
682'260'8 692'260'8 - - - - 682'260'8 682'260'8 - UOROAASUOD JO PIE L SUORNGLALOD)
829'YvZ'9 829'¥¥Z'9 orY'96L'} orv'seL't - - 8gL'srY'y ssL'enY'y - Ayiediouniu J0 sewIsaAU|
‘reydes painauod
#Aynb3 pung
€L0'€8Z 1S 285 208'SS SI98IEL 028'SSL'L 6€5°S %Ly ¥86'95Y 8! €68'106 €2 SE6 LIPS LIV'G10'"PE soniqey L
¥00'298 6€ 800928’y 0100189 289'808°0 - - 666 ¥S9'SH 00876902 G66'0€E L} 9CL'TZE 8t sanirgey uuay-tuoy €01
89E'86C 1T EYPTLECH 010'918'8 289'808 0 - - - - 8SETZY VI 19L'c95'S SWNOJSIP PoZIOWEUN
40 18u ‘ayqeded spuog
oLV'vLZ'8) 860'58)'EE - - - - sLL'6oY'GL Zr0'ses'0T 000'508'Z 950°099'Z} SWIN0JSIP PeZIOWeun
40 j0u ‘aiqeded s3ON
09¥'68C 19¥'892 - - - - €28's81 855°694 1£9'€0} 606'86 aiqeed syjauag uonesen
‘sange uusl-tuol
666111 S18'€SS' ) - - - - 991'0G¢ 008'925 120°60E 1 91026 (siesse pajoLgsas woy siqeked)
SAYEGEN WALND €0
162°0t2 IE€T02 - - - - 108'2 0657 066202 Ivi'L6} ajqeded saseput ponIOdY
000'62S yrIveL - - - - - - 000°'528 yrL'vEL ageded sajou pue spuog
$E5'81L9 SZS'YI9 - - - - - - SE5'819 SZS'¥¥e sjqeded susodap sBwoISnD
199'S9€ 01Z'2LS - - - - [ w4 0Lz'zLs ZoE'ez - aiqeked syequod
(s1asse pajousal woy oxgesed)
SoNIIgEy WaLND
90106 8SLzeY 8 609205 Y¥i'Lv6 6€S°S EEXZ 618" 15¥'C £66'569 ¢ PO SEVSLLY (s3esse ound woy sigefed)
SORINgEY JUBLND 0L
665108 GE8'0C8 00008 000'S8 - - 665121 6501 000700} 952'G2S ajqefed spuog pue
$3J0U j0 uoipod pIBLND
00L'ZIZ'Y 185'0€6'Z zEL'veE 096'1€8 - - 066'629'} 179'860'T 8LE'LEV'T - Spuny JaYo 0} NG
120'841 ZiIg'stt 819'22 GZE'LT - - 69L'€S 655°1S ¥e9'eE 8zv'ee SomuGEY PANIOOY
96€'690'G $ vo'ess'y § GST $ 658'C $ eSS $ o'y $  19v'965 $ szzsee  § LoL'L9r'Y $  iSL'olZY § aiqefed sunodoy
(syesse waund woy ajqeled)
saEger] wound
‘saninqer]
000Z 1002 0002 1002 000Z 1002 0002 1002 0002 1002
‘og aunp ‘0g aunf 880D JI0D niasiq SLOMIBIEM ETEE]
Sieo ) uoResuNwWoY) Aouablawy

000Z Pu® LO0OZ ‘0E eunpr
133HS ONVIVE ONINIGWNOD
SONANL ISRIJYILING 1TV
FIASSANNIL ‘JOAI HVO 40 ALID




‘Juswaless siyt Jo ved jeibaju) ue aJe SJUBWISIE]S [BUELY O) S8j0u By

bryer e s v rur-ve e T T T T T T by v e~ ruores
TVCLer e § 128F0vEZ S (hiOESL1) § (GOhIvSZ) ¢ €206 $ 96lel viLGyL'L $ 099018 $ 121'G69GL § 91510891 $ 0€ eunr - (yoyaq) sBuiwe3 peueloy
vrLove'ee we'rey'e (8L¥'0F0'}) (119'¢82°1) 610'10F €29'0L€ Tr5'aes’o vELSYL'L 109°162'9} 121'S69'Gl } &ing - (yoyeQ) sbuiwe] peuielay
(26¥'¢18) 085'LL6'1 (€61'evL) (ye¥'L52) (96£°0¢€) (298'96) TL5'95S 9¥5'629’'L (08¥'96S) S6£'902'} sBupwe3 paujepy u
(eseasnaQ) eseanu)
VLL¥YS ¥00'G90'L - - - - LLLPYS $00'G90°L - - swesb 300 pue vd3 £q paunboe
sjesse paxy uo uogeaidaq :ppv
(899'26¢€"}) 9.5'216 (e61'evd) (ve¥'L52) (96¢°0¢) (298'96) X 241 TY5'095 (08t'965) S6€'902'4 (ss07) BWwoou) 18N
(1vZ'e62) (282°¢ze) - - - (Pog°sel) (S80°Lp1) (229°291) (zgo'aLt) QO sigjsues] Bupesedo
(22v'650°)) CIE'9ET'} (£61'€pL) (vo¥'15L) (96€'0¢) (298'96) G96'LY1 129'20L (cos'eet) Ly0'e8e’t sugjsuely BunesedO
auojag (ss07) Bwioou] 18N
(ze9'219'1) {c92°006't) (ool ‘o) {009'zog) ¥09°11 ¥29°01 (€20'12¥) (82L'v29) (890'8z8) (190'vz6) (sesuadx3) senuerey
Buyesadouon (el
(666'Sv8'1) (8r0°82€77) (6rEv¥e) (zsT'LLe) - - (esz’0ss) (¥v6's88) (S6€°156) (2v8'v90'L) asuadxe jsasely)
619'912 PLL IO 90E'T - $09°L1 ¥29'0L Z8L'6L ¥0£°04 228621 g8L'0vl aNUBAR ISIBYU|
- Z16°062 - - - - - T16°052 - - suonnquiuod [eyded
[ ] 159'v1 V6Ll 1591 - - - - S)3SSE Paxiy JO SJES UO UleS)
(sesuadxy) senusaay BunesadouoN
012'8SS 8L0°2€1°C (c60°cL¥) (68'v6E) (000°2¥) (16¥'201) 80649 GGECEE L GOZ ¥6E 801°20€C (ss07) awoout BugesadQ
¥2€'GL6'6E 006'00L 'tV 689'659'1 81LZ19°) GE0'LEC 226°00¢ £€20'8¥6'L 089'6v€ 0} 16G°9E1 0E 08G'ev8'0E sesuadx3 BunesedQ (1oL
eiwveLze 2ES'SHey TL5°228 610'82¢ 609°02 G186 ¥86°1.S"} GSY'ETP T 8YZ'TSE't A} uoiepaideq
L6L'FL1L'G SEL'82Y'ST - - - - YvZ'v2e 162126 LYS'061'vT Y0 LSV VT J3)em pue Jemod paseyasng
0Z1'88S'}1 €E0'EEY'EL ghr'zee’s 669'¥8Z'L 9zy'oLe 20192 G6L'ISY'S $£6'956°'0 98.'€65'Y €62 LY6'Y SAJRJISIULLIDE PUE SOUBUBIUIERN
:sasuadxy Bunesad
¥EG'eES 0OV 8L6'€¥Z OF 2659V’ 1 ¥28'L1T'L S£0'681 LEP'C6) 190°295'8 GE0Z89'LE 9v8'0£50¢E 889061 €€ ssnueAsy BuyesadQ |ei10)
086'699 G9.°099 000 000'¥2 - - 090'86 21566 0Z6'L¥S €61°2€S Byio
c65'2eet ve8'e6l’l 265222} $28'e6)'E - - - - - - Sojes pue $89) 8sIN00 JoO
296'0v9'8¢ ¢ 68e'esE'Vy § - $ - $ GE0'%68L $  IEV'E6L 100'69%'8 $ £op'28G°LL § 926'286'62 $§ S6V'EIGZE $ seoInIes Joy sefieyd
:sanuaaay Bunessdo
0002 1002 0002 1002 0002 1002 0002 1007 0002 1002
‘g eunp ‘0¢ eunp 8sIn0) Jj09 Pusia SHIOMIBIEM Supe3
S|ejoL uonesunwwo?) Asuabiawg

0002 PUE L00Z ‘0E SUNf Papu SIBOA jBISI] B} 104

SONINYVY3I GaNIV.LIY NI SIONVHOI ANV
‘S3ISNIJX3 ‘SIANNIAIY 0 INIWILVLS ONINIHNOD

SANNJ 3SIRIdUALNT TV

33SSANNIL ‘I39aid MO 40 ALID



88

BwWREIS Sy o ped jeiBaju) ue SJe KUBLISIES [BIDUBLY O} SAI0U 3|

(penuguoD)

T T x T T T T e T — vy el
9190¥ZY §$ B80S 8SYE $ $ e $ 9s8'¥6l $ TI91cS9 | $ wrree9 § IZCHIEE $ 80THeT S
Y20z - - - - - - YII'0ZH' -
965'69¢ sze'sze - - - - €8 980} €04'89¢ 6€2'12¢
€E2'L2r's 265'81L - - - - 0LV'ELT 8r1'6S OL'ESH'E v¥¥'659
006'096 SeL'91Z' - - - - S9E'2rE o1z'eLs SES'819 SS9
€L4'29€ $ 9s8'vel $ - $ - $ zZziae $ 958761 $  66y9E $ $  Zs5'60b $ $

——r— — — E— . —— e—
9l90vZr § 80SBSKC - $ - $ 29z $ 95816l $ TIs1ts® $ vpvees § IZehice | $ e0Zicen $
602°LI€°¢ ANy 66.'6E} - 8¥Z'c0Z [74% 1% Z0L'er6 191°eS9 096'060'C ZEice
106'298 (804'282'}) (662'6€1) - [ Z1:x4% (992'12) {5€5°'062) (ez2'02) 19€'082°} Li'orL’s)
Y9I YN 90€¢ - Y0914 ¥29'0) 2816 YOE 0} 1ZE'€Th 98071
riL'ev0's) (+25'665°2) (99Z'1v¥) Zioezy) - {€85'8€6€) (Z0e'206°c} (Sz6'cg9) (V4G
{6y1'sva's) 12587087) (rz9'yre) (81829¢€) - - (+10'9¥5) (ss1'688) (3] resZSE)
(zv9'661'L) 2rs'104°1) (000's2) (000°08) - - Zr9'rzs) (gs5'121) {000°009) (rr6'668)
026'zy 616'€Z £r6'1 25971 - - - - 116°0¢C 292'6
(6L2'192'24) (SESZ81L' 1Y) (ses'ee) (168) - - (908'280'6) (€66'£51'8) (88E'0YL'E) (169'€20'€)
98'612'01 rr'oez'L - - - - 9/8'612'9 r'99z's 000'000'Y 000°000'Z
ivZ81y) (zeL'cze) - - (I S80°Zv1) (22972v2) (25X
(1¥2862) (zeLeze) - - {ro5'ser) a0 ort) (2297791 zs9'oZi)
(000'02t) - - - (000'0%) - {000°'08) -
£05'801'9 98Y'816'S 191662 Z10'62Y 02 {0687i€) OEY PPL'E 09€'BI0'Y Zro'e90'C ¥00'€95'F
128 (€66'02) - B - 1Z16 T5z"st) 901’6 Tezz'm
090'290'} (e15182'1) ZEL'YEE 8zZ'LEY - 6L0°€SS'} 1£9'8Ly (152'088) (82£'281°27)
189°L¥ 162 - (£62) - - 606'62 {012'2) U 6L
815'L¥E SE8'SSZ - - - - 1S1L'G1E S¥8'62Z 298°T¢ 066'SZ
106'862'} (ece'915) (es2'¢) 09 y2€'7 (rse')) SL0'LL) (€€2'192) 19Z'ETV' (0s€'952)
15 14 9£6'08 $56°64 9I5's - - 0c0'ZH Seg'sy 99¥'se $85'sZ
(8zv'cLe) - - - - (8z¥'cLe) - -
(r10'y) (¥29) (r10'y) (¥z9) - - - - -
(669'¢) 669°C - - (669°'¢) 669'¢ - - - -
€i6'8y (121'en) - - €1z'ge 1ze'e 004’0} - - (zrr'es)
(9e2'02e) 669'GS (8£2'22) - 4T @) 0zh'sth (622'6L}) (650'951) (z60's04) z8L'syl
000004 000204 - - - - - - 000°004 000204
eHr'eLz'e ZES'SKYE'y zi5'42¢ 610'82¢ 609'02 SI8'YS ¥86'145°} SSY'EZY'T erzTSeL erzecy't
012'85S $ 801t $ (es0'tly) $ (veg'yee) $  (000'ZY) $ (16v204) $ 8E0'6K9 $ SSE'ZCEL $  SOT'PEC $ 801087 $
6002 100 000 1002 0002 1002 0002 1002 0002 1002
‘og sunp ‘og eunp %o 09 PRSI Uogesunwwod Ausbiews SHOMBIEM ET=CE]
S|
000Z PU® LO0Z ‘0f dunf papu3] siea, [edstd ay} 104
SMOTd HSYD 40 LNIWILYLS ONINIBWOD
SANNA 3SIUDHIIND 1TV
JIASSIANNIL ‘I0aIY MVO 40 ALD
€3

0¢ sunr ‘suejeanby ysed pue yse)

UNO3O. BIIAIDS JGOP BINYY PUOG BNUBASY
JUNOJDE SOIAIRS 1GOP JUBLND
1UN03O. LORINASUOD
sysodeq

‘519858 OISy

SOTSE JUBLINO Ut UGIEAINDO YSED PUE YSED

399yS eoueleg oif O} SuBjeAINd
USED pue ySED J0 UOHEHIOU0OBY

0€ sunr ‘guajeandbs ysed pue ysen
1 Ainp ‘Queieanb3 yseo pue ysed

suereAInb3 yseD pue ysed
ul Aowwohvﬁn_v SR JoN

SJUBLUISOAL} UO SPUBDIAID PUE }SI0
:SORIAROY BURSOAL WO SMO}J USeD

SeNIAROY Bupueuls pejery pue
1ended Aq (pasn) pepiroid used JoN
198D uwat-Buoj uo pied jsasejy
1q6p uwe-Buo) uo pred jedioutig
Siasse jeydeD Jo 8{es Wwoy Speadsig
fesse [gded 0 LopoNASUCD pue LoRISINbOY
199p wie}-6uot jo Bouenss) woy $pesosd 18N
:seIARY Bunueuly pejedy
pue jeded wos SMold ysed

segAnoy Bupueuld jeydesuon
Aq (pasn) pepiroid yseD 19N
SPUN} JBLHO O) SIBjSURH]
SPUN) JBLO 0} BOUBAPY

:SelAROY BupouBul4 jeYdEoUON Wo) SMOLS YseD

SPAROY BunessdQ Aq
(Pasn) pepiroid ysed 18N
UOHEIBA POrudDY
SpUY J8LRo 0} 8nQg
SonKqey penody
susodeq
ejqesed sjuncasy
$80IBLD POLIBJOP JO UoYEZRIOWY
Sswey piedeid
1509 je ‘Aojusay
SJUBWILISA0S Jeuio woy eng
Spuny Jo10 Woy eng
9iqeAI808! SJUN0IY
‘sensiqen] pue sjessy u sefueyd
SIUNOID. SIGEIDIBHOOUN IO} LOISIAGIY
uoepaideg
YseD JoN o} (sso1) ewodu| BugesedQ
8§1ou0oeY 0} Slusulsnipy

(s507) awooul Sugesedo




‘Juswielels siyy Jo ped jeibajul U aJe SJUALLIBIE)S JBIDUBLY O} SBI0U Y]

‘6661 JEISY Ul papunjal $aj0u JO anjea Builies yau ay) pue eoud uonisinboes)
3y} usamiaq VUIBHIP 3Y} JO BEP'YLS PUE SJUNODSI( puog Ul £EZ'E$ ‘SISOD 8oUBNSS| puog Ul £82'Z$ @J8M LO0Z [BISH Ul pund @sino) Jio9) ay) ul pazyiowy

"100Z leasy ul AyD ayy 0} suadojanap ajeaud Aq pajeuop ‘anudAal se papiodal ‘SSNIoeR) Ul ZL6'0GZ$ PeY Pund SHIOMIBIeM BYL
*100Z [B9SY Ul PSZILOWE 3J9M SISO BUBNSS] 1gep Ul 02¥'p$ pue jueld Juawieal) Jajem 8y} Joj S1S00 uollisinboe ul ygE'GH$ ‘pPund SHJOMISIEAA BY) U)
‘sieak | JOAO pazipowe
Buiaq si pue abiey) pauajaq e se papiodal sem aoud aseyaind Aoyod Z91'e62Z$ BUL "Ssueak Q| Joj 1oaye ui si jey) Jueid Jajem ay) uo Aoyod aouesnsul
jejuswiuonaud ue Buiseyaind Ayo ayy uo Juabuuod sem uonisinboe ay] "sieak G Jaao pazipouwe Buiaq ase pue ableyn pauajag e Se papiodal 9I9M Jeuy)
uoljoesuE.) Siy) 0} Pajejal SJS09 |ejuapioul Jayjo pue sa9) [ebaj ul 99z'08$ paunoul AjD ay)y yueld Jajem ay) asinboe 0) 300 yim A ay) Aq pabueyoxe sem
JOSSE JOyj0 J0 YSeo ON "000°'00S°Z1$ JO anjea j9xew Jiej )i Je pun4 SHOMIBJBAA 9y} U] JoSSe paxy e Se papiodal sem jueld Jusuneas) Jajem ay) ‘sajsuel} uodn
"abpiy %eQ Jo AnD ayy 03 abpry %eQ ul pajedo] Aok} Juawieal) Jajem e Jo diysisumo pausjsuel) (300) ABseu3 Jo wawpedsq seiels paun ayy ‘0002 ‘I Ae UO

‘uonisinboe eale 921AI9s Joud e Jo) pazipowe Osje Sem L80'L1LE 1002 oS Ul papunjal spuoq Jo anjeA Buikued jau ayy pue aoud uonisinboeal
ay) usamaq 0UBIBYIP BY) JO G/ L' $ PUE SJUNODSI puog Ul 901 'L$ ‘SISOD ouenss| 1gaQ Ul 86E'L$ SEM L00Z 1BISY Ul pund JL108|3 8Y) Ul paziLowYy
"1g8p plo 8y) Jo 8y} Jeak-z | Buiuewai ay) 190 pazipouwre Buiaq S) pue pauajep Sem Spuoq ay; jo Junowe Bulkued Jau ay) pue
aoud uonisinboeal a1y usamjaq asuaseyip 08G‘vZL$ aul "pouad JuswAdedal 1Gap ay) Jaao paziowe Bulaq a1e pue spaadoid 1qep ay) WOl PAJONPaP aI9M
‘abiey) paueja(Q e se paplodal ‘9E6 'GEZS JO SIS0 JUBNSS| JGaJ "SPUOQ PapuNnjal ay) uo sjuswAed a0IAI9S Jqap 4NNy J0j 9AI9Sal palinbal e se AuD ayy
Aq piay Bujaq sem jey) 8s)sn} 8y 0} LyS'609$ PeRIWal A0 8yl "spuoq Buipueisino ay) Jo JuawAed 1o} aajsnu) Y} 0} Aj9IBIPSWIW JUSM SPaaoosd 1Gap ay L
"SpUOq anuaAa) oUjoaI3 Bulpuelsino uj 000°'GES 0L $ JO Bulpunyas ay) Joj weiboid SNYOT-NL aui YbnosY) 1Gep Ul 0Z1L'¥00°0L$ PaNss) AD 8y} '100Z 1eosy Buung

:sal)A|IoR Bujoueuy pue jejded ‘BupseAu) ysesuoN

000Z PUE L 00Z ‘0E BUN( POpU S4BB A JEIS|] BY) 104
SMOT4 HSVD JO INJW3LVLS ONINIBNOD
SANNH ISIYDUILND 1V
33SSANNIL ‘I9AIY XVO 40 ALID
(" )u0D)
€3



90




INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods
or services provided by one department or agency to other
departments or agencies of the government and to other government
units, on a cost reimbursement basis.

City Insurance Fund: This fund is used to account for contributions
from operating funds and the related payments and accruals for
dental, property and liability claims, other than. those related to the
schools. This fund receives the employee and the City's contribution
for the payment of the employee’s medical premiums. School
property and liability claims and the School’'s contribution toward
employee medical benefits are accounted for in the School Fund, a
special revenue fund.

Inventory Fund: This fund is used to account for the costs of
maintaining a central inventory of materials and supplies for use by all
activities of the City.

City Equipment Replacement Rental Fund: This fund is used to
account for the assets used in providing a pool of equipment for use
by all City departments. Rents charged to the various departments
are used to fund replacement of the equipment.

School Equipment Replacement Rental Fund: This fund is used to
account for the assets used in providing a pool of equipment for the
schools’ use. Rents charged to the various school departments are
used to fund replacement of the equipment.
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TRUST FUND

Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a
trustee capacity. The terms “expendable” and “nonexpendable” refer
to whether or not the government is under an obligation to maintain
the trust principal.

Scholarship Fund: This fund is a Nonexpendable Trust Fund used
to account for principal trust amounts received and related interest
income. The interest portion of the trust is used for college
scholarship awards. The principal amount is invested by the City, but
must be preserved intact.




CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
SCHOLARSHIP NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,888 $ 2,028
Investments, at fair value 329,045 326,418
Accrued interest 10,159 8,613
Due from other funds 1,738 5,659
Total Assets $ 360,830 $ 342,718
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 15,717 $ 12,905
Fund Balances:
Reserved for endowment 345,113 329,813
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 360,830 $ 342,718

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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G-2
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
SCHOLARSHIP NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
Operating Revenues:
Contributions $ - $ 1,000
Investment Income (Loss) 33,742 (4,598)
Total Operating Revenues 33,742 (3,598)
Operating Expenses:
Scholarship awards 18,442 14,690
Net Income (Loss) 15,300 (18,288)
Fund Balance - July 1 329,813 348,101
Fund Balance - June 30 $ 345,113 $ 329,813

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
SCHOLARSHIP NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
Operating Income (Loss) $ 15,300 $ (18,288)
Adjustments to Reconcile
Operating income (Loss) to Net Cash:
Unrealized (increase) decrease in
market value of investments (12,619) 22,607
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
interest receivable (1,546) 2,104
Due from other funds 3,921 (739)
Accounts payable 2,812 (6,488)
Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Operating Activities 7,868 804
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of investments (283,902) {(293,894)
Maturity of investments 293,894 282,924
Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Investing Activities 9,992 (10,970)
Net Increase (Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,860 (11,774)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 2,028 13,802
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 19,888 $ 2,028

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ACCOUNT GROUPS

General Fixed Assets Account Group: The General Fixed Assets
Account Group is a self-balancing group of accounts used to account
for fixed assets acquired for general governmental purposes. These
include all fixed assets except those of the Enterprise and Internal
Service Funds.

General Long-Term Debt Account Group: The General Long-Term
Debt Account Group is used to account for the outstanding principal
balances of the general obligation debt of the City.




H-1
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY SOURCES
June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
General Fixed Assets:
Land 1,616,981 1,723,002
Buildings 61,955,864 61,732,700
Improvements other than buildings 6,267,279 5,565,993
Machinery and equipment 7,977,919 7,419,007
Total General Fixed Assets 77,818,043 76,440,702
Investments in General
Fixed Assets From:
Long-term debt issuances 43,651,622 42,033,150
General Fund revenues 3,177,700 3,954,709
Special Revenue Fund revenues 22,019,169 21,458,178
Grants and Gifts 8,969,552 8,994,665
Total Investment in
General Fixed Assets 77,818,043 76,440,702

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY SOURCES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

improvements Machinery

Other Than and
Land Buildings Buildings Equipment Total

General Fixed Assets,

July 1, 2000 $ 1,723,002 $ 61,732,700 $ 5565993 $ 7,419,007 $ 76,440,702
Additions:

General Fund 833 - - 10,002 10,835

Special Revenue Funds - - - 730,797 730,797

Long-term debt proceeds - 1,338,980 417,228 - 1,756,208

Other government/private sources - 50,000 284,058 - 334,058
Deductions:

Fixed Assets sold or retired 106,854 1,165,816 - 181,887 1,454,557
General Fixed Assets,

June 30, 2001 $ 1616981 $ 61955864 $ 6267279 $ 7977919 $ 77,818,043

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
June 30, 2001

Improvements Machinery
Other Than and
Land Buildings Buildings Equipment Total
General Government:
Executive $ - $ - $ - 8 9728 $ 9,728
Judicia} - - - 9,500 9,500
Total General Government - - - 19,228 19,228
Administration:
Data Services - - - 19,959 19,959
Finance - - - 37,104 37,104
Total Administration - - - 57,063 57,063
Public Safety:
Police 122 119,209 10,044 949,976 1,079,351
Fire 11,087 1,417,994 101,540 - 1,530,621
Total Public Safety 11,209 1,537,203 111,584 949,976 2,609,972
Public Works:
Engineering - - - 9,952 9,952
Municipal Building 534 1,688,743 132,694 121,194 1,943,165
Central Service Center Complex 626,139 12,474,497 - - 13,100,636
Other Buildings 30,510 166,478 13,347 - 210,335
Streets and Highways 57,806 - - - 57,806
Maintenance - - - 7,321 7,321
Total Public Works 714,989 14,329,718 146,041 138,467 15,329,215
Community Services
& Development:
Planning - - - 5,949 5,949
Economic Development 265,727 1,456,564 828,923 - 2,551,214
Recreation 205,052 4,925,068 537,710 5,670 5,673,500
Parks 240,400 685,006 2,721,889 18,860 3,666,155
Library - 853,053 21,996 354,168 1,229,217
Senior Center - 30,270 - - 30,270
Total Community Services 711,179 7,949,961 4,110,518 384,647 13,156,305
Education 179,604 38,138,982 1,899,136 6,428,538 46,646,260

Total General Fixed Assets $  1,616981 § 61955864 $ 6267279 $ 7977919 § 77,818,043

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

H-4

General General
Fixed Assets Fixed Assets
06/30/2000 Additions Deductions 06/30/2001
General Government:
Executive $ 9,728 $ - $ - $ 9,728
Judicial 9,500 - - 9,500
Total General Government 19,228 - - 19,228
Administration:
Data Services 19,959 - - 19,959
Finance 37,104 - - 37,104
Total Administration 57,063 - - 57,063
Public Safety:
Police 1,056,266 53,899 30,814 1,079,351
Fire 1,530,621 - - 1,530,621
Total Public Safety 2,586,887 53,899 30,814 2,609,972
Public Works:
Engineering - 9,952 - 9,952
Municipal Building 1,908,099 35,066 - 1,943,165
Central Service Center Complex 13,100,636 - - 13,100,636
Other Buildings 1,460,251 13,385 1,263,301 210,335
Streets and Highways 56,973 833 - 57,806
Maintenance 7,321 - - 7,321
Total Public Works 16,533,280 59,236 1,263,301 15,329,215
Community Services
& Development:
Planning 5,949 - - 5,949
Economic Development 2,560,583 - 9,369 2,551,214
Recreation 5,529,543 143,957 - 5,673,500
Parks 2,834,474 831,681 - 3,666,155
Library 1,218,041 11,176 - 1,229,217
Senior Center 5,000 25,270 - 30,270
Total Community Services 12,153,590 1,012,084 9,369 13,156,305
Education 45,090,654 1,706,679 151,073 46,646,260
Total General Fixed Assets $ 76,440,702 $ 2,831,898 $ 1,454,557 $ 77,818,043

NOTE: Additions and deductions include transfers from one activity to another.

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

Amount available for retirement
of general obligation debt
in Debt Service Fund

Amount to be provided for payment
of earned vacation benefits

Amount to be provided for
retirement of capital outlay notes

Amount to be provided for retirement
of Tennessee Municipal Bond Fund Loan

Amount to be provided for
TN-LOANs

Amount to be provided for retirement
of general obligation bonds

Total To Be Provided

Total Available and To Be Provided

Long-term debt payable:
Vacation benefits
Capital outlay notes
Tennessee Municipal Bond Fund Loan
TN-LOANSs
General obligation bonds

Total Long-Term Debt Payable

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Debt Service
Balance Fund Payments/ Balance

June 30, 2000 Additions Operations Reductions June 30, 2001

$ 41,667 $ - $ 44,098 § -3 85,765
1,024,232 695,118 - 656,809 1,062,541
235,199 - - 74,607 160,592
1,189,558 - - 22,262 1,167,296
3,213,000 18,570,000 - - 21,783,000
48,848,333 22,480,000 (44,098) 41,855,000 29,429,235
54,510,322 41,745,118 (44,098) 42,608,678 53,602,664

$ 54551980 $ 41,745118 § - $ 42,608,678 $ 53,688,429

$ 1024232 § 695,118 § - 8 656,809 $ 1,062,541
235,199 - - 74,607 160,592
1,189,558 - - 22,262 1,167,296
3,213,000 18,570,000 - - 21,783,000
48,890,000 22,480,000 41,855,000 29,515,000

$ 54551989 $ 41745118 § - § 42,608,678 $ 53,688,429

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Table 5
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
(PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Anderson County, Tennessee Roane County, Tennessee

Year City County Total City County Total
1992 $ 208 $ 295 $ 503 $ 208 $ 3.24 $ 5632
1993 1.51 272 4,23 1.51 3.12 4.63
1994 1.73 2.72 4.45 1.73 3.045 4.775
1895 1.90 2.84 4.74 1.90 2.365 4.265
1996 1.98 2.84 4.82 1.98 2.365 4.345
1997 219 3.00 5.19 219 2.465 4.655
1998 2.34 3.00 5.34 2.34 2.465 4.805
1999 2.09 2.59 4.68 2.09 2.12 4.21
2000 2.31 297 5.28 2.31 2.32 4.63
2001 2.57 3.14 5.71 2.57 2.11 4.68

Note:  The City of Oak Ridge is located in two Tennessee counties: Anderson and Roane.

As of June 30, 2001, approximately 11 percent of the taxable parcels (1,425 of 13,072)

are located in the Roane County portion of the City. In addition, each governmental unit
operates under different property tax assessment rolls which were certified at the time of
their most recent reappraisal programs (Oak Ridge and Anderson County - 1992 and 1999;
and Roane County - 1997)
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Table 8
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT (1)
TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT PER CAPITA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Ratio of Net Net
General General
Debt Obligation Obligation
General Service Net General Debt to Debt
Fiscal Assessed Obligation (1) Monies Obligation Assessed Per
Year Population* Value Debt Available Debt Value Capita
1992 27,310 $ 258,288,561 $ 19,453,169 $ 555,290 $ 18,897,879 7.32% $ 692
1993 27,310 370,648,904 (2) 19,274,648 284,790 18,989,858 5.12% 695
1994 27,310 390,242,229 18,816,127 138,255 18,677,872 4.79% 684
1995 27,310 400,453,370 30,362,606 2,194 30,360,412 7.58% 1112
1996 27,310 410,291,758 29,996,636 18,139 29,978,497 7.31% 1,098
1997 27,310 425,185,580 44,936,930 21,492 44,915,438 - 10.56% 1,645
1998 27,310 422,733,763 45,987,130 30,008 45,957,122 10.87% 1,683
1999 27,310 501,652,381 (2) 47,167,927 9,761 47,158,166 9.40% 1,727
2000 27,387 506,990,597 55,766,665 41,667 55,724,998 10.99% 2,035
2001 27,387 504,672,547 54,877,746 85,765 54,791,981 10.86% 2,001

*Source: U.S. Census
(1) This excludes general obligation debt in which debt service is to be funded through an Enterprise Fund.

(2) The assessed value refiects a reappraisal of reail property.
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Table 9
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

June 30, 2001

Appraised Value $ 1,684,771,869

Debt Limit 10 Percent of Appraised Value $ 168,477,187

Less Debt Applicable to Debt Limit:

GO Refunding Bonds, Series 1993 3,485,000
GO School Bonds, Series 1995 710,000
GO Public improvement Bonds, Series 1996 1,905,000
GO Refunding Bonds, Series 2000 935,000
GO Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 22,480,000
TMBF Loan, 1994 6,921,500
School Energy Loan 160,592
Golf Course Fund Series 1998 7,050,000
TN-LOANSs, 1998 8,450,000
TN-LOANSs, 2001 18,570,000
State Revolving Program Loan 12,419,047
TMBF Equipment Loan, 1998 2,000,890
Total General Obligation Debt (1) 85,087,029
Legal Debt Margin $ 83,390,158

Note: Limitation on Borrowing Power: Home Rule Charter - Articie IV, Section 12.
"The total amount of bonds or other evidence of indebtedness secured by the full faith
and credit of the City that shall be outstanding at any one time shall not exceed 10% of
the totai appraised valuation of all real estate lying within the city limits."

(1) Not listed above is authorized and available lines of credit of $4,5650,953 through the
State Revolving Loan Program for future wastewater projects.
Subsequent to June 30, 2001, City Council authorized the issuance of $1,000,000
in debt to fund the expansion of the Scarboro Center and $3,000,000 in debt to fund
future water and wastewater projects.

(2) The above includes debt that is scheduled to be funded through the revenues of a
Proprietary Fund, but is legally secured by the full faith and credit of the City.
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Table 10
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

June 30, 2001

Percentage
of Debt
Net Debt Applicable City's
Jurisdiction Outstanding To the City Share of Debt
Direct:
City of Oak Ridge -
General Obligation Bonds $ 29,429,235 100% $ 29,429,235
Capital Outlay Notes 160,592 100% 160,592
Tennessee Municipal Bond Fund Loan 3,168,186 100% 3,168,186
TN-LOANs 21,783,000 100% 21,783,000
Capital Lease 250,968 100% 250,968
Total Direct Debt 54,791,981 54,791,981
Overlapping:
Anderson County, Tennessee 15,260,000 46.93% ¢ 7,161,060
Roane County, Tennessee 19,514,000 9.27% ¢ 1,808,948
Total Overlapping Debt 34,774,000 8,970,008
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 89,565,981 $ 63,761,989

* Applicable percentage is determined by ratio of assessed valuation of real property subject to taxation in overiapping unit
to valuation of real property subject to taxation in reporting unit.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL
OBLIGATION DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES (1)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Table 11

Ratio of
Total Debt Service
Interest Total General to General

Fiscal and Fiscal Arbitrage Debt Governmental Governmental
Year Principal Charges Rebate Service Expenditures (2) Expenditures
1992 § 983,521 § 1,300,165 $ 8,799 § 2292485 $ 38,136,577 6.0%
1993 1,073,521 962,351 5,268 2,041,140 42,796,471 4.8%
1994 1,093,521 974,638 4,001 2,072,160 43,929,453 4.7%
1995 818,521 942,664 - 1,761,185 46,761,459 3.8%
1996 898,521 1,345,984 - 2,244,505 48,389,349 4.6%
1997 1,059,901 1,818,897 - 2,878,798 52,964,827 5.4%
1998 1,291,150 2,414,177 - 3,705,327 53,675,940 6.9%
1999 1,355,637 2,400,695 - 3,756,332 54,440,372 6.9%
2000 1,975,387 2,346,695 - 4,322,082 55,952,698 7.7%
2001 2,196,869 2,876,185 - 5,073,054 61,314,811 8.3%

(1) This excludes general obligation debt in which debt service will be funded through a Proprietary Fund.

(2) Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds.
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Table 12
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
ELECTRIC SYSTEM BONDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Net Revenue Debt Service Requirements

Fiscal Gross Operating Available for Coverage
Year Revenues (1) Expenses (2) Debt Service Principal Interest Total Ratio
1992 $ 23,239408 $ 22515711 $ 723,697 $ 95,000 $ 230672 $ 325672 222
1993 24,628,922 23,351,800 1,277,122 100,000 224,782 324,782 3.83
1994 26,336,296 24,315,416 2,020,880 200,000 266,640 466,640 4.33
1995 25,883,506 23,831,585 2,051,921 205,000 311,168 516,168 3.98
1996 28,554,493 25,758,587 2,795,906 ~ 215,000 774,274 989,274 2.83
1997 27,576,939 25,622,088 1,954,851 225,000 732,621 957,621 2.04
1998 30,171,408 27,718,138 2,453,270 460,000 701,162 1,161,162 2.1
1999 30,317,007 27,773,119 2,543,888 480,000 740,858 1,220,858 2.08
2000 30,654,173 28,784,333 1,869,840 600,000 767,181 1,367,181 1.37
2001 33,291,474 29,404,337 3,887,137 899,944 1,275,692 2,175,636 1.79

NOTE:
(1) Includes operating and nonoperating revenues.

(2) Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation.
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Table 13
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

PROPERTY VALUE AND CONSTRUCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Residential and
Commercial Construction (1)

Fiscal Number Property

Year of Units Value Value (2) (3)
1992 1,003 $ 43,528,517 $ 848,402,837
1993 1,117 31,696,321 1,211,741,054
1994 948 34,699,037 1,274,312,988
1995 826 40,625,694 1,306,718,147
1996 838 26,559,519 1,339,813,723
1997 588 12,670,012 1,382,108,014
1998 479 26,469,935 1,388,099,021
1999 453 25,702,368 1,671,815,260
2000 510 27,806,864 1,679,740,886
2001 426 17,997,402 1,684,771,869

Notes:

(1) Based on building permits issued by the City's Permit Office of which values are
estimated construction cost.

(2) Estimated Actual Value.

(3) Includes Residential and Commercial.




CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

Table 14

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
TAX YEAR 2000
(FOR FISCAL YEAR 2001)
Percentage
2000 of Total
Type of Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Business Valuation Valuation

Boeing Tennessee Inc. Manufacturing and Engineering $ 14,707,219 2.91%
BellSouth Communications 11,365,778 2.25%
Oak Ridge Tech Center Office Complex 10,676,040 2.12%
Oak Ridge Corp Partners
Crown America Shopping Mall/Misc. Development 9,808,689 1.94%
Methodist Medical Center of Oak Ridge Health Services 8,628,040 1.71%
International Environmental Resources Environmental Services 6,698,925 1.33%
{AKA Manufacturing Sciences)
Scientific Ecology Group Environmental Services 5,437,061 1.08%
(AKA GTS Duratek)
Southern Management Development Apartment Complexes 5,201,311 1.03%
Richard Chinn Entrepreneur 4,081,005 0.81%
Seward Norris Construction
(AKA Rivers Run & Castlewood) Real Estate Developer 3,267,135 0.65%
TOTAL $ 79,871,203 15.83%

*Does not include in-lieu of tax payments.
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Table 15
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

TEN LARGEST ELECTRIC CUSTOMERS

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2001

Annual Annual Annual Percentage Of
Customer Demand Kwh Usage Sales Dollars Total Sales

City of Oak Ridge 35,880 19,263,749 $ 1,665,311 5.11%
Scientific Ecology Group (SEG) 1) 29,260,372 1,192,419 3.66%
(AKA GTS Duratek)
Boeing (1) 26,897,088 1,164,941 3.57%
Methodist Medical Center 39,899 18,862,587 1,100,895 3.38%
BNFL inc. ‘ 42,509 18,183,109 1,098,871 3.37%
Oak Ridge Board Of Education 37,355 13,307,638 868,499 2.66%
UT-Battelle LLC 21,809 11,471,349 634,108 1.94%
international Environmental Resources 20,457 11,399,520 623,577 1.91%
(AKA Manufacturing Sciences)
US Department of Energy 20,260 9,652,941 558,064 1.71%
Perkineimer Instruments 16,462 8,846,920 483,322 1.48%

Total $ 9,390,007 - 2879%

(1) This customer is on the ESP program offered through the Tennessee Valley Authority.




CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
INSURANCE IN FORCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

Table 16

Type of Coverage/ Policy Policy Details of Annual
Insurance Carrier Number Period Coverage Claim Dollar Limits Premium
ity, Excludi Is:
Comprehensive General Liabilities/
TN Municipal League insurance Pool TML 079 03 7/1/00 - 6/30/01  General Liability $ 2,000,000 $ 138,330
Auto Liability 2,000,000
Auto Physical Damage 20,000 to 110,000
Errors and Omissions 2,000,000
TWC 0050 01 7/1/00 - 6/30/01  Worker's Compensation N/A 55,200
Employee Fidelity
Assurance Center 441CF0050 7/1/00 - 6/30/01  Employee Fidelity $500,000 Blanket Bond 1,911
Environmental Policy- Water Treatment Plant
Greenwich Insurance Company PEC0002643 5/1/00 - 4/31/10  Poliution Policy $ 25,000,000 293,162
Unemployment Compensation Self Insured
Schools:
Comprehensive General Liability/
TN Municipal League TML 0078-03 7/01/00 - 7/01/03  General Liability $130,000/350,000/50,000 6,143
Auto Liability & Physical 130,000/350,000/50,000 19,603
Errors and Omissions 50,000 6,637
TWC 0049-00 7/01/00 - 7/01/03 Worker's Compensation Statutory 200,244
TML 303-01 12/03/00 - 12/03/01 Driver's Education 130,000/350,000/50,000 1,029
Surety Bond - Dr. Randy McCoy
Cincinnati Insurance Company 8312975 7/01/00 - 7/01/01  Dishonesty $767,200 Aggregate 2,301
Surety - Public Empioyee Blanket Bond
St. Paul Insurance Company 441CF0122 7/01/99 - 7/01/02 Dishonesty - All Employees ~ $250,000 Per Incident 2,598
ity an | P
Boiler and Machinery
The Traveler's Insurance Company P-630-438X5992 7/01/00 - 7/01/01 Boilers $ 10,000,000 23,963
Property and Casuaity City & School Facilities
The Traveler's insurance Company P-630-438X5892  7/01/00 - 7/01/01  All Risks 3 50,000,000 100,314

Total Premium

$ 851,435




CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

1980 AND 1990 CENSUS YEAR INFORMATION AND LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Table 17

@ 7)) ()

Fiscal (1) Per Capita Median Unemployment School
Year Population Income Age Rate Enroliment
1980 27,662 $ 9,244 (1) 350 (1) 54% (1) 5,274
1990 27,310 17,661 (1) 396 (1) 49% (1) 4,432
1992 27,310 18,587 (3) 5.7% 4,627
1993 27,310 19,076 (3) 4.9% 4,667
1094 27,310 19,836 (3) 3.9% 4,769
1995 27,310 21,621 3) 4.0% 4,810
1996 27,310 22,292 3) 4.8% 4,965
1997 27,310 22,130 (3) 5.6% 4,845
1998 27,310 24,337 {3) 3.6% 4,801
1999 27,310 25,181 (3) 3.6% 4,639
2000 27,387 (3) 434 (1) 3) 4,491
2001 27,387 (3) (3) (3) 4,398
NOTE:

(1)
@)

)

Source: U. S. Census Bureau. Statistic is for the City of Oak Ridge

Source: East Tennessee Development District. Statistic is for Anderson County. Information is
maintained on a county basis and is unavailable for the City of Oak Ridge as a separate entity in a
non-census year. The City comprises approximately 38% of Anderson County.

Data Not Available.
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CiTY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

CHANGES IN ENTERPRISE FUND FIXED ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

Table 18

Electric Fund

Land

Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

Total Electric Fund

Waterworks Fund

Land

Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

Total Waterworks Fund

Emergency Communications
District Fund

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

Total Emergency
Communications District Fund

Golf Course Fund

Land

Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total Galf Course Fund

Total Enterprise Funds

Net

Fixed Assets Fixed Assets Accumulated Fixed Assets
June 30, 2000 Additions (1) Reductions (1) June 30, 2001 Depreciation June 30, 2001
$ 241,055 $ 276,800 $ - $ 517,855 $ - $ 517,855
316,041 - - 316,041 184,821 131,220
43,129,357 2,106,413 308,274 44,927,496 15,407,475 29,520,021
2,398,749 640,478 - 3,039,227 - 3,039,227

$ 46,085,202 $ 3,023,691 $ 308,274 $ 48,800,619 $ 15,592,296 $ 33,208,323
$ 137,018 $ - $ - $ 137,018 $ - $ 137,018
20,838,261 99,406 - 20,937,667 4,831,930 16,105,737
6,862,164 4,471,363 - 11,333,527 1,003,032 10,330,495
51,536,055 3,856,277 44,629 65,347,703 19,039,806 36,307,897
18,155 8,167,558 8,160,765 24,948 - 24,948

$ 79,391,653 $ 16,594,604 $ 8,205,394 $ 87,780,863 $ 24,874,768 $ 62,906,095
$ 28,975 $ - $ - $ 28,975 $ 20,719 $ 8,256
215,866 - 22,705 193,161 131,871 61,290

$ 244,841 $ - $ 22,705 $ 222,136 $ 152,590 $ 69,546
$ 1,222,193 $ - $ - $ 1,222,193 $ - $ 1,222,193
878,855 - - 878,855 87,806 791,049
5,763,336 852 - 5,764,188 944,325 4,819,863
341,380 - - 341,380 268,269 73,111

$ 8,205,764 $ 852 $ - $ 8,206,616 $ 1,300,400 $ 6,906,216
$ 133,927,460 $ 19,619,147 $ 8,536,373 $ 145,010,234 $ 41,920,054 $ 103,090,180

(1) Additions and reductions include transfers between asset types.
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Table 19

CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM DATA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

RESIDENTIAL RATE

Energy Charge Per Month: Customer Charge:
6.240 cents per kilowatt-hour $5.80 per delivery point per month

COMMERCIAL RATE

Customers with a demand of less than 50 kilowatts and with energy takings less than 15,000
kilowatt-hours:

Energy Charge per Month: Customer Charge:
6.756 cents per kWh per month $15.00 per delivery point per month

Customers with a demand of (a) greater than 50 kilowatts but less than 1,000 kilowatts or (b) a demand
of less than 50 kilowatts but with energy takings exceeding 15,000 kilowatt-hours:

Demand Charge Per Month: Customer Charge:
First 50 kilowatt-hours at no demand charge $30.00 per delivery point per month
Excess over 50 kilowatts at $9.94 per kW

Energy Charge per Month:
First 15,000 kilowatt-hours at 7.000 cents per kWh
Additional kilowatt-hours at 3.587 cents per kWh

Customers with demand exceeding 1,000 kilowatts:

Demand Charge Per Month: Customer Charge:
First 1,000 kilowatts at $9.41 per kW $80.00 per delivery point per month
Next 1,500 kilowatts at $10.56 per kW
Excess over 2,500 kilowatts at $10.98 per kW

Energy Charge Per Month:
3.665 cents per kilowatt-hour

Note: Bills on all above rates are subject to certain adjustments. The above rates are net, the gross rates
being 5 percent higher.




Table 19
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM DATA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

Consumers - June Electric Sales This Year
This Year Last Year Kilowatt Hours Amount
CLASS OF SERVICE:

Residential 12,648 12,700 164,735,264 $ 11,019,943
Small lighting and power 1,564 1,558 35,280,511 2,664,985
Large lighting and power 412 366 308,855,860 17,836,007
Street and outdoor lighting 62 61 9,707,902 1,092,560
Totals 14,686 14,685 518,679,537 $ 32,613,495

Purchased Power This Year

Kilowatt Hours Amount
Power billings for the year 533,000,199 $ 24,457,044

LINE LOSSES AND COST PER KILOWATT-HOUR PURCHASED

Kilowatt-hours purchased (per above) 533,000,199
Kilowatt-hours sold (per above) 518,579,537
Line losses and kilowatt-hours unaccounted for 14,420,662

Percentage of losses and unaccounted for

kilowatt-hours to purchases 2.71%
Cost per kilowatt-hour purchases $0.0459
OTHER STATISTICS
Miles of electric lines 270.84
Number of regular street lights 5319
Number of private outdoor lights 1,530
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

WATER SYSTEM DATA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

1. Commodity charge:

First 2,000 gallons or any part thereof

Next 8,000 gallons
Next 40,000 gallons
Next 150,000 galions
Next 800,000 gallons
Next 1,000,000 galions

United States Department of Energy:
Treated Water
Raw Water

2. Minimum monthly billings:

For customers using 5/8" or 3/4" meter

For customers using 1" or 1-1/4" meter

For customers using 1-1/2" meter

For customers using 2" meter

For customers using 3" meter

For customers using 4" meter or larger meter

Table 20

$ 8.01 per month
3.10 per thousand
2.77 per thousand
2.29 per thousand
1.90 per thousand
1.56 per thousand

$ 0.62 per thousand
0.155 per thousand

$ 8.01 per month
20.80 per month
37.68 per month
69.67 per month
117.22 per month
166.68 per month

Note: Bills on all above rates are subject to certain adjustments. The above rates are net;

the gross rates being 5 percent higher.
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Table 20
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

WATER SYSTEM DATA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

Water Sales
Consumers - June Fiscal
This Year Last Year Year 2001

CLASS OF SERVICE:
Residential 10,747 10,745 $ 2,315,806
Commercial 1,427 1,407 1,325,445
U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) 1 1 1,997,357
Public fire protection (fire hydrants) 1 1 42,590
Totals 12,177 12,155 $ 5,681,198

LINE LOSSES AND COST PER GALLON
Galions treated (Thousands) 4,374,438
Treated gallons sold to DOE (Thousands) 2,829,408
Gallons sold - residential and commercial customers (Thousands) 1,165,517
Line losses and gallons unaccounted for (Thousands) 379,513
Percentage of losses and unaccounted for galions to purchases 8.68%
OTHER STATISTICS

Average daily water consumption (gallons) 10,945,000

Miles of water mains

Number of fire hydrants




Table 21
CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

WASTEWATER TREATMENT SYSTEM DATA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

Consumers - June Wastewater Fees
This Year Last Year Fiscal Year 2001
CLASS OF SERVICE:
Residential 10,468 10,481 $ 2,241,469
Commercial 1,195 1,191 2,701,878
Totals 11,663 11,672 $ 4,943,347
WASTEWATER TREATMENT:
Clinch River Industrial Park Plant;
Capacity daily (galions) 10.000
Treatment during Fiscal Year 2001 (galions) 1,500,000
West End Piant:
Capacity daily (gallons) 5,870,000
Treatment during Fiscal Year 2001 (gallons) 1.500,000.000

COLLECTION SYSTEM:
Miles of sewer mains 240.00

WASTEWATER TREATMENT RATE:

Recover of Total Cost:
First 2,000 gallons per month or any part thereof $10.25 flat rate

Next 8,000 gallons per month $2.94 per thousand gallons
Next 40,000 gallons per month $4.38 per thousand galions
Next 50,000 gallons per month $4.20 per thousand gallons

Minimum Charge per Month

The total wastewater charge shall be no iess than $10.25 per month.

Maximum Charge per Month

The following terms are defined:
Winter Period - November 2 through May 1.
Summer Period - May 2 through November 1.

Residential meter readings taken during the Summer Period shall be subject to a
maximum monthly charge. The maximum charge shall be computed using the rates
in effect applied to the highest monthly meter reading taken during the preceding
Winter Period.

The maximum charge set forth herein is not applicable unless a residential
customer has maintained water service at the metered location continuously
during the preceding Winter Period.

Note: Bills on all above rates are subject to certain adjustments. The above rates are net,
the gross rated being 5 percent higher.
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CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

OTHER STATISTICAL DATA
JUNE 30, 2001

Population (2000 Census)

Date of incorporation

Date of adoption of City Charter

Date City took over operations from U. S. Atomic Energy Commission

Form of government

Number of Council Members (elected at large for a four-year term, staggered so
that approximately half of the Council is elected every two years
Mayor (Council elects one of their members for a two-year term)
City employees (not including schools):

Regular Full-Time

Seasonal Full-Time

Temporary Full-Time

Regular Part-Time

Seasonal Part-Time

Temporary Part-Time

Total

Area of City

Miles of roads and streets:
Asphait
Bituminous

Miles of sidewalks:
Asphalt
Concrete

ELECTIONS - (June 5, 2001 general election):
" Registered voters
Number of registered voters voting
Percentage of registered voters voting

FIRE PROTECTION:
Classification
Number of stations
Number of full-time employees
Number of on-call Fire Specialists
Number of fire trucks (pumpers and ladder) radio equipped
Number of rescue vehicles - radio equipped
Number of sedans - radio equipped
Number of Fire Specialists' pickup trucks
Number of fire hydrants
Per-capita fire loss
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Table 22

27,387

June 16, 1959
May 5, 1959
June 1, 1960

Modified City
Manager-Council

7

339

92 square miles

186.5
24.52

55.12
43.61

18,513
4,239
22.90

Class 3
3

43

27

6

2

3

5
2,481
$19.53

(continued)




CITY OF OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE

OTHER STATISTICAL DATA
JUNE 30, 2001

POLICE PROTECTION:

Number of stations

Number of employees:

Police Officers

Records and support personnel
Emergency dispatchers

Animal Control Officers

School crossing guards (part-time)

Criminal offenses:
Serious
Minor

Total calls for service
Number of vehicles:

Marked
Unmarked
Animal control
Other

EDUCATION - PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM:

Senior High (Grades 9, through 12)
Middle Schools (Grades S through 8)
Elementary Schools (Grade K through 4)

Number = ADM  _ADA

1,649
1,417
1,434

BN =

Other (special education) 5

Total Students
Certified Staff

423

Non-certified Personnel 276

Total Personnel

RECREATION:
Parks (total acres)

Number developed

Number undeveloped
Number of playground (summer)
Number of swimming pools
Number of tennis courts
Number of baseball parks
Number of softball parks
Number of gymnasiums
Number of golf courses
Number of soccer fields
Number of marina slips

UTILITIES:
Electric -
Water -
Sewer -
Gas -
Telephone -
Railroads -
Airports -

City-owned (statements and statistics are included in this report).
City-owned (statements and statistics are included in this report).
City-owned (statements and statistics are included in this report).

1,474
1,349
1,344

Natural gas system owned and operated by the Oak Ridge Utility District.

Qak Ridge is served by South Central Bell Telephone Company.

Oak Ridge is served by two railroads - Seaboard System and Southern (freight only).
Limousine service to McGhee-Tyson Airport at Knoxville (40 minute drive).
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{Cont.)

Teacher -
Pupil Rati

110 13.70
110 12.90
1to0 15.20

2,237
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